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AGRIMNURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Securities and Exchange Commission Form 17 - Q

Part T - FINANCIAL TNFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

The interim consolidated financial statements of AgriMu-ture, Inc, and subsidiaries {collectively
referred to as the "Group®) as of and for the pericd ended September30, 2022 and with
comparativefigures as of September 30, 2021 and Decermber 31, 2021 - are fiked as part of
this Form 17-0 as Exhibit

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,

The following Management Discussion and Analysis should be read in conjunction with the
sttached inberim consolidated financial statements of Agrillurture, Inc. and subsidiaries 2z of
andfar the nine months ended Septamber 30, 20212,

Business Overview

Incorporated on 04 February 1997, Agrinurture, Inc. (the “Company” or "ANIY) started its
business operations in the same year as an imporier, treder and fabricator of post-harvest
agricultural machineries intended to improve the productivity as well as inorease the intome
of Filiping farmers. Formerly known as Mabuhay 2000 Enterprises, Inc., AN was the first to
bring inta the Philippine market the Mega-5un brand of grain dryers and thersafter astablished
itsedf as one of the more reliable local supplier and manufacturer of conveyor systems and
other rice mill equipmert.

AN aventually diversified into other vanous agm-commercial businesses, specifically foouwsing
onthe export treding of fresh Philipping Carabag Mangoes as ([5 main revenue stream. Since
then, ANl has become one of the Philippinas’ top fresh mango exporters b the world market,
At present, AMI also cupplies other home-grosen fruits such as banana and pineappie o
customersin Hong Kong, Mainland China, the Middle East and to the different European regions,

Thee fallowang are the recent developments segarding its contineous Business spansion:

On December 20, 2019 and September 9, 2020, the BOD and the shareholders of theParent
Company, respectively, have approved the issuamce of shares to Plentex Philippines, Inc
{Plentex). Plentex has subscribed for 6,172,800 shares and the ParentCompany has agreed to
issue the same at a value of B18 per share which is to be paidthrough the issuance of 30,000,000
shares of Plentex Limited.

Plentex iz a Fhilippine Corporation that s developing a substantial large scale agri-
businesscenter in Tacloban, Leyte. Plentex is a subsidiary of Plenktex Limited, unlisted Australian
public caompany in Victora, Ausiralia.

As at date of report, the 6,172,800 shares were subscried and 2,057,600 shares warepaid.

On February 1, 2021, the Group entered Into a Memorandum of Agreemant ["MOA" ) with the
Unified Bagobo-Tagabawa Tribe ("UBTT") and the Mational Commission on Indigenous Peoples
["NCIPY) to promote inclusive agricultural and econamic growth bypursuing land productivity
thiu Ehe {]mlﬂpr‘ﬂ.ﬂ‘ll l;.llI rice and Cornm ulanl..a:h;n inBansalan, Davao del Sur, The Ernmp will
inwest in the development, operation and management of the rice and com plantation while the
UBETT will be entitled to an annualroyalty fee Annual Net Profit share in the project. Further, all
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employment and labor requirements of the project shall be primarily sourced from the UBTT.
NCLP shall monitor and evaluate compliance of the parties in the terms and conditions of the MOA,
The Group, along with the project shall develop programs on health, skills development and
altemmative lvelinood Ffor the communities. The parties, in collaboration with othernational
government agancias ghall likewise conduct trea planting activities in at leastitwo thougand
(2,000) hectares of land.,

As at date of report, the parties have compled with the requirements to fully executethe
agresment, Inciuding oul not limited o the Freg and Pnor Informed Consent (FPIC), as iImdcated
by the issuance of a Certification Precondition by the NCIP.

On February 23 2021, Dcean Biochemistry Technology Research, Inc, (*OBTI") and Greenergy
Holdings, Inc. ("GHI") have entered into a subscription agreement for the issuance of 37,500
common shares of OBTI at par valug of P100 per share for a tokal aggregate value of P3, 750,000,
(8T Is a corporation primarily engaged in manufacturing and trading, and 5 51% owned by
M2000 Imex Company, Inc. ("IMEX")prior to GHI's subscription while M2000 Imex Company,
Inc. ("IMEX") is & whally- owned subsidiary of ANI.

As at date of repart, the subscription agreement has been executed and the foregoingtransaction
completed.

On May 12, 2021, the Group received a Medium Green Rating from Cicero Shades of Green far
its Green Bond offering, Cicero Shades of Groen is o subsidiary of the climateresearch institube
CICERD. It provides independent, research-based ewvaluations of gresm bond Investment
frameworks to determine their environmental strength. Their Second Opinions are graded
Dark Green, Medium Green, Light Green and Browntn offer investors better insight into the
environmental guality of green bonds.

The Group has previously secured the authonty to issue long term Gresn Bonds of upto 75
million euro with maturity of up to 7 years, including the issuance of commercialpapers, with
terms and condilions to be recommendad Dy management and [0 be approved by the BOD, The
issuance shall fund the agricultural project expansion of theGroup geared towards climate change
sdaptation and minimized environmental foolpant,

As at date of report, the Group s completing the documentary requirements and securing
necessary board approval for the incorporation of a wholly -owned foreign subsidiary for the
Issuance of green bonds.

On May 12, 2021, the Group has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)with the
Department of Agriculture ("DA") and the Authonty of Freeport Area of Bataan(“AFAB"). The MOU
alms to establish an Agr-Sector Digitalization Program which shallhave a "general purpose and
objective of Facilitating the implementation and rolling out of Ffinancial inclusion of all
stakeholders in the agriculbural sector, particulady the wnbanked stakeholders such as the
country’s farmers and fisherfolk, through areguiated financial techimology platfiorm and licensed
virtual curmency, The clients of snd/or participants in the financal technalogy exchange platform
&nd licensed virtual currency shall be purely Non-Filipinog located sutside the Philippines®,

Under the ML, the Group undertook to parfarm tha following:

facilitate, togather with the DA and AFAA, the implementation of the 1TANT &-commerce platform
&5 & financial technology (FinTech) ecosystem for the country’s farmers and fisherfolks;

secure a license from AFAB for the issuance and use of Agri Token in the Freeport Area of Bataan
(" FAR"), and upon issuance of said lioense, allow theissuance of the Agri Token to the participants
of the FinTech ecosystem;

causa the establishment of a branch of an affifate bank within FAB upon approval of the BSP,
which shall be the custodian bank for thie Agri Token, and which shall likewise service the banking
needs of the locatars within FAB;

establish and sacura a licensae for an AgriXchange Commaodities and Futures Trading Centar
("AgriXchange™) with AFAB; and

ensure the capability of the AgriXchandge to sct as 8 Virtual Currency Exchange for the conversion



of fiat to wvirfuel currencies and vice versa, in accordance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The MOU alsa provided that the Group and the Local Governmert Units in FAB, with thesupport of
the DA, shall develop and establish a food terminal, cold/dry storages, andlogistics bub in FAB
to boost the country’s food security program. The MOU shall haveimmediate effect upon signing
by the parties.

&5 at date of report, the Group s in the process of complying with its obfigations undertha MOLL,
including buf not limited to securing a Foense from AFAD to usz its virtwal currency,

On February 24, 2020, the Group's BOD approved to accept the Letter of Entent (LOL)of Vnesho
Capital to fnance the sxpansion project of the Group, Under the LD the Group was eligible
to avail up to USS100,000.000 of long-term financing. The financing shall be a long-term loan
with interest pegoged at treasury bill plus 3%. Afterthe acceptence of the LOI, the formal
apphcation process shall commence. Ag at date of repoert, the LOI application process is not yet
completed,

On February 24, 2020, the Group's BOD approved the subscription of shares of Binangonan
Fural Bank, Inc. (BRE). The subscription is in line with the inclusive growththru the establishment
of am agricuMtural acosystem being envisionsd by the Group. BRB has hcensed financial
techinology platforms that can improve the access of Filipinofarmers especially those in the
remote area, to the Agri Agra Micro Financing. As ot date of report, the subscription agroement
between the Group and BRB is not yveb completed. Also, the Group is in the prooess of securing
letter of no cbjection from BSPto transfer to Greenergy Holdings, Inc,

On March 20, 2020, the Group's BOD approved the amendment of the terms and conditions of
the stock rights offering. It shall have the entitiernent ratio of 2.5:1, withevery existing
shareholdar of 2.5 shares shall be entitied to 1 stock rights share, withthe offer price of P1 par
value,

On August 19, 2021, the Group's BOD confirmed the authority to condwct the Stock Rights
CHfering of cormmon shares 1o all eligible sharsholcers of the Company at the entitlemant ratio
af 2.5:1 and ofer price of P1.00 per share. The pnumber of shares tabe offered shall be
288,000,027,

As at date of report, the Group is in the process of application of the Stock Rights Offerof the
288,000,027 comman shares which shall be listed and traded on the Philipaine Stock Exchange.,

On March 20, 3020, the Group's BOD approved the amendment in the terms and
conditions of the following issuances and listing of warrants:

Issuance and listing of up te 10,000,000 stock warrants in faver of the Group's
employess credit copperative as H:Fm'ﬁl'ﬁd- by the BOD on Febrgary 12, Z018.

The warrants shall bave the exercise price of @ discounted rabe of 5% of the weighted daverage
price of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be exercised after 5 vears from date of
issuance, The ratio shall be 1 warrant equivalent to 1 underlying comman share upon conversion,
Explry date and otherrelevant terms and conditions shall ba determined by the BOD, subject bo
the approval of the SEC.

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the weighted average
volume of trade 30 days prior to date of expiratiaon, bo be exercised after 5 years from dabe of
lgsuance. The ratio shall be 1 warrant equivalent to 1 underlying common share upon Conversion.
Expiry date and atherrelevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BOD, subject to
the approval of the SEC,

lssuance and listing of sbock warrants in favor of existing stockholders as of record date as
approved by the BOD on February 12, 2018.

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the weighted average
voluma of trade 30 days pror o date of expiration, o be exercised after 5 years from date of
izsuance, Existing stockholéers owning 10 commen shares as of mecord date, shall be entitled
to 1 warrant. The ratio shall be 1 warrant equivalent to 1 underlying common share upon



cenversion, Record date, expiry date and other relevant terms and conditions shall be
determined by the BOD,

Issuance and listing of stock warrants in favor of current directors as approved by the BOD on
February 12, 2018,

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the weighted average
volume trade of 30 days prior o date of expiration, to be exercised after 5 years from dake of
issuance, The ratio shall be | warrant equivalent to 1 underkying common share upan conversian,
Expiry date and otherrslevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BID, Each
director serving at the tme of isseance is entitked bo up to 100,000 warrants.,

On Ockober 10, 2020 and Movember 5, 2021, the Group's BOD and sharehoiders, respectively,
approved the amendment/s to the terms and conditions of the issuance of warrants to existing
ghareholdars: to be bundlad to the Company’s Stock Rights Offering. The issuance (o
shareholders participating in the Steck Rights Offering, with every shareholder availing of threa
{3} Stock Rights, shall be entitled to one (1) warrant. The ratio shall be one (1) warmant
equivalent to one (1) underying comman share upon conversion, The warrants shall have the
exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the volume weighted average price of trade fifteen
(15} days prior to maturity, to be exercised after five {5) years from date of listing.

Izsuance and fisting of 10,000,000 stock warrants in favor of ANl Foundation asaporoved by the
BOD an April 30, 2018,

The warrants shall hawve the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the weighted average
voluma of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, 0o be exercised after 5 years from date of
issuance, The ratio shall be L warrant equivalent to 1 underlying common share wpon conversion,
Expiry date and otherrelevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BOD, The issuance
andlisting of the warrants shall be for the purpose of generating funds for the corporate social
responsanllity programs of the Group.

On May 5, 2020, the Group has enterad into a Memorandum of Agreement with the Deparimeant
of Agriculture {"DA"), Under the Agreement, the Group shall be an officialprogram partner-
p!rﬂclpﬂﬂt of DA's e-KADIWA ni Anl at Kita Fr'ﬂgrll'l'l. Ag sich, the Group becomes an online
eefler of agricultural products,

The DA's e-KADIWA ni Ani at Kita Program is a markat system which facilitates the seling of
majer agricultural goods at reasonably low prices to the consuming public through partnership
with Local Government Units and the Private Sectors. To further the services of the KADIWA ni
Ani at Kita Program, the DA has lasnched the e-KADIWA an online market portal of pletform
whereby buyers and sellers of agricultural and fishery products can transact onling,

As at date of report, the Group s actively participating in the foregoing program throughits ANL
Exprass onling platform.

On Movember 26, 2020, the Group has entered Into a Memorandum of Agreement [“M0A"] with
the Philippine International Trading Corporation {"PITC"} (o collaborate on the importation of
raw rmatarials o provide healthier eand more afferdable “BigMa® Bigas-Mais (rce-corm] blend bo
the Filipino consumers. The Group s set ta locally produce with its corm contract growers and
include in iks product portfolio the "BigMa™brand, The "BigMa" or Bigas-Mais blend is a Low
Glycarmic and rich in dietary fiber staple food altermative for the Filiping contumars, With tha
production of BigMa, the Group will be able to reduce carbon foot print, provide more livelihood
Lo lucal fanmersas the source of "Mais®, help the country achieve food-staple sulfickency faster,
while providing a healthier and affordable option to the public.

Az at date of report, the Group made its initial shipment through the foregoing collsboration
during the 1st guarter of 2021.

On December 28, 2020, the Group's BOD approved the atquisition of additional shareholdings
in Fucamng Trading Limited {(Fucang] from 51% up to 7 1% for a price to be determingd based on
the audited net book wvalue of Fucang as at December 31, 2021. As at date of report, the
sdditichal acquisition is not yet completed,

Fucany, a subsidiary, scguired 70% ownership of Guangehou Lexian Fruil Industry Co., Lid.



(Lexian) in 2018, a foreign entity incerporated in China engaged in wholesale trade{see Note 31},
On Dctober 25, 2018 the BOD of the Group authonzes the expanskon of business operations in
Australia through acguisition of existing companies, Accordingly, on December 28, 2018 the
Group made a deposit amaounting to ALS172,000 or PE.3 million to BSE PTY LTD (see Nota 15).
The maln activity of the Australian opesations Is primarily processing of frult and vegetabdes far
distrbution bo food processors, schools, restaurants, mining sites and airdirnes. As at reporting

date, it Is already in theprocess of finalizing the acquisition agreement and it will be included as
& subsidiary on the first quarter of 2022,

On Mevember B, 2018, the Group has signed a P1.9 billion deal with a Chinese Company Tor the
purchase of various agricufture produce particiiarly tropicat fruits, The contract was signed with
sinoChem Group [SinoChem), a Beijing Based conglomerale engaged in the production and
trading of chemicals, fertilizers and otheragricultural products. Under the agresment, SinoChem
willl buy tropical fruits from theGroup's contract growers in the Philippings in the naxt three years.
SinoCherm will alsoprovide suppart through the supply of affordabde fertilisers, The deal aims to
provide support to local farmers and boost country’s market access to Ching,

Due to the heaith and mobility restrictions brought about by the COVID-19 pandamic, bath
parties opted to defer the implementation of the agreement in 2020 and plan to finalize the
termis thareof in 2032, The parties intend to utifizae this deal in the BigMa {rce-com mix) Project
and axpansion of banana plantation,

On December 20, 2019, the Board of Directors of the Group approved joint vanture arany similar
engagement with Department of Justice through Bureau of Corrections forthe develogpment of
gt least 2,000 hectares of integrated Agri-Tourism corn plantationin Palawan. The Group will
fund the development while the Bureau of Corrections will provide the land. The proposed joint
vanturs is inbended to axpand the Group's business through corn production and agri -tourism,
As at reporting dake, the Bureau of Corrections is awaiting the endorsement of the agreemeant
by the Departmant of Justice 2 Ninalize the transaction, Also, due to the health and mobility
restrictions brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic, the implementation of the agresment in
2020 was deferred. However, the parties plan to finalize the terms thereof in 2022,

On November 5, 2021, the Group's BOD approved the authority to register, participate, and
Bppaint a company adminstrator's or representatives in Rice Exchange, which isa digital
marketplace for international rce trading. As at reporting date, the Group is completing its
application for registration.

On October 10, 2020 and Movember 5, 2021, the BOD and the sharehaldérs of the Parent
Company, respectively, approvesd the increase of the Group's authorized capitalstock from
P2,000,000,000 to up bo PS,000,000,000, The increase s intended for anyfuture capital mising
ocihvities, This 5 also In anticipation of the issuvance of werrants and stock rghis offer of
288,000,027 common shares from the Group's existing capitalsbock,

On Movember 5, 2021, the Grouep's BOD approved the subscription of Agrinurture Devebopment
Hoddengs, Imc. (“ADHI™) of nine hundred ninety-nine (99%) primary sharesof Agrimurture HK
Holdings, Ltd. [ANI HK} at par value of USD 1, ANI HK is & wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent
Company and ADHI is a wholly owned subsidiary of Greenergy Holdings, Inc.

On Septamber 7, 2021, the Group's BOD approved the authority to incorporate a wholly-ownad
foraign subsidiary, AgriNurture Financlal S.8 r.l. in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, for the
issuance of the long-term green bonds of up to 75 millon Eures, As at date of report, the Group
is in the process of incorporating the foreign subsidiary.

On December 29, 2018, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock of the Group
from ona billkon (AL1,000,000,000) divided into one billian (1,000,000,000% comman shares bo
bwio billion (P2,000,000,000) divided into two biftion {2,000,000,000) common shares both with
g par value of one peso (Fl). Hence, this has given effect to the subscnptionof Earthright
Holdings, Inc. to two hundred fifty milbon common shares (250,000,000), increasing the total
subscribed shares from 668,003,686 In 2017 to 1,018,274 088 in 2018 and total subsoribed and
paid shares from GG68,003,686 in 2017 to 830,774,088 in 2018, Subscription receivable at par
valua amounted bo P191,615.200 and P193,672,800 as at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively,



n February 24, 2020, the Board has approved the decrease in the par value of the shares of
the Group fram one peso (P1.00) to ten centavos (PO.10), The Board has likewlse approvedthe
reclassificatian of 40 millien (40,000,000} unissusd common sharss with par value of onepase
(P1.00}) per share or an aggregate par vaiue of farty million pesos (R40,000,000) to 400,000,000
voting preferred shares with par value of ten centavos (FD.10) per share or anaggregate par
value of farty million pesos (P40, 000,000) subject tn the approval of the SEC.

Upan approval af the SEC, the Group's authorized capital stock will increase to bwenty billien
(20,000,000,000) shares for a total par valee of two billion pesos (PQ2,000,000,000] which shall
be divided into the following:

Commaon shares, consisting of 19,600,000,000 shares with a par value of ten centavas(PO0.10)
per share for @ total par valee of PL,960,000,000;

Preferred shares, consisting of 400,300,000 shares with a par value of ten centaves (P0.10) per
share for a total par value of B40,000,000;

The prefarred shares shall have tha fodlowing fights, privileges, limitatiens and restrictions which
shall also appear on the Certificates of the Preferred Shares of the Corporation;

Thes right to vote and be voted far;

The right to receive, out of unrestricted retalned earnings of the Group, participating dividends
at the rate as may be deemed proper by the BOD under the prevalling marketoonditbons or such
other relevant factors as the BOD may consider. Said dividend may be dectared and pavable at
the discretion of the BOD after taking into account the Group's earning, cash flows, financial
conditions and other factors as the BOD may consider relevant; and

Im the liquidation, dissalution and winding up of the Growp, whether voluntary or otherwise, the
right to be paid in full or ratably, insafar as the asgets of the Group will permit, the par value or
face value of each preferred share as the BOD may determineupon their Issuance, plus unpaid
and accrued dividends up to the current dividend period, befére any assets of the Group shall
be paid or distributed to the holders of thecomman shares,

The common shares shall possess all the rights, privileges and prerogatives provided bylaw,
including the right to vote and be vobed for,

The stockholders of the Group shall have no pre-emptive right to subscribe to or purchase any
or all issues or dispositions of shares of any class of the Group.

The change in par value is intended to increase the number of shares of the Group that will give
mere rading opportunities to the shareholders and investors. The decrease in par valuewill make
the shares more affordable to small investors, hence will be more marketable and liguld in the
market,

The reclassification is intended for any future capital raising activities, The amounk to be raised
shall be used as additonal working capital and funding for the Group's expansion project
particularly the craabion of the Agricultural Ecaosystem to benafit local farmers

Az at reparting date, the approval for the decrease in the par value of the shares was deferadby
the stockholders.

On Movember 5, 2021, the Parent Company's BOD confirmed the approval of the reclassification
of the Parent Company's Forty Milkion (40,000,000} unissued common shareswith par value of
One Pesa (PL.00) per share or &0 aggregate par value of Forty Millian Pesos{Phpdd,000,000.00)
to 400,000,000 voting preferred shares with par value of Ten Centavos{R0. 10) per share or an
sggregate par valug of Forty Milllon Pesos (P40,000,000), to be subscribed by Earthright
Heldings, Inc.



The Group’s registered principal office address is at No. 54 National Road, Dampol 11-A,

Pulilan, Bulacan,

The Company operates its agro-commercial businesses through operating divisions and whaolly-

owned or majority-owned subsidiaries that are organized into business segments.

REVENUE
(Philippine Peso) September 30, 2022 September 30, 2021
Philippine Operations
Export 1,053,559,29 1,186,019,719
Local Distribution and Dthers 208,965,571 490,793,912
Retail & Franchising 36,992,309 16,541,019
Sub- Total 1,259,517,175 1,693, 754,650
Foreign Operations
Hongkang/China 1,519,580,051 1929,752,905
Total 2,819,097,226 3,623,507 ,555
Results of Operations

MNine Months ended September 30, 2022 versus September 30, 2021
Net Sales

The ANI Group generated o consolidated sale of goods and services of Php 2,82 billion for the
nine manths ended September 30, 2022 22% decrease gver the same pariod last year. For the
first nine months of 2022, Philippine operations contributed 46% while sales from Foreign
operations accounted for 54% of consolidated sales. Sale of goods and services by businass
segment are as follows:

[uie to the implementation of lackdown and limited mobility in varnowus parts of China irn the
latter part of first guarter 2022, export of bananas and various goods decreases which resulted
to the Group's export sales to Php .05 billien, a 11% lower compared to the same period in
2021. The decrease is brought about by the challenge in the logistics in China browght about
by the pandemic.

Local distribution sales posted a decrease of 57.43% to Php 208.97 milllan for the nineg months
ended September 30, 2022 from Pha 490,93 million for the same period in 2021,

Retail and franchising sales registerad an increase of 118% amounting to Php 35.99 millian for
the first three quartess of 2022 from Php 16,94 million for same period in 2021,

Combined Foreign frading operations posted an 21% decrease jn sales in the first threse
quiarter of 2022 from 1.93 billion in 2021 o Phpl. 52 Gillion in 2022 dee (o ockdewn in China
gnd HK.



Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists of;

Cost of purchasing fruits and wegetables and raw materials from growers and other

traders and suppliers including freight in charges;

Cost of real estate Includes development cost for all properties to be sold, incuding

shiogs, ofice bulldings and hobels Iocabed in China

Personnal expenses, which mclude salary and wages, employves benefits and retirementoosts
for employees irvolved in the production process;

Repeirs/maintenance costs, depreciation costs relating to production equipment,

vehicles, facilities and buildings:

Fuel and ofl costs reiating to the production and distribution process

For the ning months ended September 30, 2022, ANI Group's cost of sales amounted to Php
2.44 billion down by 23% from Php J.16 billion for the same pedod in 2021, relative to the
decrease in sakes during the quarber,

Gross Profit

Consolidated groess profit down by Php B9.76 millon or 19.25% from Php 4@66.26 million to
Fhp3Pe.24million for the nine months ended for same period fast year. The decrease wasdue
to significant decrease in revenue from foreign operation

Operating Expensas

The Group's operating expanses consist of salling expenseas and administrative expenses; which
include the following major items;

Taxes and licansas

Salaries, wages and other employee benefits
Advertising

Rental

Desprrieciation aml amortization

Freight cut and handling cost

Consolidabed operating expenses for the three quarters of 2022 amounted to Phpa66. 71 millian

up from Php224.80 millon for the same period last year since the start of implementation of
total lockdown in China dug (o pandemic.

Finance Costs

Finance Costs for the first three quarter of 2022 amounted ta Php 36.73 million compared to
Php 26.10 million for the previous year.

Neat Profit

Consolidated net profit decreased by 236% from Phpl.2 billisn to Phpl00.35 million for the nine
manths ended September 30, 2022 for same period last year, dus to recognition of revaluation
increment on Investmant propesty.



Einancial Condition
Assets

ANT Group’s consaolidated total assets as of Segtember 30, 2022 amounted-to PE.01 billion a
glight imcrease of 1% from P 5.94 billon at December 31, 2021, The following explain the
mvements in the asset accounts:

The Group’s cash balance decreased by P11.2 milion from P 83,20 milion in 2021 to P68.91 million
in 2022 primarily due Lo payment of payables and lpans during the peried.

Receivables incroass by PO1.72 million during the guarter from P741.84 million in 2021 to
PB33.56 million in 2022,

Advances to relabed parties and stockhodder both-decrease by 27.10 &nd 177.97 million
respectively dueto liquidation and collections during the quarter.

Inventory balance increased from 2 year and 2021 balance of 81 .32 billlon to P1.40 billion in
2022 due to increass in demand for fresh produce during the guarter,

Deposits for future investments include deposits made by Fucang to acquire 50% ownarship of
the subscriptions to Guangzhou Tianchen Real Estate Development Co., Lidand 30% of Lushan
Supply Chain Managament (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., a company engagedin banana trading n China,
Froperty, plant and equipment incuding intangibles, investment property and right-of- wsa
gssels Increase from R2.05 bilkon in December 31, 2021 to BZ.07 bilon In September 30,
2022 dus to amortization during the period,

Liabilitias
Consalidated labilities amounted to 1,67 billion as of September 30, 2022,

Tota: current liabilities amounted to £1.57 billion and £ 1.71 billlon as of September 30, 2022
gnd Decamber 31, 2021, respectively. The decrease is mainly dus to payments of loans and
bormowings and trade payables.

Equity

Consolidated stockholders’ squity emounted to Pd.34 billion as of September 30, #2022, The
increaseis due to the Improvements of nesulls of operations during the period.

Liguidity and Capital Resources
MNet cash used I operatang activities for the first nine months of 2022 was 10.34 million

Meat cash flow provided by Investing activities is 12 =07 million due to cellections and Bguidation
of advances during the period.

Met cash used In financing activities is Phip 142.70 millon which s due to payments of loans,
leasesand advances from relabed parties during the period.

The company has no knowledge and not aware of ary materdal event/s and uncertainties known
to the management that would address the past and would have an impact on the future
operations of the following:

a) Any known brends, demands, commitments, events or uncertaintes that will
hawve amaterial iImpact an aur liguidity

b) Any events that will tigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
materialto the company, induding any default or accelaration of obligation,

c} All material off-balance sheet btransactions, armrangements, obligations and
other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other persons



created duringthe pariod,
d) Any materiel commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of

such commitments and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.
a)] Any known trends, events or uncertainties that hawe had or that are reasonably
expected to have a materal favorable or unfavorable impact om net

salesfrevenues/income from continuing operations.
i Any significent elerments of incomefoss did not arise from sur continuing epenation,
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AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30,2022

{With Comparalive Figures as of December 31, 2021)

fAmounts in Phillppine Pesos )

Notes 2022 2021
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash ] 68,911,508 B0,195.232
Trade and other receivables - net 7 B33,560,625 741,839,091
Due from related parties - net 22 249,069,688 276,167,524
Due from stockhokiers 42 97,768,115 275,733,443
Inventories ] 1,402,920,590 1,317,725,194
Prepayments and other curment assels - nat 5 188 529 061 191 822938
Total Cusrent Assets 2,840,759 587 2883483421
Moncurrent Assets
Financial assets at fair value throwgh other
comprehensive income (FVOLT) 1o 49,636,200 47,801,400
Property and aguipment — net 1 569,110,675 614,541,295
Investment property 13 1,269,175,572 1,1B8,425,936
Intangible assets - net i4 168,337 407 167,174,787
Rght-of-use assets 27 64,772,913 79,686,049
Balogical assats 15 141,651,133 59,301,733
Deferred tax asset 26 10,009 10,009
Deposits and other noncurment assets - net 16 908,279,973 896,196 018
Total Noncurrent ASSELs 3170:973,882 05 12
6,011,733 469 5.,936,621,547
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and cther payables 17 600,908,825 611,431,024
Short-term loans payable 18 708,721,410 847,500,000
Current portion aff;
Long-term loans payable 18 123 306,324 90,195,081
Lease labiities 27 291,160 291,160
Due to melated parties 22 117,495,738 154,989,542
Incoma tax payable 20,780,236 4 207 801
Total Current Lisbilties 1,571,503,692 1,708,914 608
MNoncurrent Lisbilities
Nancurment portion of:
Leng-term bans payable ig 25,372,043 25,372,043
Lease labdities i 318,471 318472
Retirement bensfit liabilty 25 19,275,038 19,275 038
Deferred tax labdities 26 46,284,279 30,606,569
Tatal Mo Lia Bilifie Eﬁllﬂezg T'!I& Fa. 123
Total Liabiities 1,666,753,525 1,788 485 730

{ Farward)



{Carryfarwand)
Motes 2022 4021
Equity
Capkal stock PL par value 20 B3Z831,688 §32 831 688
Authorzed = 2,000,000,000 shares in
2021 and 2020
Subscribed - 1,024 446 888 shares in 2021 and
2020 (net of subscriptions receivable at par value
of P191,615,200 in 2021
and P193,672 800 in 2020)
Additional paid-in capital 20 3,602,050,960 3.602,050,960
Defick (1,759,993 307) (1.848 388,705)
Met oumulative remeasurement gain
on retirement benefits 23 1,785 1,785
Fiorreagn currency transiation reserve 285,759,051 236,545 517
Revaluation surplus - net of deferred tax 11 B4,611,960 Bd, 611,060
Noncontroling interest 30 717,807 1,24 12
Total Equity 4,344,979.944 4,148,134 B17

6,011,7 &9 2,936,621,547

S pOrDm Bt e g Molgs o Coroldaded Finandgl Sralemanrs,



AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THl NENE MONTHS ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2023 AND 2021

{Armounts in Philippine Pados ]
For the Quarter-ended September  For the Mine months-ended
30 September 30
. Motes " 2922 T z022°  2em
HET BEVEMNUE 1 BES.015 270 1,911 S4T 047  LE10607, 336 1 63E 507555
EOST QF RALES b - TEEPEF. 514 [ AFLTELOGE A4 54540 1157 00000
GRESS PROFIT 109,044, 755 135194978 376,441,580 455, MG, B
GENERAL AMD ADMINISTRATIVE ENFENSES 24 A% 4&1, 318 B8, 66T, 540 &6, 709, 000 &d4,004, 573
REERATIMNG EARELY AR AR 817 JRLERSAD 169 TIRES4  GALANGIIE
OTHER INCOME [CHARGES)
Gan on change in far valpe of nvesment progerdy 12 - ' c
Gan &0 Ehangs in far vk of bokegecsl s 14 40,698 518 = 82349 401
Frnares msta .1y {11,104, 530) {8,078 517) [38,720,740) |35 007.878)
mered Ixoms 1,539 8,083 11.50% 13,151
Clihes Fcoene - nef Fik] BEO. 333 2 103 SE6EE1 2 1LS3INEFI [ opeecg08f
QDT EFN 0 1O145e8. 13T 20 FTEEEEE) 0 FRE.LTV S
FROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAK 48 HE0,055 1,08% 069 560 L¥F2O7.378 L IEG N0 490
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Cuarmeni 3 AF7151 6576913 21,356 555 ¥ 420,758
Lt 18,174, 83% = 15 58T 350
14071, THD 6878033 LE]T]
MET FROFIT 5 1 IWI L300 558, T3
Reclresifmbde (o ol oF s
Escruings diTanancis on TFasaiarmn s
__of yregn openitions 217,881,357 18,231,725 O6AFLIET  BN,515,508
Mol mckesificebls bo profil o oes
Rpvalgrinm morement - nes of determed tax 12
it L O o f reirerswed Dol
TOTAL COEPREHENSIVE INCOME 553 {15} 108 B4 136
Mat profl (iose) sttrigsdabls fon
Coquty Poiders of the Parest Company FDGAT,TER 1,545,253, 566 88,385,350 GE1, 853,244
Pagerement o Bng REESE 4. 160,518 [46&, TED S28] 11,%57.972 519 5
34,808,375 1,078.493,838 100,383,370 1,309,558,738
Total cemprehensive Income (o]
FIaEy PR
Bty PukSars al 1P Pavesl Cosgsaim 53 382,705 1,563,124,208 138,391, 511 34 955, 147
Mmoot g st 5888714 (466390833  SSASIEAY 33584387
39162415 1096824363 196,845,126 68,519,505 _
Banic ard disfed ssrmings | oss] per shars
attriEsstahie to squity hokder
it i Parest GO Fatl T LBE 2.1 283
Bt s L R [ 1




AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 AND 2021

(Amounts in Philippine Pesas)
Motes 2023 2021
CAPTTAL STOHK - 21 par vals 20
Balance at beginning of ysar B32,831,688 B30,774,088
F.u.l'J—E duE e yuar - !IDE?EM
832,831,688 834,831 688
ADDITIONAL PATID-IN CAPITAL 20
Balance at beginning af yaar 3,602,050,960 3,367 0 L Fol
Additions during the year - 34,979,200
Balonce at end of yoear 3,602,050,960 3603 050, 960
DEFICIT
Balance at baginniug of year {1,848 388,705} (2,386,988,751)
Met proft (loss), as restated BE,395,398 6B1,152 244
I CXdT e m = a
Balance at end of year (1,759,993,307) {1, 7056836,5GE)
MHET CUMULATIVE REMEASUREMENT GATIN
ON RETIREMENT BEMEFITS
Balance at beginning of year 1,785 3,974 345
Remeasurement bas = -
Balbnce at end of yeor i5 1,785 3,074 345
FOREIGN CURREMCY TRANSLATIOMN RESERVE
Balance at beginning of ydar 236,545,517 EH. LR FL
Fachange dferences curing The yEar 49 713533 6,530 505
Bakince ot eng of veje ] 85, 759.080 Ti.265.130
REVALUATION SURPLUS - NET OF
DEFERRED TAX 12 11,960 20 306 9519
NOMCONTROLLING INTEREST 30
Balance ar beginning of yaar 1,240,481,612 7EE, 096,138
Share nc
et profit during the year 115957672 519.406,495
Exchange difference on transtion
of fareign aperstions 47,278,223 67,044,316
kemeasurament D§s on retrement benefits = -
Balbnce ot end ol year 1,299 717 807 1.371 446 049
TOTAL EQUITY 4,3"‘4‘_#?9.941 4,157 219,483

BEF ACTOIm AN IWONEE [0 Lo SRR FeanCkN SCArrraviis



AGRINURTURE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 AND 2021

{Amaunts in Phillppine Pesas )
Hotes 2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

PFrofit before noome tax 137,297 378 1,139,379 450

Adjustrnents far;
Daprocation and amertization 12,14 39,054,992 40372951
Finance cost 18,24 36,729,749 26,097 870
Gain on valuation of investment property = [955,916,916)
Unrealized forelgn exchange lbsses - net 28 48,541,354 47,478 255
Interast ncoma 26 (11,505) {13,151)
Gain on change in fair vakie of bioko asset 15,15 [62,349,401) i
Reversal of alowance for impaimment 24 -

—Gain of FV asset vakiation 11,24 -

Oiperating profit before working capital changes 199,262,563 397,998,499

Cecrease (increases) in:

Trade and otier necew ables ) (91, 721,534) (202,165,421

Irventories 8 (85195396} (210.,255,032)

Prepayments and other current assets 9 3,293,877 {61,204 262)
Increase (decrease) in trade oiher payables (10,532 1599]) {30,735, 163]
Biel cash provided by (used n) operetions 18,117,310 (106,365,379)
Income takes paid {#.784,220) (224002711
Interest mecahad 2] 11,505 13,151
Het cash flows provided by (used i)

operating activities 10,344,595 (128, 752.499]
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Collections receled fram: FF

Belated parties 27,097 836 135,106 368

Smckholders 237,921,807 290,519,144
Advances made 1o 22

Helated parties (37,493,804) (148,981,709)
Decrease (increase) in:

Other nonowment assets 16 (12,083,055) {53.,611.610])
Changis in:

Investment property 13 (BD,749,636)

Bizlogeal assets 15 (20,000,000 .
Proceeds from sale of propery and sgquipmarnt 12 6375628 5,595 283
Met cash fMows provided by (used in}

investing activities 121,068 776 228,627 475

( Forwand )
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o E
{Carmyfarwand)
Motes
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCIMNG ACTIVITIES
Payments of;
Loans payable 18 (105,967,347)  (57.673,518)
Intereck 18,25 (36,739, 749) (26,087 871)
Advances from refated parties a1 (8,558,710}
Net cash flows provided by (used in)
financing actvities (142,697 ,096) (92,330,099}
MET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (11,283,724) 7,544,878
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ] 80,195,232 57,626,380
CASH AT END OF YEAR (] 68,911,508 65,171,258

Seie progriDanping Mobes o Consohgaied Findmos SEanamenrs,
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AGRINURTURE; INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Corporate Information and Status of Operations

AgriNurture, Inc. (the "Parent Company™] was registered with the Philippine Securties and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on February 4, 1937 ta engage in the manufacturing, producing, growing, buying,
selling, distribiuting, marketing at who'esale only insofar as may be permitted by law, all kinds of goods,
commaodities, wares and merchandise of every kind and description and to enter into &ll kinds of
contracts fer the export, Import, purchase, acguisition, sale at wholesale anly and other disposition for
its own account as principal or In representative capacity as manufacturer's representabwve, wp
consignment of all kinds of goods, wares, merchandisa or products, whether natural or artificial,

In March 2009, the SEC approved the change in the Parent Company’s primary purpose to engage in
corporabe farming, im all its brancheas for the planting, growing, cultivating and producing of crops, plents
and fruit bearing trees, of all kinds and in connection to engage in agri-tourism and other pleasurable
pursuits for the enjoyments and apprecation of mather nature and ecology and to engage in the
establishmant, operation and maintenance of equipment, structures and fadlities for the preservation,
canservation and storage of foods, grains and supplies, lise cold storage and refrigeration plants.

The Parent Company's secondary purpose indude, among others, to purchase, acquire, lease, sall and
convey real properties such as land, buildings, Tactories and warehouses and machines, squipment and
other personal properties as may be necessary or incidental to the conduct of the corporate business,
and to pay In ash, shares of capital stock, debentures and other evidences of indebtedness, or ather
securitses, a5 may be deemed expedient for any business ar property acquired by the Parent Company.

The Parent Company and itz subsidiaries {collectively referred to as the “Group®) are involved in varous
agrm-tommerdal businesses such as export trading and distribution of fruits and vegetables, retail
franchising and real estate.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepamd on a golng concam basis, which assumes
that the Group will be able to continue Increasing revenues and Improving operations despite losses
from operations up bo 2016, While the Group has incurmed accumulabed losses of BL, 790,641,066 and
Bl 848 388,705 as at September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Group's management assessad
that the going concern assumption remains to be appropriate since the Group has been continuously
growing revenue and improving profitability and is continuing to expand its core business and increase
this digtribution
{fruits, vegetables and rice) and export sales channals, Its retall arm |s expanding the franchise nebwork
with steps to cover not only the Philippines oo a national basis bul oversess as well. The Group has
started an active campaign to gain new and recover clients through marketing and seliing activities in
the Philippines and overseas. Part of these activities include looking for more opportunities in the greater
Middla East, China and Asian markets. Akso, with the addition of Zhongshan Fucang Trading Co., to the
Group In 2017, it will continuously deliver exceptional quality goods and services and improve its present
business activities through commadity trading, real estate development, and set up of new platforms,
The Group shall continue to grow organic business and expand new materials with new product
introductions in the coming years to completely wipe out accumulated losses.

The consolidated financial statements do not indicate any adjustments to reflect possible future effects
of recoverabllity and classification of 2ssets or the amount and classification of liabilities that may
result showld the Group be unable to continue as a golng concern. Morecver, most loans were already
comverted to term loans in order to increase the fexibility of the Group's capital and mininize the
immediate iImpact on operational cash flows. As at Septemnber 30, 2022 and Decamber 31, 2021, the
Group's current agssets already exceedsad its current liabilities by 21,259,407, 268 and P1,174, 568,813,
respectively, Further, the Group launched Its own e-commerce platform through its mobile application
ared AMI Express website where customers can order fresh produce, canned beverages, rice and ather
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essential goods for delivery to customers. The Group is also lBunching new products such as Plant
Based Meat, Non-Dairy loe Cream, Big Chill Healthy Orinks in cans for local and export distribution,
These developments are expected to contribute to a positive growth in the future for the Group's
revenue and net eamings.

Thee fodlowing are the recent developments to continuous business expansion:

On December 20, 2019 and September 9, 2020, the BOD and the shareholders of the Parent Company,
respectivaly, have approved the issuance of shares to Plentex Philippines, Inc. (Plentsx]). Mentex has
subscribed for 6,172,800 shares and the Parent Company has agreed to |ssue the same at a value of
P18 per share which s to be paid through the Bsuance of 30,000,000 shares of Plenbex Limited,

Plentex is a Philippine Corporation that is developing a substantial large scale agri-businesscenter in
Tacloban, Leyte. Plentex s a subsidiary of Plentex Limited, unlisted Awstralian public company in
Victoris, Australia.

As at date of report, the 6,172,800 shares were subscribed and 2,057,600 shares were paid,

On February 1, 2021, the Group entered into a Memorandum of Agreement ("MOA") with the Unified
Bagobo-Tagabawa Tribe ["UBTT") and the Mational Commission on Indigenous Peoples ["RCIPT) to
promote inclusive agricultural and economic growth by pursuing land productivity thru the developrmant
of rice ang coen plantation in Bansatan, Davao del Sur, The Group will invest 10 the developimeant,
operation &nd management of the rice and corn plantation while the UBTT will be entitled to an annual
royalty fee Anpual Net Profit share in the project. Further, all employment and labor requirements of
the projoct shall be primarily sourced from the UBTT. NCIP shall monitor and evaluate compliance of
the parties in the terms and conditions of the MOA. The Gmoup, aleng with the project shall develop
programs on health, skilks development and altemative livelinood for the communities, The parties, in
colisharation with other national government agencies shall likewise conduct tree planting activities in
at least two thousand {2,000} hectares of land,

Az gt date of report, the parties have complied with the reguirements to fully execute the agreement,
incheding but not limited to the Free and Prior Informed Consent (FRIC), as indicated by the issuance of
a Certification Precondition by the NCIP.

On February 23 2021, Ocean Biochemistry Technology Research, Inc. ("OBT1") and Greenergy Hoidings,
Ing. ("GHI") heve entered inte & subscription agreement for the issuance of 37 500 cormmon shares of
OBTT &t par value of 2100 per share for 4 total pggregate value of 83,750,000, OATI i & corparation
primarily engaged in manufacturing and trading, and is 51% owned by M2000 Imex Company, Inc,
("TMEX™) peior to GHI'S subscription while M2000 Irmex Cormpany, Ing, (CIMEX™) is & wholly-owned
subsidiary of ANI.

Az at date of report, the subscription agreement has beern executed and the foregoing transaction
completed.

On May 12, 2021, the Group réeceived a Medium Green Rating from Cicero Shades of Green for its Green
Bond offerng. Clcaro Shades of Gréan s a subsidiary of tha cdimata ressarch institute CICERO, It
provides independent, research-based evaluations of gresn bond investment frameworks to determine
their Enviranmental strength,
Their Second Opinions are graded Dark Green, Medium Green, Light Green and Brown to offer Investors
better insight into the environmental quality of green bonds.

The Group has previously secured the authority o lssue long term Green Bonds of up to 75 millian euro
with maturity of up to 7 years, induding the issuance of commercial papers, with terms and conditions
ta be meoommendad by mansgement and (o be approved by the BOD. The sseance shsll fund the
agrcultural project expansion of the Group geared towards climate change adaptation and minimized
environmental fisokprint,

As al date of report, the Group is compdeting the documentary reguirements and securing necessary
board approval for the incorporation of 8 wholly-owned foreign subsidiary for the ssuance of green bonds.

On May 12, 2021, the Group has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the
Crepartment of Agriculture ("DA"} and the Authority of Freeport Area of Bataan (“AFAB")}. The MOU aims
to establish an Agri-Sector Digitalization Program which shall have a "general purpose and abjective of
facilitating the implementation and rolling owt of finandal inclusion of all stakeholders in the agricultural
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sector, particularly the unbanked stakeholders such as the country's farmers and fisherfolk, throwgh a
regulated financial technology platform and licensed virtuval currency, The clients of sandf/or participants
in the financial technology exchange platform and licensed virtual currency shall be purety Non-Filipinos
located outside the Philippines”,

Under the MOU, the Group undertook to perform the following:

facilitate, together with the D& and AFAB, the implementation of the 1ANI e-cormmeroe platform as &
fimancial technology (FinTech) ecosystam for the countrysfarmers and fisharfnlls;

secure a license from AFABR for the Esuance and use of Agrl Token in the Freeport Area of Bataan
("FAB"), and upon issuance of said license, allow the issuance of the Agri Token to the participants of
the FinTech ecosystem;

cause the sstablishment of a branch of an affiliate bank within FAB upon approval of the BSP, which
shall be tha custodian bark for the Agri Token, and which shall likewise service the banking neads of
the locators within FAB;

establish and seture & license for an AgriXchange Commodities and Futures Tradng Cenber
(“Mgridchanga®} with AFAR; and

ansura tha capability of the AgriXchange to act as a Virtual Currency Exchange for the conversion of fiat
to virtual currencles and vice wersa, in-accordance with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The MOU also provided that the Group and the Local Government Uinits in FAB, with the support of the
DA, shall develop end establish a food terminal, cold/dry storages, and logistics hub in FAB to bogst the
country's food security program. The MOU shall have immediate effect upon signing by the parties.

As at date of report, the Group is in the process of comalying with its obligations under the MOU, ircluding
but nat limited to securing a license from AFAB to use its virtual currency.

On February 24, 2020, the Group’s BOD approved o socept the Letber of Intent (LOL) of Wnesto Capital
o fimance the Expansion project of the Group. Under the LGOI,
the Group was eligible to avail up to US$100,000,000 of long-term financing. The financing shall be a
long-term ean with interest pegged At treasury bill plus 3%, After the acceptance af the LOT, the formal
application process shall commence. As at date of report, the LOI application process s not yet
completed,

On February 24, 2020, the Group's BOD approved the subscription of shares of Binangonan Rural Bank,
Inc. (BRAY. The subscription is in line with the inclusive growth thew the establishment of an agricultural
ecosystem being envisioned by the Group. BRE has licensed financial technology platforms that can
improva the acoess of Flkping farmers espedally those in the remobe area, to the Agr Agra Micro
Financing. #4s at date of report, the subscription agreement between the Group and BRB is not yet
completed, Alsn, the Group i in the process of securing letter of no objection from BSP to transfer to
Greenergy Haldings, Ine.

n March 20, 2020, the Group's BOD approved the amendment of the toerms and conditions of the stock
rights offering. It shall have the entitlement ratio of 2.5: 1, with every existing sharebolder of 2.5 shares
shall be entitled to 1 stock rights sham, with the offer price of P1 par value.

On August 19, 2031, the Group’s BOD confirmed the authorty to conduct the Stock Rights Offering of
comman shares to all eligible shareholders of the Company at the entitlement atlo of 2.5:1 and offer
price of P1.00 per share, The number of shares to be offered shall be 288,000,027,

As at date of report, the Group is in the process of application of the Stock Rights Offer of the 238,000,027
common shares which shall be listed and traded on the Philippine Stock Exchange,

On March 20, 2020, the Group's BOD approved the amendment in the terma and conditions of the
following issuances and listing of warrants:

Issuance and lisking of wp to 10,000,000 stock warrants in favor of the Groups employess credit
cooperative as approved by the BOD on February 12, 2018,

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the weighted average price of
trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, {o be exercised after 5 years from date of issuance. The ratio
shall be 1 warrant equivaient to 1 underlying comman share upon conversan,. Expiry date and other
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relevant terms ang conditions shall be determined by the BOD, subject to the approval of the SEC.

The warranis shall have the exércise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the weighted average valume
of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, (o be exercsed after 5 years from dale of ssuance, The
ratio shall be 1 warrant eguivalent to 1 wnderlying common share upon conwersion. Expiry date and
other relevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BOD, subject to the approval of the SEC,

Issuance and listing of stock warrants in favor of existing stocitholders as of record date as approved by
the BOD on February 13, 2018,

The warrants shall have the exercdse price of 2 discounted rate of 5% of the weighted average valume
of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, to be exercised after 5 years from date of issuance. Existing
stockholders omning 10 common shares as of record date, shall be entitled to 1 warmant. The ratio shall
be 1 warrant equivalent ta 1 wnderlying comman share upon conversion. Record date, axpiny date and
ather relevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BOD,

Issuance and listing of stock warrants in favor of current directors as approved by the BOD on February
12, 2018,

The warrants shall have the exerdse price of a discounted rate of 5% of the weighted average volume
trade of 30 days prior ko date of expiration, to be exercsed after 5 vears from date of issuance, The
ratin shafl be 1 warranl eguivalent to 1 underlying common share upon conversion. Expiry date and
other relevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BOD. Each director serving at the bme
of issuance is entitled to wo to 100,000 warrants.

On October 10, 2020 and November 5, 2021, the Group's BOD and shareholders, respectvely, approved
the amendment/s o the terms and conditions of the issuance of warrants to existing shareholders to
be bundied to the Company's Stock Rights Offering. The Issuance to shareholders participating In the
Stock Rights Offering, with every shareholder availing of three (3) Stock Rights, shall be entitled to sne
(1) warrant. The ratic shall be one (1) warrant equivalent to one (1) underlying common share upan
converslon, The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the volume weighted
average price of trade fifteen (15) days prior te maturity, to be exercised after five (5) years from date

of listing.,

Issuance and listing of 10,000,000 stock warrants in favor of ANI Foundation as approved by the BOD
on April 30, 2018,

The warrants shall have the exercise price of a discounted rate of 5% of the weighted average volume
of trade 30 days prior to date of expiration, o be exercsed after 5 years from date of issuance. The
ratio shall be 1 warrant equivalent te 1 underlying common share upon conversion. Expiry date and
other relevant terms and conditions shall be determined by the BOD. The ssuance and listing of the
warrants shall e for the purpose of generating funds for the corporate social responsibility programs of
the Group.

On May 5, 2020, the Group has entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with the Department of
Agricultura ("DA"}). Under the Agreement, the Group shall be an official program partner-participant of
DA's e-KADIWA ni Anl at Kite Program. &5 such, the Group becomes an online seller of agricultural
products.

The DA'S e-KADIWA ni Al at Kita Program t5 &8 markel systemm which faciitates the sefling of major
agricultural goods at reasonably low prices to the consuming public through partnership with Local
Government Units and the Private Sectors. To further the services of the KADIWA nl Ani at Kita Program,
the DM has launched the e-KADIWA, an onlineg market portal or platform whereby buyers and sellers of
agricultural and fishery prodects can transact anline.

As at date of report, the Growp Is actively participating in the foregoing program through its AMI Express
anline platform.

On Movembper 26, 2020, the Group has entered Into @ Memorandum of Agreement {“MOA"} with the
Philippine International Trading Corporation (*PITC") to collaborate on the importation of raw materials
to provide healthier and more affordable "BigMa” Bigas-Mais (rice-com) blend to the Fliping consumers,
The Group ks set to lecally produce with (ks com contract growers and include in its product pertfolio the
*BigMa” brand. The *BigMa” or Bigas-Mais blend is a Low Glycemic and rich in dietary fiber staple food
alternative for the Fillping consumers. With the production of BigMa, the Group will be able to reduce
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carbon foot print, provide more livellhood to local farmers as the source of "Mais”, help the country
achieve food-stapke sufficlency faster, while providing a bealthier and affordable option to the public.

As &t date of report, the Group made ks Initial shipment through the foregolng collaboraticn during the
1st guarter of 2021,

On December 28, 2020, the Group's BOD approved the acquisition of additional shareholdings in Fucang
Trading Limited {Fucang) from 51% up to 71% for a price to be determined based on the awdited net
bock value of Fucang as at December 31, 2021. As at date of report, the additional acguisition is not
yet complated.

Fucang, a subsidiary, acquired 70% ownership of Guangzhou Lexian Fruit Industry Co., Lbd. (Lexian) in
2018, a forelgn entity iIncorporated in China engaged In wholesala trade (see Note 31},

On October 13, 20018, the Group entered into & joint venture agreement for a development of the
property locabed in Tavtay, Rizal, bisected by the Manggahan Floodway. The property covers B59
hectares mare or less of which is covered by Bties under different names, all of which are either directty
or indimectly under tha thinl-party individual, Each square meter s valued at B 500 The joint venture
shall inciude but not limited to the formaton of the fallowing: Phase 1 - Transportation Hub, Phase 2 -
Food Terminal and Phase 3 - Property Developmant Corporation. As at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
the Group has made deposits totaling P50B.7 million for the acquisition to the B59 hectares,
correspanding to portions thereof, As at reporting date, the third party s still completing the titling of
the whole portion of the property until end of the third guarer to fully execute the jomt venture
agreement. The parties are in the process of executing the projects under the Joint Venture Agreament
[ses MNote 15).

On October 25, 2018 the BOD of the Group avthorizes the expansion of business operations in Australla
through acguisition of existing compamies. Accordingly, on December 28, 2018 the Group made a deposit
amounting to AUS172,000 or P6.3 million to BSK PTY LTD (see Moke 15). The main activity of the
Australian operations is primarily processing of fruit and vegetables for distribution to food processors,
schools, restaurants, mining sites and airines. As at reporting date, it s already In the process of
finalizring the acquisition agreement and it will be included as a subsidiary on the first quarker of 2022,

On November 8, 2018, the Group has signed a 81,9 billion deal with a Chinese Company for the purchass
of various agriculture produce particulary bropical fruits. The confract was signed with SinaChem Group
(SinoChem), a Beiljing based conglomerabe engaged in the production and trading of chemicals,
fertilizers and other agricudtural products. Under the agreement, SineChem will buy tropical fruits from
the Group's contract growers in the Philippines in the nest three years, SinoChem will also provide
support through the supply of affordable fertlizers, The deal aims to provide support to local farmers
and boost country's market access to China,

Dwie to the health and meobility restrictions brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic, both parties opted
to defer the implementation of the agreement in 2020 and plan to finalize the terms thereof in 2022, Tha
parties inbend b utilize this deal in the BigMa (rce-corn mix) Project and expansion of barana plantation.

On Decamber 20, 2019, the Board of Directors of the Group approved joint venture or any similar
engagement with Departiment of Justics through Bursau of Corrections for the development of st least
2,000 hectares of integrated Agri-Tourism corn plantation in Palawan, The Group will fund the
development while the Bureau of Corrections will provide the land, The proposed jeint wenture is
intended to expand the Growp's business through corn production and sgri-tourism. As &t reporting
date, the Bureau of Corrections is awaiting the endorsement of the agreement by the Department of
Justice to fimalize the transaction. Also, due to the health and mobility restrictions brought about by the
COVID-19 pandemic, the implementation of the agreement in 2020 was deferred. However, the parties
pian to finzlize the terms thereof In 2022,

On Novemnber 5, 2021, the Group's BOD approved the authority to register, participate, and appoint a
company administratar/s ar repredentative’s in Rice Exchange, which is & digital marketplace far
international rice trading. As at reporting date, the Group is completing its application for registration.

On October 10, 2020 and November 5, 2021, the BOD and the shareholders of the Parent Company,
respectively, approved the increase of the Group's authorsized capita’ stock from B2,000, 000,000 to up
to 25,000,000,000, The increase is intended for any future capital raising activites, This is alse in
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anticipation of the issuance of warrants and stock rights offer of 288,000,027 common sharas from the
Group's existing capital stock.

On Movember 5 2021, the Group’s BOD appeoved the subscription of Agrinurure Development
Haldings, Inc. ("ADHI™) of nine hundred ninety-nine [99%) primary shares of Agrinurture HX Haoldings,

Ltd. [ANI HE) at par value of USD 1. ANI HK is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent Company and
ADHI Is a whaolly owned subsidiary of Greenergy Holdings, Inc.

Oin September 7, 3021, the Group's BOD approved the asthorty to incorporate a whaolly-owned faraign
subsidiary, AgriNurture Financial 5.a r.L in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, for the issuance of the
leng-term green bonds of up to 75 milllon Euras. As at date of report, the Group is in the process of
incorporating the foreign subsidiary,

DOn Decernber 29, 2018, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock of the Group from
one bilkon (P1,000,000,000) dvided iate ane billion (1,000,000,000) common shares ta twa billion
(P2,000,000,000) divided Into twe billion [2,000,000,000) common shares both with a par valuz of
one peso (PL). Hence, this has given effect to the subscription of Earthright Holdings, Inc, to Dwo
hundred fifty milllon commaon shares (250,000,000}, Increasing the total subscribed shares from
668,003,686 in 2017 to 1,018,274,088 in 2018 and total subscribed and paid shares from
G68,003,686 in 2017 to 830,774,088 in 2018. Subscription receivabls &t par value emounted bo
P191,615,200 and P193,672 800 a5 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

On February 24, 2020, the Board has approved the decrease in the par value of the shares of the Group
from one peso (P1.00) to ten centavos (PO.10). The Board has likewise approved the reclassification of
40 million (40,000,000} unissued commaon shares with par value of one peso (P1.00) per share or an
aggregate par value of forty million pesos (P40,000,000) to 400,000,000 voting prefarred shares with
par wvalue of ten centavos (P0.10) per share or an aggregate par valee of forty million pesos
(P40,000,000) subject to the approval of the SCC

Upon approval of the SEC, the Group's suthorized capitad stock will increase to twenty billion
(20,000,000,000) shares for a total par value of two billion pesos (P2,000,000,000) which shall be
divided into the following:

Commin shares, censisting of 19,600,000,000 shares with a par value of ten centavas (£0.10) per share
for a total par value of P1,960,000,000;

Preferred shares, consisting of 400,000,000 shares with 3 par value of teEn centavos (PO, L0 per shane
for a bobal par value of P40 000,000

The preferred shares shall have the following rights, privileges, limitations and restrictions which shall
also appear on the Certificabes of the Preferred Shares of the Corporation:

The right to vote and be voted for;

The right to receive, out of unrestricted retained eamings of the Group, participating dividends at the
rate as may be deemed proper by the BOD under the prevalling market conditions or such other relevant
factors as the 300 may consider, Sald dividend may be declared and payable at the discretion of the
BOD after taking into account the Group's earning, cash flows, financial conditions and other factors as
the BOD may consider relevant; and

In the Bquidation, dissolution and winding up of the Group, whether voluntary or otherwise, the right to
be pald in full or ratably, insofar as the assets of the Group will permit, the par value or face value of
each preferred share as the BOD may determine upon their issuance, plus unpaid and accrued dividends
up to the current dividend period, before any assets of the Group shall be paid or distributed to the
holders of the cormmon shanes,

The common shares shall possess all the fights, privileges and prerogatives provided by law, Including
the right to vole and be vabed for.

The stockholders of the Group shall have no pre-emgptive right to sehscribe to or purchase any or all
Issues or dispositions of shares of any class of the Group.
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The change in par value Is Intended to increase the number of shares of the Group that will give more
trading opportunities to the shareholders and investors, The decrease in par value will make the shares
mane affordabla ta small wvestocs, hence will be more marketabie and liquid in the mackat,

Thie reclazsificetion iz intended for any future capital radsing activitles. The amowunt to be ralsed shal b
used as additional working capital and funding for the Group’s expansion project particularly the creation
af the Agricultural Ecosystem to benalit local farmers.

As at reporting date, the approval for the decrease in the par value of the shares was deferred by the
stackholdars.

On Movember 5, 2021, the Parent Company's BOD confirmed the approval of the reclassification of the
Parent Company's Forty Million (40,000,000) unissved common shares with par value of Dne Peso
(P1.00] per share or an aggregate par valve of Forty Million Pesos (Phpd0,000,000.00) to 400,000,000
votlng preferred shares with par value of Ten Centavos (PO.10) per share or an aggregate par value of
Forty Million Pesos (P40, 000,000}, to be subscribed by Earthright Holdings, Inc

Effect of COVIDS Pandemic

In & move to contain the COVID-19 pandemic, the community guarantine which was Initiaty imposed
on March 16, 2020, which has series of extensions throughout the year 2020, was still In =ffect as at
audit report date, These measures have caused disruptions to business and economa activities, and its
impact on businesses still continue to evolve, However, the amount of financial effect to the Group
cannot be reliably and reasonably determined nor estimated, The pandemic has significant Impact on
the Group's business due o management’s decisien to temporanly cdose operations in compliance with
government’s call for enhanced community quarantine. However, the pandemic and ECQ has minimal
impact on the Group's local operations sinte its product are essential goods. Supermarket sales
increased during the start of the ECO both in valume and in price and is further improved by the
launching of the Group's own online platform where it delivers fresh fruits and vegetables to its
customers. In 2020, the combined foreign trading operation posted a decreasa in sales due to non-
operation of China and Hongkong subsidianes. But upon lifting of lockdown by tha Chinese govemmant,
the operations of China subsidiaries are improving. The Group's management and BOD will continuoushy
manitor the impact and will plan accordingly bo minimize and (o) mitigate further risk on the Group's
fimamcipl performance and position. The Group has taken messures to preserve the heaith and safety of
its stakeholders as well as the business operations.,

The Group's registered principal office address is at Mo. 54 National Road, Dampod 11-A, Pulilan, Bulacan.

Basls of Preaparation

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

Thie consolidated Mlinencial statements of the Group have been prepared wsing the hstorical oost basls,
except for certain financial instruments carried at eithes amortized cost or at fair value, inventories
which |s carried at lower of cost or net realizable value, biological assets which is presented using the
fair value loss estimated cost to sell, investment property which is presented using the fair value method
and property and equipment which is presented using revaluation model. Thesa consalidated financial
statements are presented in Philippine Peso [P, the Group's functional and reporting currency under
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). All values are rounded to the nearest peso, except
whan otherwize Indicated.

The consolidated faancial statements provide comparative infarmation in respect of the previous perioad,

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated fimancial statements of the Group have been prepared in compiance with PFRS. PFRS

includes statements named PFRS and Philippine Accounting Standards {PAS), and interpretations of the
Philipgine Interpretations Committee (PIC), Standing Interpretations Commitiee [SIC) and International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committes (IFRIC) which have besn approved by the Financial



- 23 o
Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) and adopted by the SEC.

Eiirctignnl Curtency

Items included in the consalidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the Philippine
Pesa (P), the currency of the pnmary economic envirohment in which the Group operates. (the
“functional curmency ™) and all valuse are munded (o e rearest pest axcept when otharwiss indicated,

Each eatity in the Group determines its own functional currency and bems mcluded n the fnancial
statemeants af  mach entity are measured Lesing that functicnal CLUFTBACY.
The respective funciional currencies of the subsidisries and associates are presented in
Mate L.

The Group chose bo present its consolidated financial statements uging the Group’s functional currency,

Current and Noo-current Presentation
The Group classifles an asset as current when!

It expects to realize the asset, or intands to sall or consume i€, in its nermal operating cycle;

It holds the asset primarily for the purposs of trading;

It expects to realize the asset within twebve {(12) months after the reporting period; or

The asset is cash or cash eguivalent unless the asset i= restricied from being exchanged or used to
settie a lability for at least twelve (12) manths after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other 35sels a5 non-current.

The Group classifies a liability as current when:

It expects to settle the Hability in ts normal operating cycle;

It haleds the lisbility primarily for the purposa of trading;

The liability ts due to be settled within twelve {12) months after the reparting period; or

It does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the Fability for at least twelve (E2) months
after the reporting period

The Group cascifies all other liabilities as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and labilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities, respectively.

Principtes of Consclidation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise the accounts of the Parent Company and

its subsidiaries where the Parent Company has control.

Specifically, the Parent controls an investes i1 it has:

power over the Investee (l.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee);

exposure, or rights, to varable returns from its involvement with the investes; and

the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its retums.

When the Parent has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investes, it consicders all
relevant facts and clroumstances in assessing whether It has power ower an investes, Including:

the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
rights arising from other contractual arrangement; and
the Group’s woting rights and potential voting rights.

The Parent re-assessas its contral owvar an investes if facts and circumstances indicate that ther are
changes to one or more of the three elements of controd,

Subsidiaries ara consolidated from the date on which control is tramsferred to the Group andcease to be
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred out of the Group., Consolidated Fnancial
statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
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similar ciroumstances. Intercompany balances and transactions, including intercompany profits and
unrealized profits and ksses are elminated.

When the Parent |oSed contrd over a subdidiary, at the date wnen contral is lost it

(&) dererognizes the aseeta (including any goodwill) and labiities of the subsidiary at their carrying
amount; (b) derecognizes the carrying amount of any noncontrolling interests including any comipanants
af other COMmprenensive MCOITHE attributable io them;
() recognizes the fair value of the consideration received; (d) recegnizes the fair value af any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at its fair valuee; (e) accounts for all amounts recognized
in cther comprehensive incame in relation to the subsidiary on the same basis aswould be required If the
parent hat directly disposed of the related assete snd liabilithes; and () recogrizes anmy resulting
difference as gaim or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Pareat,

The financial stabements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reportng year as theGroup using
consistent accounting pofickes. Where necessary, adjustments are made to thefinancial statements of
subsidiaries to bring thelr accounting policles in line with those used by other members of the Group,

Mon-contralling Interests represent interests in certain subsidiaries not held by the Parent Company and
are presented separately in the consclidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) and
consolidated staterments of changes in équity and within eguity in the consolidated statements of
fimancial position, separately Mrem equity attributable to the eguityholders of Farent Company.

Noncontrofing interest represents the portion of profit or loss and the net assets not held bythe Group.
Transactions with noncontrofling interest are accounted for using the entity concept method, whemby
the difference between the consideration and the book value of the share of the net assets acquired is
recognized as an equity transaction,

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is accounted for 85 an egquity
transsction.
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The consolidated financial statements include the Parent Company and the following subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the Group):
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3. Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards

The Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) approved the ssuance of new and revised
Philipping Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). The term "PFRS" in general includes all apalicable
PFRS, Phiippine Accounting Standards (PAS), and Interpretations issued by the Philippine
Interpratations Committea (PIC), Standing Interpretations Committes [S1C) and International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committes (IFRIC) which have been approved by the FRSC and adopted by
SEC.

These new and revised PFRS prescribe new accounting recognition, measurement and disclosure
requirements applicable to the Company. When applicable, the adoption of the new siandards was
made in aecordance with thair tracsitiaonal provisions, atherwiss the adaption i accounted for e change
in accounting policy urder PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,
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3.01 New and Revised PFRSs Applied with No Material Effect on the Consclidated Financial
Statements

The fallowing neéw and revised PFRS: have bean adopted in these consolidated firandal statements.
The application of these new and revised PFRSs has not bad any maberial impact on the amounts
reported for the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for future transactions or
ErTB-i'IgEI'I'IEt‘IE.

aAmendments to PFRS 16, COVID-19-relgied Rent Concessions
Thee fodiowing are the amendrments to PFRS 16

provide lessees with an exemption from assessing whether 3 COVID- 19 related rent concession s a
lease modification;

require lessees that apply the exemption to account for COVID-19 related rent cancessions as if they
weng not lease modifications;

require lessees that apply the exemption o dsclose that fact; and

require  lessees to apphy the exemption retrospectively in accordance with
PAS B, but not reguire themn te restate prior period figures.

The amendments are effective for annwal  reporting  perods  begianing on o after
June 1, 2020,

3.02 Mew and Revised PFRSs in Issue but Not Yet Effective

Thie Company will adopt the following standards and interpretations enumerated below when they
become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Compamy does not expect the adoption of these
new and amended PFRS, to have signficant impact on the consglidated financal statements.

2.02.01 Standard Adopted by FRSC and Appreved by the Board of Accountancy [BOA)
Amendments ta PFRS 16, OOVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyvond 30 June 2021
Thie following are the amendmants to PFRS 16!

permit & leceee o apply the practical expedient regarding COVID-19-relabed rent ooncessiong bo rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before
30 June 2022 (rather than only peyments originally due on or before 30 June 2021);

require a lesses applying the amendment to do so for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
April 2021;

require & lesses applying the amendment to do so refrospectively, réecognising the cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendment &5 an adjustment 1o the opening balance of retained earnings (or ather
companant of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the lesses
first applies the amendment; and

specify that, in the reporting perod in which a lessee first applies the amendment, 3 lessee Is not
required to disclose the imformation roguared by paragraph 28{n of
1AS 8,

The amendments are efective Tor  annual  reporting  periods  beginning on or  after
Apel 1, 2021, with earier application permitted.
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Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The fodlowing are the amendments in reference to the conceptud Framework:
update PFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework irstead of 1989 Framewaork;

add to PFRS 3 a requirement that, for transactions and other events within the scope of PAS 37 or IFRIC
21, an acquirer apglies PAS 37 or IFRIC 21 instead of the Conceplual Framework to identify the labilities
it has assumed in a business combination; and

add to PFRS 3 an expliclt statement that an acquiser does not recognize contingent assets acquined in a
business combination,

The amendments are effective for annual perinds beginning on or after Jaruary 1, 2022, with eardier
application permitted il an entity also applbes all other updated referenoes {publisbed togetber with the
updated Conceptual Framework) 2t the same time or earlier,

Amendments ta PAS 16, Property, Plant and Gquipment - Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit a company from deducting from the cost of property, plant and eguipmant
amounts recaivad from salling ibtems produced while the company is preparing the asset for &s intendad
use. Instead, & company will recognize such sales proceeds and related cost in profit oF loss,

The amendments are affective for annual periods beginning on or afber Jaruary 1, 2022, with earier
application permitied. An entity applies the amendments refrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of
operating in the manner inkended by management on or after the beginning of the eariest period
prasentad in the fnancial statements in which the sntity first applies the amendments.

Amandmaents to PAS 37, Onerows Contracts - Cost of Fulfiting & Contract

The amendments specify hat the 'cost of fulfiling’ a contract comprises the "costs that relate directly to
the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (examples weould be direct labor, materials) or an aliocation of other costs that relate directly
to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfiling the conbract),

The amendments are effective for annual perods beginning on or after Jacuary 1, 2022, with sardier
application permitted. Entities apply the ameéndments to contracts for which the entity has not yet
fulfiled all its obligations at the beginning of the annwal reporting period in which the entity first applies
the amendments, Comparatives are not reskated.

Annual Improverments to FFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle

firsr-ti - The amendment permits a subsidiary that
applies paragﬁph Digfa) of FFRS 1 to measure cumulative transiation differentes using the amounts
reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to PFRSs,

urrhindrnum: clar‘rﬂes which fees an Inl.'H\r includes when it applies the ‘10 per mnt best In mrngraph
B3.3.6 of IFES 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. An entity includes only fees
paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, Induding fees pald or ecelved by
either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf,

Amendments b PERS 16, Lease Incantives - The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying
IFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by
the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatiment of lease Incentives that
might arisa because of how lease ncentives are illustrated in that exampla.

wrements - The amendment removes the
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requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the
fair walue of a blolegical sssel using &8 present valee technigue, This will ensure consistency with the
requirements in PFRS 13.

The amendments are effective for annual reparting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023,
Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabifittes as Current or Non-current
The amendments to PAS 1 are the following:

clanify that tha classification of liabilities as current or nen-currant showld be basad on rights that ara in
existence gt the end of the reporting period and lign the wording in all affected parmgraphs to refer to
the "right™ to defer settiemant by &t least twelve months and make explicit that only nghts in place “at
the end of the reporting pericd” should affect the classification of a Liability:

clanify that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exarcise its right to
defer settiement of a liability; and

make dear that settlement refers bo the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other
assaks or Farvices.

The amendments defer the affective date of the January 2020 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
MNon-Current (Amandments to PAS 1) to annual reporting pericds baginning on or after January 1, 2023,
Eadier apptication of the January 2020 amendments continues to be permitted.,

Amendments to PAS B, Definition of Accounting Estimates

The definition of atcounting estimates has been aménded os Tollows: sccounting estimabes b@me
“manetary amounts in financial stabements that are subject to measurement uncertainty™.

The amendment also clarifies the following:

Entities develop accounting estimates if acoounting policies require items in financial statements to be
messured in 8 way that involves measurement unceriainty,

A dhange in actounting estimate that results from new information or new developments is not the
correction of an error. In addition, the effects of a change in an input or 8 measurement technique used
to develop an accounting estimate are changes in actounting estimates if they do not rasult from the
correct:on of prior perioad ermors.

A change in an accounting estimate may affact only the current period’s profit or loss, or the profit or
Ioss of both the current period and future periods, The effect of the change relating ko the current perod
iz recognized as income or expense in the current pericd. The affect, if any, on future periods is
recognized as income or expense in those future periods.

The amendments are effective for annual  reporting  perods  begianing on or  after
January 1, 2023 and changes in acoounting poficies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on
or after the start of that period, with sarlier application permetted.

Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Fractice Statement 2, Desclosure Initiative - Acoounting Policies
The amandments to PAS 1 are the following:

an entity is now reguired to disclose its material accounting policy information instead of its significant
accounting policies;

several paragraphs are added to explgin how an entity can identily material accounting policy
information and to glve examples of when accounting policy information s lkely to be material !
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The amendments also clarify the following:

accounting policy information may be material because of its nature, even If the related amounts are
Irmmateral;

accnunting pokoy Information & material if users of an entity's financial statements would need it o
understand other material information in the financial statements; and

if am entity discloses immaterial accounting poscy information, such information shall not abscure
rmaterial accounting palicy Infermation,

In addition, PFRS Fractice Statement I has been amended by adding guidance and examples to explain
and demonstrate the application of the four-step materiality prooess’ to accounting policy infarmation
in order to support the amendments to PAS 1.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning om  or  after
Jarnuary 1, 2023, with earlier applicabion permitted,

Amendment to PAS 12, "Deferred tax related to assets and liabilitles arising from a single transaction®

The amandments introduce an exception to the initial recognition exemption (IRE) in PAS 132, Additional
exclusions have been added to the IRE, detailed in paragraphs L15(b){i) and 24{c} for deferred tax
liabilities and azsets respectively. The effects of these amendments essentially mean that the IRC is not
available for transactions which involve the recognition of both an asset and labilty — which in tum
leads to equal and opposite temporary differences - such that deferred taxes are calculated and booked
for both temporary differences, both 3t inkklal recognition and subseqgueantly. Applying this exception, an
entity does not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that give rise to equal taxabie
and deductible temporary differences,

The Initial recognition exemption was initially included within PAS 12 to prevent a lack of reporting
transparency for transactions which are not business combinations and, at the time of the transaction,
do not affect either acoounting or taxable profits. Under this exemption, deferred tax essecs/Tabilities
would neither be recognized at initial recognition of the underlying asset/lkability, nor subsequenthy.

The amendments apply to transactions that ocour on or &fter the beginning of the eariest comparative
period presented. In addition, the amendments also apply to taxable and deductible temporary
differences associated with right-of-use assets and lease llablities, and decommissioning obligations
and corresponding amounts recognized as assets at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, Early
applcation of the amendments s parmitbed,
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Amendment to PFRS 17, “Initial Application of PFRS 17 and PFRS 9—Comparative Information”

The amendment s a transition option relating to comparative information about financial assets
presented on initial application of PFRS 17. The amendment is aimed at he'ping entities to avoid
temporary accounting mismatches between financial assets and Insurance contract liabilities, and
therefore Improve the usefulness of comparative information fior users of financial statements,

PFRS 17 incorporating the amendment is effective for annual reporting periods baginning on or after
lanuary 1, 2025,

PFRS 17, fesuramce Contracts

PFRS 17 sets out the megurements that an entity should apply in reporting information about insurance
contracts it issues and reinsurance confracts it holds. It requires an entity that issues insurance
contracts to report them on the balance sheet a5 the total of the fulfilment cash fiows and the contractual
servioe margin. It requires an entity to provide information that distinguishes two ways Insurers earmn
profits from insgurance contracts: the insurance service result and the financial result. It reguires an
entity to report as insurance revenue the amount charged for insurance coverage when it is earmed,
rather than when the entity receiwes preamium, [t requires that insurance revenue to sxcluda the
deposits that represent the investment of the policyholder, rather than an amount charged for services,
Similarly, L reguires the entily (o presant deposit repaymients o selthements of Habilibies rathéer than as
INSUrance expense,

PFRS 17 i effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025,
Early application is permitted for entities that apply PFRS 9 Financial Instruments and PFRS 15 Revenue
fram Cantracts with Custormers an or before the gate of initial application of PFRS 17.

An antity shall apply PFRS 17 retrospectivaly unless impracticable, excapt that an antity is not requirad
to present the guantifative information required by paragraph 28(f) of PAS B Accounting Policles,
Changes in Accourding Estimates and Errors and an entity shall not apply the option in paragraph B115
for periods before the date of initial application of PFRS 17. I, and only if, it is impracticable, an entity
shall applhy either the modified retrospective approach or the fair value approach,

Amendments to PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts
The amendments cover the following areas:

Insurance acquisition cash Aows for renewals outside the contract boundary;

Reinsurance contracts held—onerous underlying nsurance contracts;

Reinsurance contracts held—underlying insurance contracts with direct participation features; and
Recognition of the contractual service mangin in profit or loss in the general model,

The amendments are  effective ©o annual  reporting  peripds  beginning on  or  after
January 1, 2025,

L.0Z.02 Deferred

Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribubion of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Jaint Venture

The amendments clarify the treatment of the sale or contribution of assets betwaen an investor and its
associate and joint venture. This requires an investor in its financial statements to recogrize in full the
gains and losses arsing from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a busingss while recognize
partial gains and losses if the assets do not constitute a business (i.e, up to the extent only of urrelated
Imvestor share),

On January 13, 2016, the FRSC decided to postpone the origing! effective date of January 1, 2016 of
the said amendments until the IASE has completed its broader review of the research project on equity
accounting that may result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects
of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
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4, Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

Principal accounting and financial reporting policies applied by the Group in the preparation of ks
consolidated Anancial statements are enumesated below and are consistently appled to all the yesrs
presented, unless otherwise stated.

4.01 Fair Value Meaasurament

Falr value s the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or padd or transfer a liability in an crderly
transaction between market particpants at the measurement date.,

When measuring fair value the Grouwp takes into consideration the characteristics of the asset or fiability
IF markel participants would Lake those characterstics inlo scoount when pricing the asset or lability at
the measurement date.

A fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or lahbility 15 exchanged in an
orderfy transaction between market participants to sell the asset or transfer the lizability at the
measurement date under current market condicions, In addition, it assumes that the transaction takes
place either; (a) in the principal market; or (b) in the absence of & principal market, in the most
advantageous marker.

The Group considers the Falr valee OF an éssel of o lability using the sssumplions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market partcipants act in their
economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a nen-financial asset takes into acoount 8 market participant’s ability to
genarate economic benafits by uzing the asset In its highest and best use or by selling It to another
market participant that would use the asset in Its highest and best use,

A fair value measurement assumes that a financial or non-financial liability or an entity’s own equity
instruments {e.g., equity interests |ssued as consideration in a business combination) i5 transferrad to
a market participent at the measurement date. The transfer of a liability or an entity’s own equity
instrument assumas the following:

A liability would remain outstanding and the markst participant transferee would be nequired to fulfil the
obligation. The liability would not be settled with the counterparty or otherwise extinguished on the
measurament date.

An entity's own equity instrument would remain outstanding and the market participant transferes would
take on the rights and respors:bilities assodated with the instrument. The insbrument would ok be
cancelled or otherwise extinguished on the measurement date,

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to guoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs,

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted ) in activa markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date,

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than guoted prices incleded within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liabélity, either directly or indenectly.

Lewel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or lability.
4.02 Segment Information

An opecating segment is a component of tha Group: (a) that engages in business activities from which
it may earm ravenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expéenses relating to transactions with
other components of the Group; (b) whose oparating results are regularly reviewed by the Group’s chiel
operating decision maker (o make decisions about resources (o be allpcated [0 the segment and assess
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its performance; and [c} for which discrete firandal information is avaitable.

The Group reports separately, information about an cperating segment that meets zny of the following
guantitative thresholds: {(a) its reported revenus, inchiding both sales to extarnal customers and nber-
segment sales or transfers; 5 10% or more of the combined revenue, intermal and external, of all
operating segments, provided that; (b) the absolute amount of its reported profit or loss s 10% or more
of the greater, in absalute amount, of the combined reparted profit of all operating segments that did
nat report 8 loss and the combined reported loss of all operating segments that reported a foss; and (c)
its assets are 10% or more of the combined assets of all operating seqments.,

Crparating segrmenls thal do mot meet any of the quantitative thresholds may be considered reportalle,
and separately disclosed, f management believes that information about the segment would be uselul
to users of the consolidated financial statements.

The Group is curmently organized into four (4) segments namely as: Exports, Distribution, Retail and
Forgign Trading. These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment
informathan.

4.03 Financial Assats

4. 03.01 Im [

The Group recognizes & Mnanchal assel 0 ks consolidated staterment of lnandal position when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Except for trade recelvables that do not have a significant financing component, at initlal recogniton,
the Group measures a financial asset at its fadr value plus, in the case of inancial asset not al fair value
through prafit or lozs, transaction costs that are directly attributable bo the acquisition ar ssue of the
fimancial assat.

At initial recognition, the Group measures trade receivables that do not have a sagnificant financing
component at their transaction price,

4.03.02 Classification
Firandal Asset at Amortized Cost
A financial asset shall be measured at amortized cost iF both of the following conditions are met:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
colbact contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financlal asset give rise on specified dates to Cash fows that are solely
payments of principal and interest an the principal amount outstanding.

The Gropp's financial assets measured at amortized mst Include cash In banks, trade and other
receivable (except advances to officers and employees), due from related parties, due from stockholders
and refundable deposits presented under "prepayments and other current assets’ and deposits and other
non-current assets,
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a) Cash in Banks

Cagh in banks include cash deposits held gt call with bank that are subject to insignificant risk of chansge
in value, This shall be measursd at the undiscountsd amount of the cash or other consideration ezpected

to be paid or recelved,

&) Trade and Qther Receivables. Due from Related Parties and Due from Stockbolders
Trade and other receivables (except advances to officers and employeas), dua from related parties and
due from stockholders are recognized initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of the foregoing receivables iz established when there is objective evidence that the Parent
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.

¢) Refurctable Depasits

Refundable deposits pertain to the amount surrendered to the Parent Company's lessor as part of the
Iease agreement. This amount will be refunded upon termination of the contract, This is measured at
amaortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

The Group does not have financial assets measured at fair value sither through profit and loss in both
Years,

Financial Asset at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

The Group mzkes an irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in equity
instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair valuve through profit or loss to present subseguent
changes in fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Group’s financal assets measared at FYOC] pertains to equity secunties,
The Group does not have financial assets measured at fair value threwugh profit and foss in both years.

4.02.07 Reciasyification

When, and only when, the Growup changes its business. model foe managing financial assats,
it shall reclassify all affected financial assets in accordance with Mote 4.03.02. If the Group reclassifies
Ninarecial assets, iU shall apply the reclassiication prospectively lroam the reclassification date. The Group

shall not restate any previously reccgnized gains, losses (Iincluding impairment gains or losses] or
interest,

4.03.04 Effective Interest Method

Interest incoma is calculated by using the effective interest method. This is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross camying amount of a financial asset except for: purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets and financial asseis that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired but subsequently have become credit-impaired,

4.03.05 Impairmant
The Group measures expected losses of a financial instrument in a way that reflects.

An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
autoomes;

The time value of monay; and

Reasonable and supportable sssumption that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecast of future economic conditions.
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The Group adopted the foliowing approaches in accounting for impairment.

Simplified Approach

The Group always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifebme expected credit losses
for trade receivables, The Group determines that a financial asset ks credit-impaired when one or mane
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cazh flows of that financial asset have
occurred, Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

Significant financial dificulty of the counterparty;
A breach of contract, such as a defaull or past due event,

The lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or contraciual reasons relating to the counterparty's
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a concession(s) that the lenderis) would not
otherwise consider; and

It is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

General Approach

The Group applies general approach to cash in banks, other receivables (except advances to officers
and employess), due from refated parties, due from stockholders and refundable deposit presented
under ‘prepayments and other current assers’ and deposits and other non-current assets. At each
reporting date, the Group measures the loss allowance for a fingncial asset at an amount egual to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition. However, if the credit risk has not increased significantly, the Group measures the
losz allowance equal to 1 2-month expacted credit losses.

The Group companes the risk of default occurring as at the reporting date with the risk of & default
occurting as at the date of intial recognition and consider the macro-sconamic factors such as GDP,
interest, and inflation raktes, the performance of the counterparties” industry, that is avallable without
undue cost or effort, o determing whether there is a significant increase in credit risk or not since indtial
recognition.

The Group determines that there has been b significant incresse in credit risk when there is a significant
decling in the factors. The Grouwp assumes that the credit risk on cash in banks has not increased
significantly since initial recognition because the financial instrument s determined to hawve low credit
risk at the reporting date.

The Group did not apply the 30 days past due rebuttable presumption because based on the Company's
historical experience, credit risk has not increased significantly even the amounts ane past dud for mone
than 30 days.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifekime expected credit losses in
the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date, that the credit quality
improvas [i.a,., thare is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since iritial recognition}, then the
Company shall measure the loss allowancoe at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses at
the current reporting date,

The Group recognizes in proft or 1085, as an impairment gain or 1085, the amount of expected cradit
losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date,

The Group performs the assessment of significant increases in credit risk on an individual basis by
considering Information that is indicabive of significant increases in credit risk.
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Thie Group did not apply the 90 days past due rebuttable presumption in determining whether a fimancial
asset = credit impaired and considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments ars
30 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to
be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
tha outstanding contractual amounts in full bafore taking into account any credit anhancemants
held by the Group,

The Group determines that a financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental Impact on the estmaled future cash Nows of that financial asset have socurred, Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impalred Includes observable data about the fellowing events:

Significant financial difficulty of the counterparty;
A breach of contract, such as a default or past due avent;

The lender{s) of the counterparty, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted ko the borrower a concession(s) that the lender{s) would naot
otherwise consider; and

It ks hecaming prohabia that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or aother financizl rearganization.

4.03.06 Derecognition

The Group derecognizes a Mnancial assel when, and only whien the contrsctual rghts 1o the cash Nows
of the financial asset expire or it transkers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition,
The difference betwesn the cammying amount and the consideration recsived is recognized in profit or
loss,

4.03.07 Write-off

The Group directly reduces the gross carrying amount of & financial asset when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial assel in its entirety or 8 portion thereol, A write-off
constitutes & derecognition avant,

#.04 Prepayments and Other Current Assets

A.04.0] Prepdyrenls
Prepayments represent expenses not yet inourred but almeady paid in cash. These am initially recorded

as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid, Subsequently, these are charged to profit or loss
as they are consumed in operations or expire through passage of time;

These are classified in the consclidated statement of financial position as current assets when the
expenses are expected to be incurred within ana (1) vear or the Group's nermal operating cycle,
whichever s longer. Otherwise, these are classified as other non-current assets.

4.04.02 Input VAT
Input VAT arises from the purchacse of goods or services.

For regular sales, input VAT is applied against output VAT, The remaining balance is recoverable in
future perizds. This is carried at cost less allowance for impairmment loss, if any. Impairment loss is
recognized when input VAT can ng lenger be ecovergd.

For zero rated sales, aput VAT is Initially recorded as an asset and measured at the amount of cash
paid, Subsequently, the Group may apply within two (2] years after the close of the taxable quarter
when such sale was made for the tax refund of creditabie input tax due or paid attributable to sales that
are rero-rated or effectively zero-rated
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4.04.03 Advances fo Suppliers

Advances to suppliers represent amount pad in acvance for goods or services that are yel to be
deliverad and fram which future economic benefits are expectad to fow 1o the Group within the normal
operating cycle or within twelve (12] months from the financal reporting date. These are [nitially
recorded at actual cash advanced and are subsequently applied against subsequent asset purchases,
COSES OF expEnses nourred.

4.05 Interests in Joint Arrangement

A joint arrangement is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties have agreed
sharing of contral of an arrangemant, which exist only when decisions aboul refevant activities require
the unanimous consent of the parties sharing, The sharing of control Is alse known as joint control. A
joint arrangement can either be a joint venture or & jaint operation.

4.05.01 Jownt Venture

A joint venture i§ & joint arrangement wherety the Group and other parties that have joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. The Group reports its inberests in a
joint wanbure using equity method, except when the investmant is classified as held for sake, in which
case it is accaunied foye in accordance with PFRS 5,
Man-currert Assels Held for Sale ard Disconiimed Operalions,

Thie Group accounts the investment under the cost method. The Growp recognizes as income the
dividends received that are distributed from net accumulated eamings of the investes since the date of
acquisition by the investor, Dividends received that are in excess of the earnings subseguent to the
date of acquisition are not ncame and therefere considersd az return or Feduction of Investmeant.

The reguiraments of PFRS 9 are applied to determine whathar it i necessary to recognize any
imipairment loss with respect to the Group's investment in joint venture, When necessary, the entire
carrying amodint of the investment (incleding goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with PAS
36 Impairment of Assels as a single asset by comparng its recoverable amount (higher of value in usa
and fair value less [Osts o gell) with ts Carrying armaunt,
Any impairmert loss recognized forms part of the carmrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment foss i recognazed in sccordance with PAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the Investment subsequently increases.

4.06 Invantorias
Inventaries are inktially recorded At cost. Subsequent to initial ecognition, inventones are stated at

lower of cost and net realizable valuz (NRY). Costs Incurred in bringing each product to its present
location and condition s accounted for as follows:

Property for sale - 8t construction cost

Merchandise, furmiture and sppliances at purchasa price on a first-in, first-out
{FIFD) method

jricultural produce, beverages and at purchase price on a FIFO method

vegan products

ickaging materials and other supplies at purchase cost on 8 FIFD method

MRY of finished goods s the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs o sell. For property for sake, MRV is the
estimabed selling price in the ordinary course of the business, besed on market prices &t the reporting
date, less estimated «costs of completion and the estimated costs of sale.
For packsging materials and other supplies, MRV is the current replecement cost. Inventodes are
classified as current when they are expected to be realized within the normal operating cycle.



- 43 -

Cost of property for sale includes:

Land cost;

Land improvement cost;

Amounts paid to contractors for construction and development; and

Planning and design costs, costs of site preparation, professional fees, property transfer taxes,
construction overheads and other rélated costs

Prowision for inventory boss is established for estimated losses on inventores which are determined
based on specific identification of slow-moving, damaged and obsolete Inventories &nd changed to
operations.

Inventories are derecognized when sold, The carrying amount of inventories sold s recognized as an
expense and reported under cost of sales in profit or loss in the period in which the related revenue is
recognized.

When the droumstances that prévicusly caused inventories to be impaired no longer exist or when thers
is clear evidence of an increase in sefing price less costs to complete and sell because of changed is
economic droumstances, 2 reversal of the impairment IS recognized so that the new carrying amount s
thie lower of the cost and the revised selling price less costs to complete and sell. Any Impairment
reversal is recognized in orofit or loss but is fimited to the amount of the orginal impairment loss
recognized,

When inventornes are sobd, the carrying amount of these inventories s recognized as on expense in the
peEnad i owhich the relited révanue is necognized

4.07 Business Combination

The Group applies the standard on Busiress combination under PFRS 3 as amended and adopted in
2009. The standard sutlines the accounting when an acquirer ohtains contral of a husiness (e.g.,
acquisition or merger). Such business combinations are acceunted for using the "acquisition method”®,
which generally requires sssets acguired and Habillities assumed to be measured at thelr fair values at
date of acquisition.

PFES 3 seeks to enhance the relevance, rellability and comparability of Iinformaticn provided about
business combinations {e.g., acquisition and mergers) and their effects. It sets out the principles on the
recognition and measuremant of acquired mssets and liabilites, the determination of goodwill and the
necessary disclosuras,

In determining whether a transaction is a business combination, PFAS 3 provides addizional guidance
on determiming whether a transaction meets the defirition of a business combination and accounted for
in accordance with (ks requirements. This guidance includes:

Business combinations can pccur in variaus ways such as by transferring cash, including liabilities,
issuing eguity instrument (or any combination thereofl), or by not issuing consideration at all (iL.e., by
contract alone); and

Business combinations can be structured in various ways to satisfy kegal, taxation or other abjectives,
including one entity becoming a subsidiary of another, the transfer of net assets from one entity to
ancther or o new entity;

The business combination must involve the acquisition of a business, which generally hes threg
elements:

Inputs = an economic resource (2.g., non-current assets, intellectual property) that creates gutputs
when one or more processes are applied to i,

Process = a system standard, protocol, convenbion or rule that when applied to an input or inputs,
Crgates outputs (@.g., strategic management, operational processes, resourte management); and

Output - the result of inputs and processes applied to those input.
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4.07.01 Acquisition Method

In every acquisition of business, the Group determines the acquisition dabe, recognize and measures all
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumsd and non-contralling interest (NCT, formerly called
minarity Interest) in the acguiree, and determines If there is goodwill or gain from a bargain purchase
if applicabla,

Thie Group recognizes the acguisition date as the date on which the Group obtairs contral owver the
acquirea, Gemerally, this is the date on which the Group legally transfer the consideration, acquires thae
assets and assumes the liabilities of the acquiree = the closing date. Howewver, the Group as the acquirer
may obtain control on o diste thet i either earfier or later than the Closing dete depending on what wis
agreed upon with the acquiree,

In recognizing and measuring the dentifiable assets amuired, the liabilities assumed and any non-
controlling interest in the acquires, the Group observes the definition of assets and liabilities in
accordance with the Framewerk for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements at the
acquisition date, Identifiable assets acguired and liabilities assumed are measured at their acquisition-
date fair values.

On income taxss, the Group recognizes and measures a deferred tay asset or liabdity arnsing from the
assats acquired and liabilities assumed in accordance with PAS 12 while the standard under PAS 19 is
relied on for employes benefits.

The Group recognizes and measures goodwill in accordance with PFRS 3, as the difference between:

Aggregate of (L) the value of the consideration transferred [generally at fair value), [2) the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and [3) in a business combination achieved in stages, the
acquisition-date Fair value of the acquirer’s previousty held equity interest in the scquiree, and

The net of the acquisition-date amounts of tha identifiable assets acguired and the liabilities assumed
(measured in accordance with PFRS 3),

4,07.08 Consoidalion
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial staternents of the Parent and the entities
controlled by the Parent (its subsidiaries) up to December 31 of each yvear. Control is achieved when
the Parant has exposure or rights, to variable returne from its involvemaent with the investea and has
the abillity to affect those retwrmns through its power over an investee, In assessing contrel, patential
voting rights that are presently exercisable or corvertible are taken into account.

Subsidiary Is consolidated from the date when control is transferred to the Parent and ceases o be
cansolidated from the date when control is transferred out of the Parent.

07,03 Measurerreil

The assets and lkabilities and the contingent labilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair vahies
at the date of acquesition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the assets acquired
is recognized as goodwill, Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable
net agsete acquired [ie. discount on scquisition) B credited to the profit and loss in tha period of
acquisition.

4.07. 04 Goodwill
Goodwill i Initially measumed at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of fair value of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets

aoguired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair valve of the net assets of
the suksidiary acguired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss,

After initial recognition, goodwill s measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, For the
purpose of impalrment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination s, from the acguisiticn date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units [CGU) that are expected to benefit from the
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combination, irespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquire are assigned to those units,

4 07 0% Inter-growp Balances

The consofidated financial statements are prepared using wniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. Inter-group balances and transactions, including
Iinter-group profits and unrealized profits and losses, are eliminated, When necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of the subsidiary to bring the acoounting policies used m ling with
those used by the Group. All inber-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated
duning consofidation.

4.07.06 Loss of Conbrol

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-
controlling interests and other components of equity related to the subsidiary, Any surplus or deficit
arising on the loss of controls s recognized in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the
previous subsidiary, then such interest s measured at fair value at the date the control s lost,
Subsequently, it is accounted for as entity-acoounted investes or as financial assets at FYTPL or FYOCT
depending on the level of influence retained.

4.08 Investment Property

Investment property comprises properties under construction or redevelopments that are held to cam
rentals or capital appreciation or both and that are not occupled by the companies in the Group. These
are measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs. Subseguent Bo anitial recognitson,
investment property Is measured at rs fale value in 2021 while at cost less acoumulated depreclation
and impairment loss in 2020.

Investment property Is accountes for under the falr value model. Fair value s supported by market
evilance and ks determined by independent appraisers with sufficient exparence with respect to both
the location and the nature of the investment property.

Any gain or foss resulting from either a change in the fair value or the sale or retirement of an investment
property is immediately recognized In profit or loss as fair value gains (losses) from investment property
under the other incoma in the separate statements of comprahensive incorme,

Investment property s derecognized upon disposal or when parmanently withdrawsm from use and no
future economic benefts are expected from its disposal,

A transfar is made to investmeant property when there is a change in use, avidenced by ending of owner-
occupation, commencement of an operating lease to snother party or ending of construction or
development. A transfer is made from investment property when and only when there is a change in
use, evidenced by commencement of owner-ocoupation or commencement of development with a view
to sabe. A transfer between nvestment property, ownér-occupied property and inventory does nob
change the carrying amount of the property transferred nor does it chamge the cost of that property for
measurament or disclosure purposes,

4.09 Property and Equipment

Praperty and equipment are initially measured at cost. The cost of an asset consists of its purchase price
and costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Subsoquent to initial recognition property and equipment ore carred at revalied amownt less
accumilated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
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Subsequent expenditures relating to an item of property and equipment that have already been
recognized are added Lo the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic
berafits, in excess of the griginally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow to
the Group. All other subsequent expenditures are recognized as expenses in the perod in which those
ara incurred,

Property and equipment are stated in the conselidated statement of financial position at their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, determined from market-basad evidence by
appraisal undertaken Dy professional appraisers, less any subsaguent accumulated depreciation and
subseguent accumulated impairment iosses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amounts do not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values
at the end of the reporting period.

Any revaluation Inorease arising on the revaluation of such property and eguipment s credited to the
progerties revaluation surplus, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same
assel praviously recognized as an expanse, in which case the increase |5 credited to the profit or loss to
the extant of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in carmying amount arising on the revaluation
of such révalued assets is charged as an expense to the extent that it excesds the baktance, If any, held
in the revealuation surplus relating to a8 previous revalustion of those assets, Revaluation surples is
transferred directly to retained eamings as the asset is being used by the Group.

Land is not deprecated. Depreciation is computed on the stralght-line method based an the estimated
useful bves of the assets as follows:

Building 15 years
Dalivery and transportation equiprment 3o 12 years
Machinery and equiprment 3 to 17 years
Office furniture and fixtures 3to 12 years
Store and warehouvse squipineil 3 b S yeary

Leasehold improverments are depreciated over the shorter batween the improvements’ useful life of five
[(5) yeors or the lease term.

Properties in tho course of construction for production are carried at cost less any recognized impairment
loss, Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Besrer plants ane Bving plants that are used in the production or supply of agricultural produce over &
several perods and has a remote likelihood of being sold as agricultural produce, except for incidental
scrap sales.

The property and equipmant’s residual values, useful lives and deprectation method are reviewad, and
adjusted prospectively If approprate, if there is an Indicatian of a significant change since the last
reporting date.

Depreciation on revalued assets is charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued proparty, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the revaluation reserve s
transferred directly to retained eamings.

An item of property and equipment |s derecognized on disposal or whan no fubure economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal, Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retrement of an asset s
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and ks
recognized in profit or loss.



4.10 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are messured on intial recsgnition at cost. The cost of intangible
azsets acquired in a business combination IS their fair value at the date of acquisition. Fallowing inctial
recognition, intangible assets are carred at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finike lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an Indication that the intangible asset may be impained. The amortizaion
perod and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of sach regorting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset ame considersd to modify the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amartization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the consclidated statements
of profit or loss as the expeanss category that is consisbent with the function of the irtangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinibe fe s reviewed
annually o determing whether the indefinite life continues to be suppoertable, I not, the change in useful
life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measuned as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated
profit or loss when the asset B derecognized.,

4.10.01 Trademark

Trademarks acquired sepacately are nitially recognized at cost, Following initial recognition, trademarks
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any impaiment losses, The Group assesses for
{mpain‘raent whenever there s an indication that thesa assets Tidy b irmepairesd.

The Group has assessed that certain trademark acquired in 8 business combination in the past has
indafinite useful lives, thus are not amortized, but tested for impairment annually, either individually or
at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite @fe 5 reviewed annually bo determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change i wssful life from Indefinite
to finite s made on a prospective basis,

The remaining trademark at corrent year has finite useful life and 8 amorfized aver straght-line basis
over its estimated useful life of twenty {20} years. The amortization pericd and the amortization method
are reviewed ab least ot each finenclal year-emnd, Changes in the expecied useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing
the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates,
The amortization expense is recognized in the concolidated profit or logss undor “Depreciation and
amartization™ account in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

4.10.02 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration of an acquisition over the fair valus of the
Group's share of the net identifiable aszets acquired at the date of acquisition. Goodwlil is tested for
impairment amnually ar more freguently IF events or changes In chioumstances indicate that might be
impaired, and is carred at cost ess accumulated impairrment lossas, i any, Any impairment losses

recognized for goodwil are not subsequently reversed, Galns and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrylng amount. of goodwill relating to the sntity sald.
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Goodwlll i= allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impalrment testing. When the
recoverable amount of cash-generating units s less than the carrying amount, an impainment loss s
recognized. The Group performs its impairment testing at the reporting date using a wvelue-in-use,
discownbed cash fAow methodology.

4.10.03 Franchise

The Group recognizes franchise as part of its intangible assets when the franchise produces revenue to
the Group and the cost is measurabde. AL initial recognition, franchise is valued at cost which is the
amaunt incurred In acqulrng the franchise, Franchise whose [ife has been determined to be finite s
amaartized over the years identified. IF the life of the franchise is determined to be mdefinite, such
franchise is not amortized but tested for impakrment. Franchize is derecognized upon sale or retiremeant.
The difference between the carrying value and the proteeds shall be recognized in the consolidated
statemants of profit or loss, Franchise is amortized on a straight-fine basis over its estimated useful life
of ten (10) yvears.

4.10.04 Computer soffware

Computer software acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The indtial cost of
computer software consists of ite purchase price, including import duties, taxes and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition and location for intended use.
Subsequently, computer software is carried at cost less accumulabed amortization and any accumulated
impairment loss.

Arouired computer software is capitalized on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring bo use the
specific software. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life
af five (5) vears. Costs associated with the development or maintenance of software cost programs are
recognized as expense when Incurred in the Group's consolidated statements of profit or loss. Software
cost 1s derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derscognition of the asset is included in the
Group's consolidated statements of profit or loss in the year of derecognition,

4.11 Deposits and Investmeants

Deposit for land acqguisition which represents mainly the usufruct rights over a property are initially
stabed at actual amount paid &nd subsequently recognized at cost less any impairment.

Dwepasit for business acquigitions which a=w paid in view of call for the futume isvestments are initially
stated at actual amount paid and subsequently recognized at cost less any impairment.

4.11.03 Advances fo Producers

Advances to producers pertain to advances made for the initial cost of cultivation and development of
farm lots owned by third-party, This is initially stated at actual amownt paid ard subseguently recognized
at cost fess any impaimrmaent.

41104 Agvances o Projects

Advanoes to projects pertains to unliguidated expendtures made for the prooessing fees in Conmection
with the Investment af the Group to-a foreign company. This is inikally statied at actual amount paid and

subseguently recognized at cost less any Impairment.



4.12 Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, the Group assecses whether there s any ndication that any assets other than
invantories, biological assets, deferred tax assets and financial assets that are within the scope of PFRS
9, Finandal Insfruments may have suffered an impairment loss. IF any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. Whera it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an Individual assek, the Group
astimates the recoverable amount of the cash-genarating unit to which the asset balongs

When a reasonablz and consistent basis of allocation can be dentified, assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating wnits for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be ldentified.

Intangibie asset with indefinite wseful life ks tested for mpalrment annually, and whenaver there = an
indication that the asset may be impaired,

Recoverable amount is the higher of falr value less costs to sell and walue in use, In assessing valus in
use, the estimated future cash fows ame  discounted o their present valuée using o
pre-tax discount rate that reflects curment market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of Future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit Is estimated to be less than ks carmying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating wnit ks reduced bo its recoverable amount,
An impalrment loss is recognized as an expense,

Whan an impairment loss subseguently reverses, the carrying amount of ‘the asset or
cash-generating unit is increased Lo the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased
cartying amount does not excesd the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment lass been recognized for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
imipairment koss is recognized as Income,

4,13 Biological Assets

Biological assets or agricultural produce are recognized only when the Group controls the assets gs a
result of past events, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow to
the entity; and the fair valee or cost of the assets can be measured reliably,

The Group measures iis blological assets on inital recognition and at each reporting date at their fair
value less estimated costs to sell, Estimated costs to sell include commissions to brokers and dealers,
levies by regulatory agencies and commodity exchanges, and transfer taxes and dubies.

Harvestad sgricultural preduce are also carried at fair value (@ss estimated costs to seli at the point of
hareest,

The Group dassifies its biological assets between consumable and bearer biological assets. Consumable
biological assets aré those that are to be harvested as agricultural produce or sold as biological assets.
The Group further classifies its bearer biological assets betweon mature or immature biclogical assets.

Gains or logses arising on initial recognition of a biological asset at fair value less estimated costs to sall
ang from a change in fair value less estimated costs to sell of a biglogical asset are included in profit or
Ioss for the period in which they arise.

4.14 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs ame recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they ame incurmed.

4.15 Financial Liabilities

4.15.01 Initial Recogmition and Measurement

The Group shall recognize a financial Hability in s consolidated statement of financial position when,
and only when, the entity becames party bo the contractual provisions of the Instrument.
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At initial recognition, the Group shall measure a financlal liability at its fair value minus, in the case of
fimancial liability not st falr value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of the liability,

4.15.00 Classification
The Group shall clazzify all financial labilftles as subssguently measured at amortized, except for:
fimancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss;

fimancial Habilities that arise when a transfer of 2 financial asset does not guallfy for derecognition or
when the continuing involvemant approach apphies;

fimancial guarantee contracts;
commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate;
contingent consideration recoonized by an acquirer in @ busiress combination.

The Group's financial labilities measuned at amortized cost include trade and otheér payables (excluding
customers’ deposit and govermment payables), loans payveble, leass linbilities and due to related parties,

The Group does not have financial liabilities at fair valua through profit or loss in both years.

4.15.03 Derecognition
The Parent Company remowves a financial liabiity (or part of a financial liability] from s statement of

fimanckal pasithon when, and anly when, it 15 extingushed ({2, when the abligation in thie contract s
discharged or cancelled or expires).

The difference hetween the carrying amount of a financial labllity (or part of 2 financial lability)
extinguished or transferred to another party and the coersideration paid, including any
nan-cash Assets transfermed or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss.

4.16 Contract Liability

A contract ability s the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
recaived considaration (or an amount of concideration is due} from the customer, If a customer pays
consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognized when the payment s made or the payment Is due (whichever is garlier). Contract llabilities
are recognized as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

The contract liabilities also include payments recelved by the Group from the customers for which
revanue recognition has not yvet commenced,

4.16.01 Costs to polain confract

The incremental costs of obtaining & contract with a customer are recognized as an asset F the Group
expects to recover them. The Group has determined that commissions paid to brokers and marketing
agents on the sale of pra-completed real estate wnits are deferred when recovery s measonahly
expected and are charged o expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized as
eamed, Commission espense 15 Included In the “Real estate costs and expenses”™ account 0 thea
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

Costs Incurred prior to obtaining contrack with customer are not capialized but are expensed as
incurmed.
4.16.02 Amorfization, derecogmition and impairment of capitalized costs to obtain a contract

The Group amortizes capitalized costs to obtain a contract to cost of sales over the expectad
construction period using percentage of completion following the pattem of real estate revemua
recognition, The amortization & included within cost of sales,

A capitalized cost to obtain a contract is derecognized either when it Is disposed of or when no further
eoonomic benefits are expacted to flow from its use or dispozal,
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At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is an Indication that cost to obtain a
contract maybe impaired. If such indication exists, the Group makes an estimate by comparing the
carrying amount of the assets to the remalning amount of consideration that the Group expects to
reczive less the costs that relate to providing services under the relevant contract. In determining the
estimabed amount of considaration, the Group uses the same princples as it does to determine tha
contract transaction price, except that any constraints used to reduce the transaction price will be
removed for the iImpairment test.

Where the relevant Costs or specific performance obligat-ons are demonstrating marginal proftabikty
or other indicators of impairment, judgment Is required in ascertaining whether or not the future
economic benefits from these contracts are sufficient fo recover these assets. In performing this
impairment aqsessment, mansgement B reguired toe make &n aasessment of the costs te complete the
contract. The ability to accurately forecast such costs Involves estimates around cost sawings to be
achigved over time, anticipated profitability of the contract, as well as future performance against any
contract-specific performance indicators that could trigger variable considerstion, or service cradits.

Where a contract is anticpated to make a loss, these judgments are also relevant in determining
whether o not an onerous contract provision 5 requited and ow Ehis is to be measured,
4.17 Equity instruments

An eguity instrument B any cantract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities, Equity Instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the procesds
recaived, net of direct issue costs.

Orginary shares are classified as equity.

4. 1701 Additional Pald-in Canital
Additional paid-in capital represents the procesds and/or fair value of consideration recelved |n excess
of the par value of the shares issued.

4.18 Employee Benefits

4.18.01 Short-term Benefits

The Group recognizes a lizbility, net of amounts already paid and an expense for services rendered by
employess during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given by the Group o its employees
include salaries and wages, direct labor, 555, HDMF, PhilHea'th employer contributions and 13™ month
pay.

4.18.02 Post-employment Benefits

The (Group hes an  wnfunded, non-contrioutory defined benefit  retiremant  plan.
This benefit defings an amount of pension benefit that an employee will recelve on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of ssrvice and compensation,
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The cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method {PUCM) which
reflects services rendered by employess to the date of valuation and incorporates assumptions
concerning employees’ prejected salaries. Post-employment expenses include current service cost,
past servica cost, and net interest on defined benefit asset/liability. Remeasurements which include
cumulativa actuarial gaing and logses return on plan agsets, and changes in the affects of asset cailing
are recognized directly in other comprehensive income and are also presented under equity in the
consohidated statement of financial position.

Actuarizl galns and losses arising from expenence adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptizns
are charged or credited bo equity in other comprehensive income in the perod In which they arise,

Past-service costs are recognized immediately in orofit or loss,

The liability recognized in the consolidated statemeant of financial position in respect of defined benafit
persion plans is the present value of the sccrued retirement benefits at the énd of the reporting period.
The accreed retirement benefits is calculabed annuaily by an independent aciuary using the PUCH. The
present value of the accrued retirement benefits is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates based on the market yields on govemment bonds a5 of the valuation detes
that hawve terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension aobligathon.

The Group's retirement plan & still unfunded, benefit claims under the plan are paid directy by the
Group when they become due.

4,19 Provisions and Contingent Asset

Prowisiens are recognized when the Group has a present obligation, whether legal or constrective, as a
result of 3 past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliabla
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

Thee @rnount rﬂ:ﬂﬂﬂ‘lﬂd 8% & provision s the Best estimate of the considerstion required to settle the
present obllgation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obiligation, its carrying amount is the presant value of those cash flows,

When some or all of the econamic benefits required to settle a provision are expected o be recovered
from & third party, & receivable s recognized as an asset f it s virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provisions are ~eviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the curreént Best estimate.

4. 19011 Contimgent Liabiities and Asses

Contingent liabilicies and 2ssets are not recognized because their exstence will be confirmed only by
tr;uncmmu or non-occurrence of ane or more uncertain future events not whally within the contal
of the Group.

Contingent liabilities asre disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remaobe,

Contingent assets are disclosed only whan an inflow of economic berefits is probable,
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4.20 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the aconcmic benefts will flow to the Group
and the revenue related cost incurred or to be incurred/costs to complete the transactions can be reliabiy
measured. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine
if it is acting as & principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its
revenus arrangements. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
taking into account any brade discounts, prompt sattlemant of discounts and volume rebates allowed by
the Group, if any, Revenue excludes any valus added tax.

The Group recognizes revenue when {or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferring
a promised good or service ([.e. assat) to & customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer
obtains control of that asset,

4. 20.01

The Group recognizes revanue (o depect tha transfer of promised goads or services (o the customar in
an amgunt that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
thiose goods or services. The Group applies the following five (5] steps:

Identify the contract(s) with a cusbomer;

Tderitily the perdformance abdigations in the contrect, Performbance obdigatsons are prormises in a oenlnact
to transfer to & customer goods or services that are distinct;

Determine the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which an entity
expects to be antitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, If tha
consideration promised in a contract includes a variable amownt, an entity must estimate the amownt
of consideration bo which it expects to be entitled in exchange for transternng the promised goods or
Services to a customer;

Aliccate the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of the relative stand-alone
selling prices of each distinct good or service promised in the contract;

Recognize revenue when a performanca obligation is satisfied by transferring a promised good or service
to a customer (which 5 when the customer obtains cortrol of that good or service). A performance
obligation may be satisfied at o point in tima (typically for promises to transfer goods to 8 customer) or
over time (typically for promises to transfer services to a customer), For a performance obligation
satsfied over me, an entity would select an approprate measure of progress to determine how much
ravenug should be recognized as the performance obligation is satisfied,

4.£0.02 Sale of goods

Revenue from the sabe of goods (0 the ordinary course of business B measured at the Fair value of the
consideration received or receivatle, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. The revenue
from the sale of goods is recognized upon delivery of the goods when the significant risks and rewards
of awnership of the goods are transferred to tho buyer,

4.20.0F Real estale sales

The Group derives its real estate revenue from szle of residential and commercial units. Hevenue from
the sale of these real estate projects under pre-completion stage are recognized over time during the
construction period [(or percentage of completion) since based on the terms and conditions of its contract
with the buyers, the Group's performance dees not create an asset with an albernative use and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

In measuring the progress of its performance obligation over time, the Group uses the input method.
Thee Gmup I'Ei:ﬂﬂﬂit-!ﬁ revenye on the basis of the efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a p!r'rnﬁﬂm:e
obligation (resources consumed, labor hours expendad, costs incurred) relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligatian,

Any excess of progress of work over the right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional,
recognized as residential and office development receivabies, under trade recelvables, is inciuded In the
“contract asset” account in the asset section of the consolidated statements of financial position.
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Any excess of coliections owver the total of recognized trade receivables and contract assets is included
i the “contract liabilities” acoount in the lakbilitles section of the consolidated statements of financial

position,

4.40.04 Cost recognition

The Group recognizes costs relating to satisfied performance obligations as these are incurred taking
into consideration the contract fulfillment assets such as connection fees. These include costs of land,
land develppment costs, building costs, professional fees, depreciation, permits and ligenses and
capitalized borrmowing costs. These costs are allncated to the saleahle area, with the portion allacahle to
the sald area being recognized as costs of sales while the portion allocable to the unsold area being
recognized as part of real astate inventories.

Contract costs include all direct materials and labor costs and those indirect costs related to contract
performance. Expected losses on contracts are recognized immediatety when it is probable that the total
contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, Changes in contract performance, contract conditizns
and estimated profitability, including those arising from contract penalty provisions, and final contract
settlements which may result in revisions to estimated costs and gross margins are recognized in the
year in wihich the changes are determined.

4.20.05 Service income
Service income is recognized to the extent of actual services delivered during the period.

4,20.06 Franchise

Franchise fees may cover the supply of inilial and subsequent services, agulprment and other tangble
asseks, and know-how, According’y, franchise fees are recognized as revenue on a basis that reflects
tha purposa for which the fees were charged. Fees charged for tha use of continuing rights granted by
the agreement, or for other services provided during the perod of the agreement, are recognized as
revenuse as the services are provided or the rights used.

4.20.07 Rovaity

Royalty is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with substance of the relevant agreement.

4.40.08 Rental Income

Rental income is recognized in the profit or 105 on & straight-line basis over the lease term,
4,210,079 Galn from Sale of Property and Eguipment

Realized gains and los<es are recognized when the sale transaction ocours,

4.20.10 Interest Income

Interest income is recognized using the effective intarest method on a time proportion basis that reflects
the affective yield on the assefs.

4.20.11 Qther Income

Oither income s recognized when the related income Is eamed on an accrual basis In accordance with
the relevant structure of transaction or agreemems.



4.21 Expense Recognition

Expense encompasses losses &5 wall as those axpenses that arise in the course of the ardinary activities
of the Parent Company.

Thi EI‘I:I'I..IFI I"!mﬂl'l-im gapensts in the consolidated stabement of l.‘.ﬂ"l'll.'.ll‘ﬂ'lm.!-l'h'! income when &
decrease in future econamic benefits related bo a8 décrease in an asset or an increase of a liability has
arizan that can be measured I'!li-lhl'r'.

4.22 Leases

4.22.01 The Group as Lessor

Rental income from operating leases (s recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease, Initial direct costs mcurred in negotisting and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease tsrm.

4.22.00 The Groun 35 3 [essee

A fease Is defined as 'a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the rght to use an assst (the
underlying asset) for a perdod of time in exchange for consideration’,

To apply this dafinition the Group assesses whather the conbract meets three key evaluabions which are
whethaer:

the contract contams an icentified asset, which is elther explcitly (dentified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the Group

the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic enefits from use of the dentifled
asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the conbract

thie Group has the dght bo direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of wse. The Group
assess whether it has the right to direct "how and for what purpose’ the asset is wsed throughout the
period of use.

Right-of-Use (ROU) Assel
AL the commencement date, the Group measures the ROU asset ab cost, which comprises of:
initial measurement of the leasa lability;
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any Incentives recelved
any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;

an estimatz of costs to be Incurred by the lessee In dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located of restoring the underlying asset to the condibion regulred by
the terms and conditions of the lease; unless those costs are incurred to produce inventosies. The Group
incurs the obligation for those costs either at the commencement date or as a consequence of having
used the undertying asset during a particular period,

Subsequent to initlal recognition, ROU asset is carmied af cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impaiment losses,

The Group depreciates the ROU asset on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful ife of the ROU asset or the end of the lease term. The Group also assesses
the ROU asset for impairment when sech indicators exist,

The Group has elected to account for short-tesm leases and low-value assebs using the practical
expedients, Instead of recognizing ROU asset and lease Hability, the payments in relation to these ane
mecagnized as an expense in profit ar ioss on a sirsight-line basis over the l=ase berm,

ROLU asset s presented as a separate line item on the consolidated statement of inancial position.

Lease Liabiity
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At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpald at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate ks
readily avallable or if not, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate,

At the commencement date, the lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
camprise the following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not pald at the commencement date:

fisced paymeants {including in-substanca fixved payments), less any incentives receivable;

varlable lease payments that depend on an indes or a rate, Initlally measured wusing the Indexs or rate
as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under the reskdual value guarantees;
the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penafties for terminating the lease, If the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option
to terminate the lease.,

After the commencement date, the Group measures the lease Hability by
increasing tha carrying amount to refiact interast on the lease liability;
reducing the carrying amount fo refiect the lease payments made; and

remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect in-
substance fixed lease payments.

The Group recognizes the amount of remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Hawever, I the carrylng amount of the fdght-af-use asset s reduced to 2ero and them is
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognizes any remaining amount
of the remeasurement in profit or loss,

Subsequent to inital measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for
interest, It is remeasurad o reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-
substance fixed payments. When the lesse Hability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is
refllected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

Lease liabilities are presented as a separate line item on the consolidated statement of firancial
Position,

4.23 Forelgn Currency Transactions snd Tranalation

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group, transactions in Currencies other than
the Parent's functional currency, L&, forelgn currencies, are recognized at the rates of exchasge
prevailing at the dateés of the transactions. At the end of each reporting peniod, financlal accounts which
include cash in banks, trade receivable and deposits denominated n foreign currencies are revabeed
using the reference foreign exchange rates provided by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) on the
date of reparting, Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss a5 unrealized foreign exchange
gain or loss at the end of each reporting period.

Exchange differances are recognized in profit or less in the perod in which they arse except for exchange
differences arising on non-monetary assets and lisbilities whene the gains and losses of such non-
manetary £ems ars recognized directly in equity.

Aszets and liabilities from foreign operation aré translated st exchange rates at the end of the reéporting
period. Exchange differences are recognized initially in OCT and reclassified from equity to profit or loss
on disposal of the net investment. On the other hand, income and expenses for each consolidated
statement presenting profit or loss and OCT are transiated st the average exchange rate for the period.
All the resulting exchange differences are recognized in the OCLL
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4.24 Related Parties and Related Party Transactions
A related party is & parson or entity that is relabed to the Group that is preparing its consolidated francial
statements. A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to Group if that person has

control or joint contral over the Group, has significant influgnce aver the Group, or is 8 member of the
key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that a parent, subsidiary and
feflow subsidia~y are relabed parties Lo each other); or

One entity 15 an associate or jﬂiﬂt wventure of the other El'lm'f |or an associate or jnim‘. wenure of a
member of a group of which the other entity is 8 member); or

Both entities are joint ventfures of the same thind party; or
(ne entity is a joint wventure of a third entity and the other entity is 2n associate of the third entity; or

The entity holds & post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of githar the Group or
an entity related to the Group; or

The entity s contralled or jolntly controlled by a person (dentified above] or

A person identified above has significant infiuence over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (orafl an entity); or

Management entity providing key management personnel services 1o a reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members, who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group and indude that person’s children and
spouse or domestkc partner) children of that person’s spouse of domestic partner; and depencents of
that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related parties,
regardiess of whether a price 1§ chargad.
4.25 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred taxes.

4.25.01 Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit difers from profit as
repu:n‘t-ed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive inooma because of Rerms of iNcome or ExXpense
that are taxable or deductible in other yeass and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for currant tax is calculated using tax rates that have been @nacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Current tax for the current and prior pariods Is recognized as a lability to the extent that it has not been
setiled, and as an assel to the extent thatl the amouents adready paid exceeds he amount doe.
4.25.00 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the camying amounts of assets and
llabilities in the consclidated financlal statements and the corresponding tbx bases wsed in the
computation of taxable profit.



-57-

Deferred tax assets are generally recegnized for all deductibie temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits from excess Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) over Regular Corporate [noome
Tax {RCIT) and wnwsed Net Operating Loss Carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible termporary diferences and carry forwand
of unused MCOIT and wnused NOLCO can ba utilized. Deferred tax asset howeavar, is not recognized whan
it grises from the initial recognition of an asset or Hability in a transaction that is nob a business
combinaton and, at the time of the (ransaction that affects neither the accourting profit nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences are only recognized to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which bo wtilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected o reverse in the foresesabie future,

The carrying amount of deferred tax asssts (4 reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the assat to be recovered,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences except in three Cases as
fotlows:

Liabilities arising from the initial recognition of goodwill;

Liabilities arising from the initial recognition of assat/liability other than in a business combination which,
at the time of the transaction, does not affect either the acoounting profit or the taxable profit;

Liabilities arising from temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, branches and
associates, and interests in joint arrangemants, but only to the extent that tha entity is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the differences and it i proballe that the reversal will not occcwr in the
foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets and llabilites are measured at the tax rates that are expected bo apply in the period
in which the lability Is ssttled or the asset realized, based on tax ates and bax laws that have been
enscied or substantively enacted by the end of the réporting perod, The measuremsent of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follew from the manner in which the Group

expects, at the end of the reporting pericd, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assats and
liabiities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ara offset when there s a legafly enforceable right to set off current
tax assats against current tax lablities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
auvthority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

4,25.03 Current and Deferred Tax for the Period

Current and deferrad tax are recognired as an expenss or income in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognized outside profit or loss, whether n OCl or directly in eguity, in which
case the tax iz also recognized outside profit or loss,

4.25.04 [mpact of Change in Tax Regime

Components of (ax expensg include any adjustments recognized (n the penod for current f@x of prior
peraod and the amount of deferred tax axpence (income) relating to changes in tax rakes, The provision
for current income tax during the year include the difference between income tax per prior year financial
statemeants and prior year income tax returm.

Deferred tax ascets and liabilties as of reporting perlod i remeasured wsing the new tax rabes. The
impact of rameasurement is recognized in profit or loss (i.e., provision for/benefit from deferred income
tax), unless (€ can be recogrileed in other comprebensive incorme or anather eguily acoount,

4.26 Earnings per Share
The Group computes its basic earnings per share by dividing net income or loss attributable to ordinary

equity holders of the Group by the wesghted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
penod.



4.27 Events after the Reporting Period

The Group identifies subsequent events as events that occurred after the reporting date but before the
date wiwn the consolidated financial statements warg authorized far iszue,
Any subsequert events that provide additional information about the Group's position at the reporting
period, adjusting events, are reflected in the consalidated financial statements, white subsequent events
that do mot require adjustments, non-adjusting events, are disclosed in the notes to consolidated
fimancial statemants when material,

4.28 Changes in Accounting Policies
The adoption of the new and revised standards and as disclosed in Motes 3.01 and 3.02 was made in

avcordance with their transitional provisions, otherwise the adoption s accountied for as change in
accounting policy under PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Chanpes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,

Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainties

In the application of the Group’s accounting policles, which are described in Note 4, Management
is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considerad to be reélevant.
Actual results may diffier from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized In the period in which the estimate Is revised If the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and fulure periods if the revision affects
baoth current and future pericds,

5.01 Critical Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

The fallowing are critical judgments, apart from those invelving estimatiens that Management has
made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that hawve the most significant
affect on the emounts recognized In financial statements,

20101 Assessment of Going Cpncern Jssue

The menagement has made an assessment at the Group's ability to continue &5 a going concern and s
satisfied that the Group has the respurces o continue the business for the foreseeable future. The
Group's continued operations as a going concern depends upon the successful outcome of efforts to
achieve profitable operations and generate sufficient cash fiows to meet obfgations an a timely basis.
The Group ganerated a net incoma of #1,057,861,300 in 2021, P16,563,014 in 2020 and P34,741,151
in 2015, Management believes that with its continued eforts in building up equity and profitability, the
Group will continue to operate in the normal course. Therefore, the consolidated financlal statements
continue to be prepared on the going concern basis,

201,02 Functipnal Currency

PAS 21 requires Management (o use 8 judgment to determing the Group's functional currency such
that it most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events amd
conditions that are relevant to the Group. In making this judgment, the Group considers the following:

the currency that mainly influences sales prices for financial mstruments and services
(this will often ba the currenty in which sales prices for ite financial instrumants and services ara
denominated and settied);

the curmency in which funds from financing activibes are generated; and
the currency in which receipts from operating activities are usually retained.

Furctional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates.
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The Group has determined that its functioral currency Is  the Philippine Peso,
The Group's fusctional currency |5 evidenced oy its costs of labor, and other costs of providing services
and mejoricy of its remittance transactions are settled in Philippine Paso.

The Group determined its functioral currency to be Philippine peso being the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group oparates, ILis the curmency that mairﬂ'y' influences the
sale of rea! properties, services, and invastments and the costs of providing the services and of the
sokd investments.

3.01.03 Unifarm Accounting Policies

Consolidated financal statements are prepared under line-by-lise basis for consolidaton.
Full amount of subsidiaries’ accounts, lrmespective of the percentage of ownership, are combined with
thiose of the Group on a line-by-line bases by adding together similar or like [tems of assets, liabilites,
revenues and expenses. Application of line-by-line basis for consolidation reguires judgment In
determining that the Parent and its subsidianes have uniferm accounting policy for like transactions and
avants in similar circumstances betweean the Parent and the subsidiaries. While the Group regularly
conducts review of the subsidiaries’ accounting policy to ensure the uniformity in accounting pelicy,
thiere would be instances that the policy over these transactions would be different from that of the
Parent. In the event that significant differences in the accounting policy for & given transaction exist
between the Farent and its subsidiaries, the Parent makes appropriate adjuestment 0 the financial
statemants of the subsidiary to conform to the Growp’s policy for the purpose of consolidation,

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under PFRS. Management assessed that the
accounting policies of the Parent and its subsidiaries are substantially similar for like transactions and
avents, thus, no adjustment has been made In the consodidated financial statements.

50104 Assessment of Conbno

The Group determines whether an entity qualifies as a subsidiary when it has control over an entity.
The Group controls an entity when it has the three elements of control as dischosed 0 Note 4, Inmaking
its judgments, the Group considers all facts and circumstances when assessing control over an investes.
A reassessment of control s conducted when there are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control, Any changes from at least one of the elements would resulk to lese or gain of controd ower an
entity.

The Group having fifty-one percent (51%) to one hundred percent (100%) ownership and woting
interest, assessed that it has control over all of Its subsidianes since it has powes over the subsidianes,
exposure or rights to variable returns frem its invalvernent and ability to use its power to affect the
component of ks retums.

5.01.05 A G ng S
In accerdance with the provisions of PFRS 8, Operating Segments, the Groups reporting segment is
based on the management approach with regard to the segmeant identification, uader which information
regulary provided to the chief operating decision maker for dedision-making purposes is considerad as
decisive, The segments ane also evaluated under the managemant appraach.

The Group reports its segment based on gecgraphic areas. The Management identifies its operating
segments as generally based on nature and location of itS customers, The Group has four (4] reportable
segments: Exports, Distribution, Retail and Foreign Trading. The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies. Segment profit represents the profit earmed
by each segment witheout allocation of net trading gains (losses), other income, equity in net eamings,
operating expenses and income tax.,

The Group determines whathar the contractual berms of a financial asset give rise on a spacified date to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding. In
making Its judgements, the Group considers whether the cesh Mows before and after Lhe changes in
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timing or in the amount of payments represent only payments of principal and Interest on the principal
amount outstanding,

Managemant assessed that the contractual tesms af its Anancial assets are salely payments of principal
and interest and consistent with basic lending armangement. As of September 30, 2022 and December
31, 2021, carying emounts of the Group's financial assets amounted to P1,263,797,226 and
A1, 255,001,930 respectivaly, as disclosed in Note 29

5.01.0F Existence of 3 Contract Sales of Real Estate

The Group’s primary document for a contract with a customer from réal estate sabe is & signed contract
to sell. It has determined, however, that in cases wherein contract to sell are not signed by both parties,
the combinaticn of its other signed documentabion such as reservation agreement, officlal recelpts,
buyers' computation shests and invodoes, would contain all the criteria to qualify as contract with the
customer under PFRS 15.

In addition, part of the assessment process of the Group before revenue recognition ks to assess the
probatrlity that the Group will colect the consideration o which it will ba entitled in exchange for the
real estate progerty that will be transferred to the customer.

In evaluating whether collactability of an ampunt of consideration is probable, an entity considers the
significance of the customer's initial payments in relation to the total contract price. Collectability is also
assessed by considering facbors such as past history with the customer, age and pricing of the property,
Management regularly evaluates the histarical cancellations and back-outs if it would still support its
current thrasheld of customers’ eguity before commencing revenue recognition,

An entity satisfies a perfformance ebligation by transferring cantrod of a promised good or service to the
custamer, which could ootur over tirme Grat 8 paint in time,

201.08.01 oale of Real Cetale

The Group concluded that revenue for real estate sales is to be recognized over time because: (a)
the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use and; (b) the Group has
an enforceabla right Far performance comipletad to date.
The promised property is specifically identified in the contract and the contractual restriction on the
Group's ability to direct the promised property for another use is substantive. This s bacause the
property promised to the customer 5 not interchangeable with other properties without breaching
the contract and without Incurring significant costs that otherwise would not have been incurred in
refation to that contract.

In addition, under the current legal framework, the customer is contractually obliged to make
paymaents to the developer up to the porformance completed to date. In addition, the Group
requires @ certain  percentage of buyer's payments of total selling  price
(buyer's eqguity), to be collected as one of the criteria in order to initiate revenue recognition.
Resching this level of collection is an indicotion of buyer's comtinuing commitment and the
probability thet economic benefits will Fow to the Group. The Group considers that the initial and
cortinuing investments by the buyer of about ten percent {10%) would demonstrate the buyer's
commitment to pay.

The Gioup has determined that input method used in measurdng the progress of the performance
obligation faithfully depicts the Group's performance in transferming control of real estate
development to the customers,

fn 2022,2021 and 2020 revenue from szle of real estate amounted to P206,072 611, 141,249,379,
and PI0G, 231,931, respectively, as disclosed in Mote 19,

5.01.08.02 Sale of Goods
The Group identifies performance obligations by considering whether the promised goods or
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services in the contract are distindd goods or services. A good or service is distinct when the
customer can benefit from the good or service on itS own or together with ather resounces that are
readily available to the customer and the Group's promiss to transfer the good or service to the
customer is separately identifiable from the other promises in the contract. The Group delivers the
best quality produce by exporting and locally distributing all kinds of fruits and vegetables and
ather agri-products but iBs main praducts are bananas, mangoes, and coconut water, The Group
determined that the deliverad varlous agri-products are capable of being distinct and therefore
considerad as separate performance obligations.

In 2020, 2019 and 2018, revenue from sales goods amounted (o P4,407 781,487, P4,102,429,453 and
P4, 309 487,251, respactively, as disclosed i Nobe 18

A performance obligation ks a vendor's promisa to transfer a good or service that s "distinct’ from other
goods and services identified in the contract,

Management assessed that allecation of fransaction price to pedformance obligation s not applicable
since the anly obligation identified is to deliver goods bo its customers.

01,10 of 30 d f

An entity determines when a default occurs on its Bnancial assets based on the cedit management
practice of the entity.

Management believes that the 30 days rebuttable presumption on determining whether there s a
significant increass in credit risk in financial assets 8 not applicable because based on the Group's
historical experience, credit risk has not increased sigaificantly even the amounts are past due for more
than 30 days.

501,11 Assessment of 90 days rebuftable presurmption

The Group determines when a significant increase in credit risk eocurs on its financial assets based on
the credit Managemant practice of the Group,

Managerment believes that the 93 days rebuttable presumption on determining whether there = a
significant increase in credit risk in financial assets is not applicable based on the Group's historical
experiencs the Group determines that past dus amounts aven over 90 days ane still collectible,

] [
CASOCIISN DelWesn FSTODerty I L

The Group determines whether & property qualifies as investment properties. In making its judgments,
the Group considers whether the proparty generates cash flows largely independent of the othear assets
held by the antity. Owner-accupied properties genarate cash flows that are attributable not only to the
property but akso to other assets used In the production or supply process,

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rental or for capital aporeciation and another
portion that s held for use for administrative purposes. If these partions can be sold separately [or
leased sut separately under finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions separatedy. If the portion
cannot be sold separately, the propety 1S accounted for as investmeant property cnly I sn Insigrificant
partion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for acministrative purposes.
Judgment is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify &= investment property. The Group considers sach property separately in making its judgment,

LT oLl

The Group clazsified the construction in progroess foar retall and office spaces as investment properties
because these are intendsd for ease. Accordingly, the carrying amounts of investment properties
amaounted oo #1,25%6,553,681 and P1,188 425,936 as of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021,
respectively, as disclosed in Note 12,
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After recognition as an asset, an item of property and equipment whose fair value can be measured
reliably shall be carried at & revalued smount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
shall be made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carmying amount does not differ materally
from that which would ba determined wusing fair value at tha and of the epaorting pariod.

The frequency of revaluation depends upon the changes in fair values of the items of proparty and
equipment being revalued. When the fair value of a revalued asset differs materialty from its carrying
amaount, a further revaluation s required. Some items of property and equipment experience significant
and volatile changes in fair value, thus necessitating annual revaluation. Such frequent revaluations are
unnecessary for ibems of property, plant and equipment with only insignificant changes in fair value,
Instead, it may be necsssary to revalue the item anly every thres (3) to five [(5) years.

The revaluation surplus Included in equity in respect of an ibem of property and equipment may be
transferred directly to retained eamnings when the asset s derecognized, This may involve transferring
the whole amount of surpius when the asset is retired or disposed of. Howewver, some of the surplus
may be transfarred as the asset is used by an entty. In such a casa, the amount of the surplus
transferred would be the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the
asset and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. Transfers from revaluation surplus to retained
Eamings are not made through profit or l6ss.

In making &5 judgment on the frequency of revaluation, managemant considered the significant changes
in the fair value of its revalued assets, Hence, 8 new revaluation was adopted a5 of reporting periods.
The Group also determined whather depraciation of s fived assats relates to property and equipment
subsequently measured using cost model and revaluation model. In doing so0, Management considerad
thee tax effect of the depreciation of the revaluation surplus which corresponds to the revaleed amount
af property, plant and equipment, Since transfers from revaluation swrplus to retained earnings
resulting from piecemesal amartization are not made through profit or loss but are transfered directly
to equity, depreciation related to revalued Bssets i3 nok deductible for tax purposes.

In both years, the Group assessed that the carrying amount of the revalued property and equipment
approximates its fair value, Az of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of the revalued
property and equipment amounted to B316 229570 and B247 378 07%, respectively, as disclosed im
Mate 12.

For contracts in place at the date of initial apodication, the Group bas elected to apgdy the defintion of

& lease from PAS 17 and IFRIC 4 and has not applied PFRS 16 to arrangements that wene previously
fial ideatified as lease under PAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

Management assessed that the ease of machivery, transportation eguipment and store premises
qualified as a leasa since gach contract contains an identified asset, the Group has the right to obiain
substantially all of the economic benefits, and the Group has the right to direct the vse of the identified
assel throughout the peniod of use.

Lease term ks the non-cancellable pedod for which the Group has the right (o use an Lesss Lerm s the
non-canceliable period for which the Group has the right to use an underlying asset including optional
perods when the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend (or not to berminabe) a
lgass. The Company considars all rélavant facte and circumstances that craate &n Sconormit Ncentive
for the lessee to exercise the option when determining the lease term and the enforceability of the
option, The option to extend the lease term should be included in the lease term if it &5 reascnably
certain that the lessee will exercizse the option and the option is enferceable. The Group is required to
reassess the option whan significant events or changes in driumstances occur that are within the control
of the lesses,

For lease contracts entered into In both yoars, most are renewabde by mutual agreement, except for
conkracts which does not contain & provision on rnewal option. Management assessad that these lease



- 53 T
contracts cannot be extended beyond the non-cancelable lease period since such are not enforceable
under the Philippine law,

In both years, the Management used the lease term of four [(4) o seven () years In the compulation
of right-of-use-assets and lease labilities.
5.02 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainties

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertalinties at the end of the reposting periods that have a significant risk of cawsing 2 material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assats and liabilities within the next financial year.

The Group's révinue recoghition and cost poles require management bo make use of estimates and
assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of revenues and costs. The Growp's revenue from
real estate and constrectlon conbracts s recognized based on the percentage of completion (POC) are
measured principally on the basis of the estimated completion of a physical proportion of the contract
work. Apart from volving significant estimates in determining the guentity of Impors such as
materials, labor and equipment needad, the assessment process for the POC is comples dnd the
estimated project development costs requires technical determination by management’s specialists
[project engimeers).

2.02.02 Estimating Allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECL}

The Group incocrporates forward-lcoking information inko both its assessment of whether the credit risk
of an instrument has increased significantly since (5 initial recagnithon and 8 measurement of ECL

The Group considers @ range of relevant forward looking macro-economic assumptions for the
determination of unblased general Industry adjustments and any related specific industry adjustments
that support the caboulation of ECLs. Based on the Group’s evaluation and assessment and after taking
into consideration external actual and forecast infarmation, the Group formulates a 'hase case” view aof
the future direction of relevant economic variables as well as a representative range of other possibie
forecast scenaios, This process involves developing two or more additional econcmic scenarios and
considering the relative probabilities of each outcome, External information includes economsc data and
forecasts published by gowvernmental bodies, monetary authorities and selected private-sector and
academic institutions,

The basée case represents a most-likely outcomea and is aligned with information used by the Group for
other purposes such as strategic planning and budgeting. The other scenanos represent more optimistic
ant more pessimistic outcomes, Peradically, the Group CaTies oul Stress testing of more adtneme
shocks to calibrabe its determination of these other representative scenarios. The Group has identified
and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses of each portfolio of financial instruments
ard, using Bn analysis of historical data, has estirmated relationships betwesn macro-sconamic variables
and credit risk and credit kxsses.

The Group applies general approach for determining the ECL of cash in banks, other receivables
(except advances to officers and empioyees), due from related parties and stockholders, and
refundahle deposits presented under "prepayments and other current assets’ and deposts and
ather non-current astets, A credit loss is the difference between the cash fMows that are expected
to e recelved discounted at the original effective interest rate and contractual cash Mows in
accordance with the contract. The loss allowance for financial assets is based on the assumptions
about risk of cefault and expected loss rates.

In 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Group recognized provision for expected credit losses on other receivables
amounting to nil, P43 316,857 and nil, respectively. Tha Group alss made a reversal of allowance for
expected credit losses amounting to P43,316,857, nil.and nil, in 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. As
of December 31, 2021 and 2020, aliowance for expected credit losses on other receivables amounted
to P3,516,118 and P46,832,975 respectively, as disclosed in Motes 7, 23 and 24,

In 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Group recognized provision for expected credit losses on due from related
parties  and  stockholders amounting to  nil, nil and PG,264,530, respectively.
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The Group also made a direct write-off of the allowance for expected credt kosses amounting to nil,
P4.978.013 and nll, in 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. As of September 30, 2022 and December
31, 2021, allowance for expected credit losses on due from related parties and stockholders amounted
to P6,460,530, as dischosed in Notes 21, 23 and 24,

As ol 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, allowance for expected credit losses on refundable deposits
presented under ‘prepayments and other current assets’ and ‘deposits and other non-current
assets’ amounted to P6, 711,100, as disclosed in Motes 9 and 15

The Group applles the simplified approach in trade recelvables to measure expected credit losses which
uses a lifetime expected Oss allowance i all reteivabiles and financial dsset ot amortized oosts. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-locking factors specific to the debtors and the economic anvironment, Detailed informiation
regarding the Company's impairment of financlal assets |s discussed (n Mote 28.

Im 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Group recognized provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
amounting to nil, P5,504 378 and P6,B85,949, respectively. The Group alsa made a reversal of
allowance for expected credit osses amounting to P36, 728,895, nil and nil, in 2021, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, allowance for expected credit losses on trade
receivables amounted to P48,055,688 and PB4,784 583, respectively, as disclosed in Motes 7, 23 and
24,

240,02 Estimating Inventories at Net Realizable Yalues

Met realizable values of inventories are assessed regularly based on the prevailing selling prices of
inventories less estimated costs to eall, The Group recognizes axpense and provides allowance for
dedine in value of inventories whenever nat realizable value of inventories becomes lower than cost due
to damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence, changes on price levels or other cavses. Inventory
items identified to be obsolete and wnusable is writben off and charged against allowance account.
Increase in the net realizable values will increase the carrying amount through reduction of allawance
for decline but enly te the extent of orginal acquisitiaon cost.

In both years, Management believes the net realizable value of inventories approximate theis costs,
thus, no allowance for decline in value was recognized. As of September 30, 2022 and December 31,
2021, inventories amounted ko AL, 364,451 495 and RL, 317 725,194, respectively, 85 disclosed in Note
A.

202,04 Fair Ve of Iovestment Progerty

The Group has adopted the falr value approach in determining the camying walue of its Investment
property. While the Group has opted ta rely on independent appraisers to determine the fair valie of its
Iinvestment properties, such fair value was determined based on recent prices of similar properties, with
adjustments to reflect any changes In econosmic conditions since the date of the transactions that
ooturred at those prices. The amounts and timing of recorded changes in fair value for any pariod would
differ if the Group made different judgments and estimates or utilized different basis for determining
fair value,

In 2021, the Managemant recognized galn on change n fair valuz of investment property based on the
valuation report dated Decamber 27, 2020 by Guangdong Tianshun Land Real Estate Asset Appraisal
Co., Ltd, emounting to POO8, 745,817 &5 disclosed in Note 12. The Royal Chértered Surveyor has
thoroughly and meticulously analyzed the characteristics and actual conditions project, and has studed
the information provided by the client. Op the basis of market research, the property to be assessed is
commercial [(agricultural commaodity Erading center) and leasing in nature. In order b0 make the
valuation results scientific, accurate and objective, the appraiser use the market comparison method
and the income method to evaiuate their value. The comparative method is bo compane the real estate
of the objact of valuation with the similar real estate that has been traded recently at the time of value,
and to make appropriate amendments to the transaction price of these similar real estate. In order to
estimate the object of real estate objective reasonable price or value of valuation mathod. The income
methoad is & method to convert the net incorme of the expectad valuation object real estate in the fulure
penod into the present value of the value point by usng the approprate reduction interest rate, and to
find the sum of its present value to determing the real estate price.
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Az of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the carrying amount of investmant property amounted
b 1,256,573,681 and P1,188,425,936, respactively, as disclosed in Mote 13,

5 07.05 Egir Val ¢ Biclogical Asset
The Group has adopted the falr value approach in determining the carrying value of ite biodogical assats,
The Group determines its fair value based on recent prices of similar assets, with adjstments to reflect
any changes in ecanomic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred a2t those prices,
The amaunts and timing of recorded changes in fair value for any perod would differ if the Group made
different judgments and estimates or utilied differant basis for determining fair value.

The fair value of blological assets was derived using the market approach. In Seplember 30, 2022,
the Management recognized galn on change in falr value of blological assets based on the valuation
amaunting to £21,650,885, as disciosed in Note 15, As of Sepiember 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021,
the carrying amount of biclogical assets amounted to P100,952,617 and P59,301,732, respectively, as
disclosad in MNote 14,

L6 Fair W

The valuation has been carried out on January 6, 2021, in accordance with the Santos Knight Framk,
Inc, incorperating the Intematonal Valuation Standards of the Intermational Valuation Standards Coundil
(IWSC), and the Philippine Valuation Standards (PYS). In valuing the land Market Approach was used
which s the most common technlgque for valulng land, and is the most preferred method wihven
comparable sales are avallable. With this method, sales of similar property or parcels of land are
anelyzed, compared, gnd adjusted to provide a value indication for the property being appraised. The
comparison process is based on an enalysis of the similarity or dissimitarity of the comparable. Cost
Approach was used for the Improvements while a combination of the Market and Cost Approach was
used for the machinery and equipment. The Cost Approach generally involves the following steps: {a)
The value of the subject land s normally estimated by the Market Data or Sales Comparison Approach.
In instances where available market data is suffident, the Income Approach (Residual Method) can be
used, (b) The depreciated cost of the subject improvement is estimated by calculating the direct cost of
reproducing or replacing the improvement, deducting accrued depreciation from all sources, and adding
the indirect costs attributed to the improvement. Combining the esbmales shown above resulls in the
indicated value of the subfesct property by the Cost Approach

As of Dmoember 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of property and equipment at révakied
amount are P316,229,.570 and P247,.378.079, respectively, &5 disclosed in Nobe 12,

The residual valuss, useful lives and depreciation method of the Group's property and equlpment are
reviewed at least annually, and adjusted prospectively If appropriate, if there is an indication of a
significant change In, how an asset is used; significant unexpected wesr and tear; bechnological
advancement; and changes in market prices since the most recent annual reparting date. The usaful
lives of the Group's property and equipment asre estimated based on the period over which the assets
are expectad o be availadle for use. In determining the useful life of propery and equipment, the
Group considers the expected usage, expected physical wear and tear, technical or commercal
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production, or from a change in the market
demand for the product or service output and legal or other limits on the use of the Group's assets.

In addition, the estimation of the useful lives is based on Company’s collectve assessment of industry
practice, internal t=chnical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It s possible, howewver, that
future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by
changes in factors mentioned above, The amounts and timing of recorded expances for any pariod would
be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances,

A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment would increase the recognired
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expenses and decrease non-current assets, The Group uses a depreciation methed that reflects the
pattem in which It expects to conswme the property and eguipment’s future economic benefits, I thers
is an indication that there has been a significant change In the pattern used by which the Group expects
to consume the property and equipment’s future economic benefits, the entity shall review its present
depreciation mathod and, if current expedations diffar, charge the depreciation method to reflect the
néw patten,

In both years, Management assessed that there are no indications that there has been any change in
pattenn used by the Group in consuming s property and equipment’s fulune ecsnoemic benefits,

The carrying amounts of depreciable property and aguipment measured 2t revalued amounts as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted o PL64,229.570 and P35,378,079, respactively, as disclosed
in Mobe 12,

The camying amounts of depreciable property and eguipment measured at cost as of December 31,
2020 and 1015 amounted to B272,035,2325 and F141 552,995, respactively, as disclosed in Note 13.

502,08 Reviewing Residual Value, Useful Life and Amortization Method of Intangible Aszsts

The residual value, usanul ife and amaortization method of the Group's Intangible assels are reviewesd at
least annually, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate, if there Is an indication of & significant change
in, how an asset is used; technodogical advancement; and changes in market prices since the most
recent anmual reporting date. Amortization begine when the intangible asset is available for use, ie.,
when it 5 in the location and condition mecessary for it to be usabla in the manner intended by
Management. Amortization ceases when the intangible asset is derecognized. The Group uses a siraight-
line method of amortization since it cannol determine reliably the pattern in which it expects o consumes
the intanglble asset's future econcmic benefits.

In both years, Management assessed that there are no Indications that there has been any change in
pattern used by the Group In consuming ks intangible assets’ future economic benefits. As of September
30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the carrying amounts of the intanglble assets are PL68, 258,461 and
P167,174,787, respectively, as disclosed in Note 14,

5 02,09 Asset I " I
The Group perfonms an impairment review whan certain impairment indicators are present. Datarmining
the Tair value of advances o officers and employess, prepayments and ather current assats (except
refundable depagits), property and equipment, investment property, rght-of use assets, intangibls
assets and deposits and other mon-current assets (except refundable deposits), which require the
destermination of future cash fMows expeciesd (o e generated from the contineed vse and witimate
disposition of such assets, requires the Group to make estimates and assumptions that can materially
affect the financial statements, Future events could cause the Group to conclude that aforementioned
assots arg impaingd. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impact on the financial
condition and resuits of operatons.

The preparation of the estimated future cash Nows involves significant judgmant and estimations. While
thie Group believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in the
assumptions may materiafly affect the assessment of recoverable wvalues and may lead to future
adcitional impairment charges under PFRS,

In 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Group wrote-off advances bo officers and employees amounting to nil, nil
and P428, 267, as disclosed in Nate 7.

In 2021, 2020 and 2019, the Greup recognized provisson for Impairment on prepayments and other
current assets amounting to nil, PLB5,820 and P6,113,433, respectively, as disclosed in Notes 9 and
23,

In 2021, 2020 and Z01%, the Group recognized provision for impairment on deposits and other mon-
current assets (except refundable deposits) amaunting to nll, P6,640,000 and nil, respectively. The
Group also wrote-off deposits and ather non-current assets
(except refundable deposits) amounting to nil, nif and PSE.7 milllon as disclosed in MNobtes 9
and 23.
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In both years, Management assessed that no indicators of impairment had existed on property and
efgulprment, Investment property, right-of use assets and Intangible assets,

As of December 11, 2021 and 2020, the aggregats carrying amounts of advances o officers and
employees, prepayments and ofther current assets (except refundable deposits), property and
equipment, investment property, right-of use assets, intangible assets and deposits and other non-
current assets (axcept refundable deposits) amounted to P3 184, 744 468 and 23,128 872 455
respactively, as disclosed in Notes 7, 11, 12, 13 and 15.

S.02.10 Deferred Tax Asssils

The Group reviews the carrying amounts at each reporting period and reduces deferred tax assets to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficdent taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax assets to be utilized prior to its explration,

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group recognized defered tax assets from affect of PFRS 16
amounting & PLO009 and P3E7.049, respectively, as disclosed n  Note 26
In both yesrs, Management believes that future taxable profite will be svailable to allow all or part of
defarred taw azsets to be utilized prior to axpiration.

5.02.11 Post-emptoyment Benefits

The determination of the retirement obligation amd Cost and other retirement benelts s dependent on
the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries n calculating such amounts. Those assumptions
include among others, discount rates, mortality of plan members and rates of compensation increase.
In accordance with PFRS, actual results that differ from the assumptions and the effects of changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized directly as remeasurements in other comprehensive income and
therefore, generally affect related obligation.

Whike the Group believes that the assumplions ane reasonable and appropriate, significant differences
in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materally affect the pension and
other retirement obligations.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s retirement benefit obligation are P19,275,038 and P12 088,815 as
of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, as disclosed in Note 25,

In 2021, 2020 and 2019, the retirement benafit expense recegnized are P3,144,024, P1,554,161 and
P1,372,732, respectively, as disclosed in Notes 23 and 25.

In 2021, 2020 and 2019, the remeasuremant, net of related tax, amounted to a loss of P4,042,199, nil,
P3.278 867, respectively, as disciosed in Note 25

5.02.12 Assessment of Joint Control

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharnng of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions aboul the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharng contred, An
entity has a control when it is exposad, or has rights to variable retums from involverment with the
arrangemant and has the ability to affect those returns through their povwer over the arrangemaernit,

In both years, Management assessed that the comtractual armangement with a third party and the
landowners gives both parties jont control since decision about the relevant activities requires the
unanimaus consent af both parties sharing contral,

The joint arrangement is classified into joint operations End joint ventures. The joint opearations ane &
joint armangement whereby the parties that hawve joint control of the arangement have rights to the
Bssats, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement while the joint venture i3 & joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint contred of the arrangement hawve rights to the net
assets of the arrangement. The joint arrangement agreed by the Parent Company and a third party and
tha landowners was mutually classified by both parties as a jaint venkura.

Management believes that a joint venture arrangeament will maintain the parties’ rights tn net assets,
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502, 14 Estimatian of Impairment of Goodwill

The Group reviews the carrying value of goodwill for impairment annually or more frequently, i events
of changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Assessments reguire the
use of estimates and assumptions such as market evaluation and trends, discount rates, future capital
requirements and operating performance. If the recoverable amount of the unit exceeds the carrying
amount of the goodwill, the goodwill shall be regarded as not impaired.

Mo provision for impairmment of goodwill was recognized n 2021 and 2020, kowever, 0 2019 provision
was recagnized amounting to 255,343,063, as disclosed in Motes 13 and 23.

As of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the carrying amount of gocdwill amounted to
P40,295,886 and F36,977,238, respectively, as disclosed in Note 14,

502,15 Contingencies

The Group is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimate of the probable costs for the
resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with outside counsel handing the defense
of thiese matters and i bazed upon an analysis of potential results. The Group currently does not beliave
that these proceadings will have a material effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements (see
Notes 7 and 35).

Cash
2022 2021
Cash in banks 67,623 531 48 334,058
Cash on hand 1,267,977 31,861,174
68,911,508 20,195 232

Caszh in banks earn interest at the prevalling bank d=posit rates of less than 1.0% annual interes:
income earnad from cash in banks, net of final taxes withheld, amounted o L1505 In 2022
and 13,151 in 2021,

The Group has cash in banks derominated in forelgn currency such as USD, HKD and RMB.These
CEEh In banks were ranglated as at Septambser 30, 2022 and December 31, 20321 closing rales (sae
Mote 28).

Trade and Other Receivables
This account congists of :
~ 202" 2021
Trade 611,401,536 563,628,263
Advances o amployees T1.804, 264 63,561,313
Chers 206,699,148 163,876,155
B85, 004 948 TOT.0E5, T
Less alowance for impairment iosses;
Trade 52.317,3T4 51,571,804
Adhvances 1o officers and a o 6,549 3654 834
Ciihers
56.344,323 55,226 638

833 560,625 741,839,093
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Trade receivables are noninterest-bearing and are collectible within 30 to 90 days. These are
generally settled through cash payment or apalication of customers' depasit.

Other recervables as 21 Seprember 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 include noninterssi-hearing
recaivables from sales of scraps and first-class rejects, which are sold to local wet market ata lawer
price. This s generally collectitde on 15 to 30-day terms. Other recelvables as at September 30, 2022
and December 31, 2021 also include receivable from a third party amountingbo #64.6 million which
ie nchided in an angoing crimenal action initlated by the Grmoup to recover Ehe eaind receivabila among
others. Tha amount i guarantesed by a stockholder in theevent of an adverse result of the ongoing
Case,

The Group has trade recelvables denominated in foreign currency which are transiated at September
30, 2022 closing rates (see Note 28).

Movements In allpwance for impairment losses pertaining to trade recelvables follows:

Balance at haginning of yes 55 226 £38 135,272 302
Prondsion for impalrment dur 1,117 685

Reversal during the year (80,045, 754)
Write ofl during the year -
Balance at end of year 56,344 323 55,226 638

Mone of the Group's recenvables wera pledged to any of its abilites,

B. Inventories

This account consists of the following at oost,

= 2022" 2021

Property lor sake 960,896,375 204, BT1,685

Merchandise, furnitre and appliances 327 166, B4 303 4TR 125
Agriculiural produce, beverages and

vegan products 94,030,545 82,776,207

Pachkaging materials and olher supplies 25,826,825 26,599, 187

1,402,920,590 1,317,725,104

Property for sale represents development costs and construction materals for residential and
commercial units of Shangmei Century Plaza Development Project ocabed in Jiawang Districk, Xuzhou,
China.

The carmmying amaunts of the total inventories as of September 30, 2022 and Decembear 31, 2021 are
lvweisr than thelr NRVES. There wers ng punchase commitments and acocrusd net losses oninventorkss
in the period 2022 and 2021,

Mo pravision far inventory obsalescence or impairment was recognized in 2022 and 2021, Inventories
are not pledged as security for any of the Group's liabilities.
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Prepayments and Other Current Asseis

This acoount consists of:

2022 2021
Input VAT 135,367,248 132,781,931
Advances o supplers 44 T38 494 53,767 630
Refundable deposits 15,170,466 14,850, 402
Creditabe withholding taxes 3,780,203 1,775,589
Prepaid axpense 1,384 547 1,123,309
Deferrad inpul VAT 335 4925 335,925
Materials and supplies 135,625 142 040
200 316,916

Less allowance for impairment osses:
Refundable deposis 12,383 847 12,493 978
188,529,061 191,822,938

Advances to suppliers represent noninterest-baaring advanced payments to third-party farelgn and
local suppliers for various future delivery of purchases of goods and performance of services. In

2018, advances o suppliers amounting to ® 96,878 was directly writhen-off a5 management
beliewes it will no longer be recovered as at reparting date.

Refundable deposits are made for short-term store-leased spaces of the Group, These deposits will
be refunded upon end of laase berm,

Creditable withholding tax s considersd prepayments which are claimed for the tax to be paid
during the year and are carried aver in the sueceeding period for the same purpose.

Prepaid expense incdudes insurance, short-term lease rental and 17 senvices, Prepaid insurance
refers o insurances of vehicles, equipment and construction in progress,

Movements in allowance for Impairment losses petaining to prepaymeants and other current assats
fallaws:

Balance at bagimning of yea 12,493,978 12,356,001
Prowvision for impairment during e year 185820
Reversal dunng he year {110,131} (47,843}
Balance at end of year 12,383,847 12,493,978

Financial Azgat at Fair Valus through Other Comprehensive Income (FYOCT)

On Aprl 3, 2018, the Group acquired 15% ownership of CHMP Supply Chain Mansgement (Shanghai)
Co. Ltd, & company Incorporated in China. The acquired shares are classified asinwestment at fair
value through other comprehensive income [(FYOCE) amounting to P449.67 millon and 247,80
milllan as at September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021,
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11. Deposit for Future Investmants

The Group entered into a purchase agresment with a third party in September 2016 involvingthe
purchase of 49% equity inberest in Zongshan Fucang Trade Co. Ltd, (Fucang ), & companyregistered in
China. Fucang s engaged ; agri commodity trading and with investments in real estate development
and agri trading. In 2016, ANI made a depesit for the acguisition of 49% equity Investment in
Fucang amounting o RMB42.63 milicn or RI0E.2 million, subject to e fulfifrment of conditions
precedent as set forth in the agreement of the parties,

In 2017, the Group purchased an additional 2% of the total registened capital of Fucang amounting
to RMB4,09 million or #30.6 milion which resulted to an increase in aquity interest in Fucang, As at
December 31, 2017, the deposit for future investment totaling B338.8 million is redassified
te investment in subsidiary in the Group’s consobdated statements of financdal position,

Im 2017, Fucang made 2 deposit amounting to ®194.7 milllon to acquire 60% ownership of the
stockholdings of Guangzhou Tianchen Real Estate Develdopment Co.,, Lid, a real estale company in
China. The balance of this deposit amownted to #194.3 and #195.0 as at March 31, 2020 and December
31, 2019, respectivaly. As of reporting date, the construction is 38% completed and is expected to be
finished on year 2022,
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12. Property and Equipment

Rallforsard analysis of the Group's property and equipment as at September 30 2022 and December 31, 2021 follows:
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Certaln assets such as delivery and transportation eguipment, bulldngs and machinery eguipment are covered by Insurance,

Land and building lacabed in Pulilan, Bulacan with camying value of B 201 8B million ancd @ 1751 million as at Septembec 30, 2022 and December 31,
2021, respectively, are used as collaterals for one of its long-term labilities.
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In 2018, three (3} delivery trucks under transportation equipment of the Group, amounting
to B34 million, is mortgaged as collateral for its own auto-loan (see Note 17). The camying
value of the trucks as at September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 amounted to P2.0
million and B2.6 million, respectively,

The Group's commitment o acquire property Is discussed in Neote 15, The Group's
management had reviewed the carrying walues of property and equipment as of
September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 for any possible impairment. Based on the
avaluation, there are no indications that the property and eguipment are impaired.

13. Investment Property

The roliforward analysis of construction i progress under investment proparty follows:

2022 2021

Balance at beginning of year 1,188,425,936 262,348,877
Transterred i inventory = 56,049 587  (146,666,451)
Translarred (rom achvances o contracions 38,531,280
Effect of forelgn exchange transkation 125,466,413
Additions during the year 136,799,223

Gain on change in fair value 008,745 81T
Balance at end of the year 1,269175,572 1,188,425 936

The Group's management had reviewed the carrying values of investment property as at September
30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 for any possible impairment, Based on the evaluation, thera are
no indications that the investment property is impaired,

The Group's investment properties are not pledged as security for any of the Group's liabilities, The
Group has no contractual commiltment to purchase investment property.
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14. Intangible Assets

This account consists of the following, net of any accumulabed amortization and impairment;

2003
Tridrar Gaawi Franchan Campiinr Soflwam Tota
Cog:
Ealarp ol baganming of year 200000000  05.014,063 2,040,750 T/A14, 768 JL1 678574
Additions durirg the year 184 5359 1112399 58,058 1,357 BRY |
Balance at end of the year 200,184,538 96 100,342 9,049, 750 7470, 796 313,091,427
Accumulnted smoricaticn and mpamment:
Balsrce at begoesng of year TiGpO o000 59 TEL IS 9049 T4 r i e | La4 508 TEy
KT Eaton 184,813 LT 190,313
Effect of foregn cumency ranshtan -
Ealanie Al end of % year 716BA5H  55.781.T16 5,049,750 F.178.004 144,604,015
e Eﬂuﬂhe 127500000 M.WEIE : -ﬂ_!lﬂll I.H.]El.'-"ﬁi"
021
Tradermark Goodwil Framchesn Compuisr Sofiwary Total
Cost:
Balance al begneeng of pear JE0.000,000  95014,063 2,049,750 TAS?,105 111,520,918
Additong durrg 1B yesr ]5.'-‘,5-55. 157 656
Dispnsah durng the yesr -
Balarce at end of the yesr 200,000,000 95,014,063 9,040 50 Th14, 761 Jei 678,574
Actumulabed Bmiordizaticn and mmparment:
Balanca ai beginnng of year £2,500,000  5B,035.875 9,040,750 T 2ES 135,680,841
Tmpaemian :
Effact of Mweghn Cumency Transhimon (4255, 110 (2,255,110}
BT AT L0000, 000 H,058 " 10,078,058
|_Dicasal durng e yesr :
Balsnce at end of the year 73500000 55781 Ti 9,049, 750 FARFAF | 144,507 T&7
| et carrying vk tlI__.Ed]EILﬂ'III 19352, 347 - A 440 LET 174,787
[
Trademark

The trademark includes that related to the acguisition of TBC in 200 1. Dwuring the acquisition
af TBC, net assets acquired includes trademark for the use of "Big Chill” brand, amounting to
P 200.0 million which was induded in the purchase price.

Goodwill
The goodwill of the Group |5 attributable mainly to the business acquisitions made in 2017 to
expand the Group's operations.

Franchise

On January 7, 2011, the Group entered into a Master Licensing Agreement with Tully's Coffes
International Pte. Ltd. for the operation of coffee shops and sale of coffee products under the
brand "Tully’s”, The term of the license is for a period of ken years but maybe extended for
another 10 years. Under the agreement, the Group paid $200,000 equivalentta #9.05 million
as a sign-up fee,

Computer softwans

The computer software pertains to the accounting software used by the Group. The carrying
value of computer software is reviewed for impairment when events or changes In
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable, No impairment lossis
recognized as at September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021,
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The Group's Intangible assets are not pledged as security to any of the Group’s liabilities. The
Group has no contractual commibtment to purchase ntangible assets.

15, Biological assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's biological assets amounted to 141,651,133 and
P59,301,732, as of September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively, Consumable
biological assets include corns, bokchoy, italian parsiey, green ice lettuce, romaine, kailaan and
coriander. These are located in agricultural farms in Tanauan and Batulao Batangas and
Bansalan, Davao del Sur.

The movements in the camying amounts of the biological assets are shown below:

- 2022" 2021

Balance, January 1, 2022 59,301,732

Increases due to purchases 20,000,000 41689411

Gain arising fram chages in 62,349,401 17,612,321

fair value less cost to sell
Balance, June 30, 2022 141,651,133 59,301,732
16. Deposit and other noncurrent assets
2022 2021

Advances and deposits 690,536,854 686,799,121
Deposit for future investment 222,487,772 214,263,521
Refundable deposits 1,895,348 1,774,276
Subtotal 914,919,973 S02,8356918

Less : Allowance for impairment loss - 6,640,000 - 6,640,000
908,279,973 896,196,918

Advances and deposits include the following:

« Deposit made to acquire a portion of the B53 hectares, or a corresponding portion thereod,
of titled and wuntitled parcels of land amounting to R508.7 million as at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, The deposit was increased in 2019 by ® 208.7 million which was
advanced by one of its stockholders (see Note 20). As at reporting date, the third party is
completing the titling of the whole portion of the property bo fully execute the transactions (sea
Mote 1).

e In 2017, Fucang made a deposit amounting to P194.7 million to invest in Guangzhou Tianchen
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd, a real estate company in China. The balance
of this deposit amounted to (CNY 26.8 million) as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively
and shall be converted to equity once the construction projects of Tianchen is completed, As at
reporting date, the construction is 60% completed and is expected tobe finished on the second
quarter of 2022,

& Advances (o project amounting to #120.1 millien as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, represents
advances for land acquisitions intended for future business prospects. In 2020, the land was
sold and the Group authorizes its stockholder to receive the proceeds from sale,

# Advance payment to Tolman Manufacturing Inc. ("Tolman®) for future acquisition of equipment
neceseary for pre-processing, sterilization, aseptic storage and clean in place station for coconut
water amounting to ®30.6 million as at December 31, 2020 and 2019. The Group has ongoing
criminal action against Tolman to recover the advance payment mentioned. In 2019, the Group



filed & Complakit-aliidavit changiing the dicectons, oG ivd shareholiers (respondentsy of Tokan,
with the crime estafa. The Group alleges that during the negotiation stage of the Shareholders
Agreement, respondents represented to the Group that Tolman ks in the process of increasing its
authorized capital stock from which the shares of the Group will be issued upon the latber's defivery
of cash, equipment and other resources, Relying on such representation, the Group entered inko a
Sharehalders Agreament and defivered to Tolman #®30,000,000 cash, UHT processing equipment
woarth B 134,000,000 and lease payments i the amount of 46,000,000, Despite recelpt of said
cash, equipment and lease payments, respondents failed to ssuwe the Group's shares of stock,
Worst, no application to Increase the capital stock wasever made before or during the existence of
the Shareholders Agreement. In the resolution dated lanuary 29, 2021, the Office of the City of
Prosecutor of Makati finds and sufficient ground to engender a well-founded belief that the crime of
Estafa under Article 315, paragraph 2 (a) was committed by respondent Emmanuel V. Duenas. The
amount Is guaranteed by a stockholder in the event of an adverse result of the ongoing case. Due
to the foregoing, the total outstanding receivables of the Group from Tolman is considered to be fully
recoverable as at December 31, 2020. In addition, the assets of Actron Industries, Inc., Jemana
Holdings, Inc. and Duenas in Tolman exceeds the claims of the Group against the outstanding
receivables, A civil case can now be filed to further pursue for the overali dlaim of the Group against
the concerned parties,

Advances amounting to #9.5 million as at December 31, 2020 for the purpose of
conducting frésh mange production by means of fertilizer and pesticide usage and harvesting
mangs produce relative to an agreement enterad into by the Group with various owners of mango
farm loks in 2020.

Deposit amounting bo F6.3 million to a local rural bank as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, to
acquire 2,500,000 commaon shares representing 12.5% ownership, The sakd investment is still for
approval of SEC and Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP).

Deposit amounting to #6,3 million {172,000 AUD) and #6.1 million {172,000 AUD) as at December
31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, to acquire an existing business in Australia to expand business
operations,

Advances [0 & local company for the processing fees related to an investment with a foreign
company amounting to ®1.6 million in 2020.

PFrovision for impairment loss amounting to #6.6 milion was recognized in 2020

(se& Mote 22). Advances and deposits amounting to # 62.8 million previously recorded as deposit
for land acquisition was writben off in 2019 as management believes that these are no longer
recoverable as at reporting date (see Note 22).

Refundable deposits are relative to long-term operating and finance leased properties of the Group
[sea Note 26).

The balance of refundable deposits as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 was based on the
discounting of future cash flows using the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Accretion income
from the discounting of refundable deposits amounted to #69.687 and £72,141 in 2020 and
2019, respectively (see Mobe 26),

Advances to suppliers represent noninterest-bearing down-payments to third party foreign
suppliers for repairs and maintenance of fixed assets,
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Trade and Other Payables

This account consists of:
Y 2022" 2021
Trade payables 89,914,870 128 486,313
Maonirade payables 443 469,706 402 345,434

Customers’ deposils
Real estate 36,128,650 45,685 212
Sale of goods 22,246,174 22,280,318
Govarnrmant payabiles 3,232,173 5,171,163
Accrued expenses 4,653,563.17 6,179,825
Acerued inlerast 1,263,689 1,272,759
600,908,825 611,431,024

Trade payables are noninterast-bearing and are generally settled within one month.

Montrade payables mainly include to unsecured and noninterest-bearing payable from
Thomas Lloyd Cleantech Infrastructure Fund GMHB [TLCIF) subsequently assigned by TLCIF
to the Group on December 29, 2014, as consented by Greenergy Holdings Inc. (GHI) with the
fellowing terms and conditions:

. The Group shall pay the nontrade payables on or before December 31, 2016 in cash or mon-
cash assets acceptable to GHI; and

If the nontrade payables will be paid with non-cash assets, the appralsed value thereaf shall

be determined by an Independent appraiser mutually acceptable to the Group andGHI.

As at September 30, 2022, the nontrade payables t© GHI are not yet setthed.
Nontrade payables also include outstanding labilities to nontrade suppliers.
Customers’ deposit pertains to advanced collections from customers for goods to bedelivered.

Accrued expenses are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest,
These pertain to acoruals made for utilities, association dues, security services, salaries and
wages and professional fees. Accruals are made based on the prior month's billimgs and/or
contracts and are normally settied within twehee (12) months from the end of the reporting

period,

Government payables include expanded withholding taxes, withholding taxes on
compensabion, final taxes, social security, govermnment health and other fund premiums which are
pald within 12 manths from the end of the repoarting period,

Al trade and other payables aré noninterest-bearing,



18. Loans Payable and Redeemable Convertible Loan

Deetails of this account fallow;

Long term: = 2022 7 2021
Peso Currency
Bank 1 144,089,286 104,267,857
Bank 2 = 6,214,574
Dthers B,589.082 9.084,693
¥ 152,678,367 ' 119,567,124
Less noncurrent portion 29,372,043 29,372,043
Current portion 123,306,324 90,195,081
Short term:
Peso Currency
Bank 3 241,600,000 255,600,000
Bank 4 304,121,410 352,200,000
Bank 5 160,000,000 197,000,000
Others 3,000,000 3,000,000
708,721,410 847,800,000
The rollforward analysis of |oans payable follows:
Balance at beginning o 967,367,124 7B, 908,717
Avallments during the 100,000,000 335,314,386
Payments during they (205,967,347) (154,855,979)
Foreign exchange adju - -
Balance at end of year 861,399 777 967,367,124

Loan features are summarized below;

Peso Currency Loans

Bank 1
The Group have various loans from Bank 1, which pertain to Short-term Loan Line {STLL), Export
Packing Credit Line {EPCL), Trust Receipt Lines (TR Lines) and other bank loans that are currently
maturing as of the end of the reporting periad. The loans bear interest rate of 8% per annum,
with the interest payable on a monthly basis until December 31, 2022,

The loans are secured by an existing real estate mortgage over its land and building located in
Fulilan, Bulacan. The aggregate amount of net book values of the land and bullding mortgage
amounted to P241,205,181 and £201,795,344 as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively
[see Mote 12},

Bank 2

The Group has a current lpan facility with Bank 2 with lpans bearing Interest rate of 8.0% per
annum, with interest payable on a monthiy basis, The lsan has a term of thirty-two {32} months,
and is payahle via twenty-four {24) monthly amortization of principal and interest, payable from
January 2016 to December 2017, inclusive of a grace period of aight (8) months on the payment
of the principal from May 2015 to December 2015.
On June 30, 2017, the loan was restructured and has a remaining term of sisty (60) months,
principal payable every month starting October 2017, The [oan is secured by pledge on shares
of stocks of the Group and continuing suretyship of a stockholder,
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Various short-term, unsecured loans from Bank 3, bearng interest rates ranging from 3.0% to
B.75% per annum, with the interest pavable on 8 monthly basis. The loan is to ba I‘le“lﬂﬂ BYEry
thirty (30} to one hundred eight [ 180) days upon mutual agreement of both parties.

Bank 4
In 2021 and 2020, the Group varlous avalled unsecured, short-term loan from Bank 4 with
interest rate ranging from 5% to 5.65% per annum, payable in three (3) months,

Bank 5
In 2021, the Group availed unsecured, short-term loans from Bank 5 with interast rate of 5.65%

per annum, payable in six (&) months.
Other loans include the following:

In 2018, TBC availed a loan from a local bank, amounting to 3,022, 800 for acquisitbon of thres units
of defivery trucks, with an interest rate of 9.4% per annum, payabie in five (%) years. Outstanding
balance of loan as at September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 amounted to 983,146 and
P1,236,994, respectively, which are secured by a chatteél mortgage (see Note 11).

In May 2004, the previous owners of FCI obtained a noninterast-bearing, unsecured loan amounting
to P13,650,000 from the Agricultural Competitiveness Enhancement Fund [ACEF) of the Departrment
of Agriculture (DA) through the chosen condult bank, Land Bank of the Philippines for the additional
working capital and expansion of frult processing facllities. The loan s payable guarterly within five
(5} years starting Septeamber 2005 to June 2009,

Duwe to unfavorable effects of economic conditions, FCI proposed to settle the ACEF loan with
monthly payments of P30,000 starting October 2007. The Company alsa has the option to pay
the loan at PLO0,000 quarterly. The DA subsequently approved the proposal in September 2012,

In August 2018, the loan was restructured 85 a result of the decision madea by the ACEF Executive
Committes (EXECOM) during its meeting in May 2018. FCI proposed for deferment of 10% of
outstanding balance amounting to PLO046,000 fto be paid on January 31, 2019, The
corresponding balance to be pald at P831,570, quarterly, for three {3) years, starting on March
31, 2019, amount inclusive of fixed annwal interest of 2%. Interest of P47 070 Is payable on a
quarterly basis, upon payment of principal. Dutstanding balance of the loan amounted to
P?.060,500 as at September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively,

AMI avalled short-term, unsecured loans fram third-party individuals which bear interest ranging
from 1% to 2% and have terms of 1-12 months. Dutstanding balance of these loans amaunted to
P57 million as at December 31, 2020, The loan was settled in 2021.

FFC1 availed short term, unsecured |loans which bear interest rate of 1% per month, payable on a
monthly basis and have maximum terms of theee (3] to six (6) months. Outstanding balance of
these loans amounted to P3.0 million as at September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021,

The maturity profile for the Group's loans payabie as at September 30, 2022 and December
31,2020 is as follows:

W22 201
Dise within one yéaar B32,027.734 837,995 081
Due beyond one year but r 29,372,043 29,372,043

861,399,777 067,367,124
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19, Revenus

The table below shows the analysis of revenues of the Group by major sources for the years
ended September 30, 2022 and September 30, 2021:

¥ 2022" 2021
Sales of Good 2,607,001,168 3,368,565,116
Sales of real property 212,096,058 254,942 439

2,819,097,226 3,623,507,555

20, Equity

On December 29, 2018, the SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock of the Group
from one billion pesos (#1,000,000,000) divided into one billion shares to two billion pesos
(P2,000,000,000) divided into two billion common shares both with par value of one peso (P1).

Due to the subscription of Plentex on December 23, 2020, the total number of subscribed
shares increased to 1,024, 446,888 as at December 31, 2020. The Issuance of Plentex shares
in fawor of the Group is not yet fully completed as at December 31, 2021{ see Note 1)

Mo mowvements in the Group's authorized number of shares with a par value of Pl per share
during 2022 and 2021 as shown below!

2022 2021
Balance $2,000,000,000 £2,000,000,000

Also, there was no movement in the Group’s subscribed and pald-up capital during September
30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 as shown below!

2022 2020
Balance P2.000,000,000 P2 000,000,000
Rollforward analysis of subscribed capital at par value is shown bebow:
2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year P1,024,446,888 P1,024 446,888
Subscriptions during the year - -
Balance at end of year P1,024.446 888 P1,024 446 882
The movement in the Growp’s additional paid-in capital is shown below:
2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year #3,602,050,960 P3,567,071,760
gl;Lil.'Inrls during the yaar - 34 979 200

Balance at end of year P3,602,050,960 P3 602,050,560




The total number of shareholders of the Group Is 41 as at Sapieﬁt;er 30, 2022 and December
31, 2021,

The principal market for the Grouwp's capital stock is the PSE. The high and low trading prices of
the Group's shares as at September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021
High Low High Low
First 4.99 4.62 7.10 6.92
second 4.88 4.41 6.30 6.09
Third a.84 5.55 2.09 d.50
Fourth = = 4.98 4.88

. Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings {(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net earnings (loss) attributable to
stockholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the years.

i rsh ri ity h

4 2022 " 2021
Het income {loss) from continuing operations attributable to
equity holders of the Parent Company 88,395,398 681,152,244
Weighted average number of commeon shares - subscribed and
paid up 832,831,688 B32,831,688
Basic and diluted earnings {loss)
per share 011 0.82

* The weighted averape numbser of gharas takes info accouwnt the weighfed avarage affect of the new
subscriptions during [he year.

2022 2021
Number of shares beginning of year 832,831,688 830,774,088
Welghted average number of shares
issued during the year = 2,057,600
eighted average number of
outstanding common shares -
subscribed and paid up B32,B31,688 832,831,688

Earnings (Loss) per share atfributable to the equity holders of the Group from continuing operation.

F L

2022 2021
Het income (loss) from continuing operations attributable to
equity holders of the Parent Company B8,395,398 681,152,244
Weighted average number of common shares — subscribed and
paid up 832,831,638 832,831 688
Basic and diluted earnings (loss)

per share 0.11 .82




22, Related Party Transactions

The Company has transactions with related parties. For consofidated financial statements
disclosure purposes, an affiliate 5 an entity under common control of the Company's
chareholders.

The Group has the following transactions with related parties:

Unsecured and non-interest-bearing cash advances toffrom its related parties for the acguisition of
operating machinery and eguipment and cther investing activities and for working capital purposes.
These are payable on demand and usually settled in cash or ather form of assets by way of
liguidation.

On Decernber 28, 2018, the Group and a third-party individual entered into an agreement to form a
joint wventure to devalop a property located in Taytay, Rizal. Relative to this, the Group made a
deposit amounting to PI300.0 million to acguire a portion of the 859 hectares, or a corresponding
partion thereof, of titled and untitled parcels of land.

In 2019, the Group made additional deposit amounting bo P208.7 millien which was advanced by one
af its stockholders. As at reporting date, the third party is completing the titling of the whole partion

of the property to fully execute the transactions, The deposit shall be recognized as property upon
the determination of the final amount and upon taking control of the related property (see Nobe 15).

A stockholder personally guaranteed several bank loans with its real estate property, shares of stock
and continuing suretyship of a stock (see Notes L7).

An affiliabed company provides additional guarantee to the Group's S-year lban in denominated in
RMB (see Note 17).

Cratails of the related party balances follow:

e 2022" 2024
D from:
Stockholders a7 406 84T 275,733,442
Affiliaes/Endty under common ownership 255,891 486 282,628,054
353,298,333 558,361,406
Allowance for impainment (6,460,530) {B,460,530)
346,837,803 551,900,066
D fi:
Stockholders 20,552,836 5.416,202
Affiliates/Entity under common ownership 96,942,902 148,573,250

117,495,738 154,980,542
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The roliforward analysis of related party accounts follow:

F

F

LI, 2021
Balance at beginning of year 551,900,966 538,254 012
Advances made 258,799 714
Colections/liquidation (205,063,163) (245,152, T60)
Balance al end of year 346,837,803 551,900,966
Direct write-ofi =
Met carrying valus 346,837,803 651,900,966
D o redated parbes:
Balance at beginning of year 154,989,542 S7.285175
Advances received a7 B694 367
Payments made (37,493, 804)
Balance at end of yvear 117,495,738 154,989,542
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Detalts of the related party balances follow:

The summary of the above related party transactions follows:!

N 2023 . e
Categony Balancs - Ansst Bafwnes - Anssy  Terms and conck on'sstieemeni Guararty Provision
ki {Liability} s {Linbdliiy]

Sincitholders

K- ik mrew | bea - .

Rucohiatie 97,788,118 TETIIAR derwrck ta b e T
Addennces mnde 06 TED, 84T sEiTied i Cakh oF othar S COPETANEE] DD
Colacions {177,965,32T) (231,357 45T) vt

Man-interest basnng; pavabis Unaacured; no tgrihcam

Payable {20,552,836) {5A416.252) cammr; tn e Gl -~oc- g
Ahances facered (15,156, 5:44) (5418, 280 SRl M CEEh oF othar D COWINLS, DO
Pmamonis made i

Cxhor common conirl

Recelvable 240,069,688 LIRS demarmrmim T iy Mo
Adwmnces made 152 015, BET #etlied in canh or other e Ceroianlag na
Collecions [El.m |23, 785, 303 R
Adovainos for Empainmoni (6, 40, 5300 16, 480 550 i

Payabie (117.485,738) PR - iy ol e ey
Ap@ances recefed |86 286, 540} settied in cash or other el COVERANts] o

Paymeris made (37,495, 804 F

B5



Due from Stockholders

Due from stockholders mainly pertain to advances to the Group's President to be wsed in the
Agri-Sactor Digitalization Program in partnership with government agenciles (see Nota 1). These
are non-interest-bearing advances, unsecured, mot guaranteed and no Impairment and are
generally collectible on demand and to be settled in cash and other assets through liguidation
or offsetting with corresponding payable.
In 2022 and 2021, the balance of due from stockhaolders is current.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel
The Group considers its President, Chief Finance Officer and Assistant Vice President as key

management personnal. Total remuneration of key management personnel, composad mainly
af short-term employes benefits and provision for retirement benafits for executive officers,
were included under "Personnel costs” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive intoma
amounting to P15.9 million, PS.9 million and P9.3 million in 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
There were no ather benefits aside from the salaries and other shart-term benefits.

There are no other significant related party transactions in 2022 and 2021,

23. Coszt of Sales

i 2022 2021

Imventories at beginning of year 1,317,725,194 343,950 064
Purchases and comeersion of oosts 2,356,234 579 4. 867,272,950

Cost of goods available for sale 3,673,959,773 4,211,223,014

Less inventones at end ol year 1,402,920,590 1,279 281,553
2,271,039,183 2,931,941 461

Cost of real property 171,615 463 225,359,199
Cost of goods and services sold 2,442,654, 646 3,157,300,660

Dthers include production supplies, freight and handling costs, contracted services, gas and
oil, repairs and maintenance, tolling, sales commission and utilities,

24, General and Administrative Expenses

Dther employee benefits include 555, HDMF, Philhealth employer contributions and 13™ month
banus. Others pertains to trainings and seminars, pest controls, malis and postages and printing.

2022 2021
Taxes and kcenses 86,197,937 51,324,247
Persannel costs 73,292,124 68,175,927
Deprecation and amortization 35,732,554 35,604,565
Addwertising 27,550,543 35,247,654
Dthers 13,036,478 9,100,087
Representation and entertainment 0,445,242 5,562,995
Repairs and maintenance 4,017,342 2,744,097
Commumication, light and water 3,881,907 3,483,669
Suppses 2,719,344 1,107,813
Freight and handing cost 2,680,414 3,568,759
Professional fens 2,309,915 3,675,699
Contracted services 2,274,254 1,038,731
Transpartation and travel 1,735,976 1,758,550
Rentals 1,072,084 903,171
Bank charges 555,578 252,681
Insurance 199,093 256,129

266,709,886 F224 804,773




25. Other income (charges)

2022 2021
Other meome
Gain on valuation of Investment
Gty 955,916,916
Gain (oss) on reversal of alowance
for impairment 186,471 6 669 5932
FW gain on bio assets
Rental Income B24,613 BGG, 602
Others 1,947 883 3850878
2,958,967 1,023,304,328
Other expenses:
?.Ea&}ed foreign exchange loss 1,025,444 - 1.357 758
ﬂﬂh r r
1,933,523 1,024,662,087
26, Retirement Liability

The Company has a single retirement plan under the regulatory framework of the Philippines. Under
A, No. 7641, the Company is legally obliged to provide a minimum retirement pay for qualified
employees upon retirement. The framework, however, dogs not have a minimum funding
requirement, The Company's benefit plan is aligned with this framewaork.

Under the funded plan, the employees are entitled to retirement benefits equivalent to 22.5 days per
vear of credited service in accordance with R.A. No. 7641 on attainment of & retiremeant age af Suit'f
(60) years with at least five (5) years of service. The payments for the funded benefits are borne by
the Cﬂﬂ'llllf‘l'p' as it falls due.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried
out on Janwary 3, 2022 by Miravite Consulting Group The present value of the defined benefit
obligation, and the related curment service cost and past service cost, were measured using the
Projacted Unit Credit Method {PUCH),

The following table summarizes the compenents of pension costs recognized in the Group's
consolidated stabements of comprehensive income;

Note 2021 2020 201%
Charged o profit and loss:
Current service cost £2.466,198 963,165 R917, 300
Net interest cost 677,826 580,996 455,432
23 3,144,024 1,554,161 1,372,732
Charged (credited) to other
comprehensive income:
Mek remessurement gains 4 199 = 3. 278,867

P7,186,223

P1,554, 161

P4.651,55%




Mowvement of retirement liability recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position
are as follows;

Note 2022 2021
Balance at beginning of year 19,275.038 12,088,815
Retirement benefits expense 23 3,144,024
BEemeasurement loss 4,042,199
Balance at end of year 19,275,038 19,275,038

The roliforward of net cumulative remeasurement gain on retiremeant benefits as at December
31, 2021 and 2020 follows:

2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year P3,652,613 P3.652,613
Remeasurement lass {4,032,199)

Balance at end of year P(389,586) P3,652,613

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment medical benefits as well
as the present value of the pension obligation are determined wsing actuarial valuations. The
actuarial valuation Inwvolves making various assumptions. The principal assumptions used in
determining pension and post-employment benefit obligations for the defined benefit plans are
shown below !

2021 2020 2019
Discount rate 5. 20% F.B0Y 7.80%
Projected salary Increase rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions vsed to measure the defined benefit liability
is as follows:

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in

Assum n Assum n Assu on
Decamber 31, 2021
Discount rate +/-1.00% Decrease by 65.20% Increase by 4.20%
Salary increase rate +/-1.00% Increase by 6.00% Decrease by 4.00%
December 31, 2020
Discount rate +-1.00% Decrease by 0.50% Increase by 0.50%
Salary increase rate +/-1.00% Increase by 0.50% Decrease by 0.50%

All other assumptions are held constant in determining the sensitivity results above.

The estimated average remaining working lives of employees is 14 years for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020.

The Group and local subsidiaries are subject to RCIT or MCIT whichewer is higher, Foreign subsidiaries
are subject to corporate income tax at statwtory tax rate applicable to their respective countries,
Income tax expensa amounted to P35, 796,748, P44, 700,430 and
PES, 678,716 in 2021, 2020, and 2019 respectively,



b. A reconciliation of provision for income tax expensa (benefit) for 2021, 2020 and 2019 applicable
to income before income tax computed at the statutory income tax rates follows:

L.

2021 2020 2019
Incame before income tax £1,094,664,173 B53261,939 P154,317.418
Muitiplied by statutary rate 255 f 20%: J0% 0%
[ncome tax Bl statutory rete & 30% - 15,978,562 A5, 295,225
Income tax at stabubory rate @ 25% 276,377,583 - -
Income (s at statutory rate & 20% (2,169,232} - -
Income tax effects of:
Changes in unrecognized deferred tax assets {9,523,093) 34,764,997 37,690,467
Differance in &x rates {222,504,739) ([5777.129) 1,931 098
Applcation of NOLCD (1,133,378) (2,504.887) (18,213,979)
Nondeductible depreciation from

piecerneal revaluation 2,469 859

Nondeductible expenses 169,347 1,BR] 849 2057 554
Nontaxable income {22,957 (174, B28)
Interest incame subject to final tax (5,765) {9,805 {8,270)
Provision o retirement expendes - -
Amortization of sscurity deposit 10,642 - -
Effect of change in tax rate {1,045 961} - -
Rowersal of alpaance {2,235 600} - -
Uinrealized foreign exchange gain (BE5) = -
Applied/Expired MCIT [3,&115] {T,%EJ —
Totad ncome tak = ourrent and deferred 36,802,873 36,608,925 §9.576,267
Deferred income tax sxpense (benefit) 1,006,124 (8,001,505)  (102,349)

Current income bax expenis

P35 706, 740  Pdd 700,430 PO 6TE 716

The Group reéviews deferred tax assets at each financial reporting date and recognized these to
the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of

the deferred Income tax assets to be utilized.

The Group have recognized deferred tax assat arising from the effect of PFRS16, Leases as

follows:

Batance at January 1, 2020 p 102,449
Recognized in profit oF loss 284 600
Balance at December 31, 2020 387,049
Recognized in profit or loss {248,024)
Effect of change in kax rate (129,016 )
Balance at December 31, 2021 P 10,009
The Group has unrecognized déferred taxes from the following:
hoves 2021 2020 2013
Allowance for impairment losses 7,9, 15 PTL1,169,018B P46,321,911 P29.643,014
NOLCD 5,733,030 33,128,024 22,042,489
Retirerment liability 4,505,052 3,626,645 3,160,396
MCIT 1,731,776 6,185,034 14,982,151
Unrealized foreign exchangs oss 96,489 7R 1249 1,367,730

PB3, 235,365 PB9,339,743 P71,195,840




d.

The Group recognized deferred tax Habilities from the following;

Gain on change
Reavaluation in fair value of
increment  biological assets Total
mlance At Januany 1, 2020 P P- P
ecognized in other comprahensive
income 8,737,251 = 8,737,251
alance at Deceamber 31, 2020 B, 737,251 = B.737,251
ecognized in profit or loss - 5,969,783 5,989,783
ecognized in other comprehensive
incoume 17,335,743 - 17,335,743
fect of change in tax rate (1,456, 208) - {1,456,208)
alance at December 31, 2021 P24 616,786 P5,989. 783 P30,606,569

The deferred income tax espensa [(benafit]) amounted to P1,006,125, (PB.001.,505) and
(P102,449) in 2021, 2020 and 2019. Income tax benefit In 2021, 2020 and 2019 also includes
applied MCIT whose cormesponding deferred tax asset was previously not recognized amounting
to P3.485,638, P7,716,905 and nil, respectively.

Met Operating Loss Carry-Over (NOLCO)

NOLED incurred prior 1o taxable year 2020

NOLCD incurred prior to taxable year 2020 can be claimed as deduction against regular taxeble
income within the next three (3} consecutive taxable years immediately following the year of such
oS5,

Year incurred  Expiration Expired/Applied Unapplied Tax effect
2019 2022 P438,464 P27 446,593 P5,489,319
2018 2021 28,286,247 E £

P28,724,711 _ P27,446,593 _ P5,489,319

NOLCO incurred in taxable year 2020

Pursuant to Section 4 (bbbb) of Bayanihan II and as implemented under Revenue Regulations [RR)
Mo, 25-2020, the net operating losses of a business or enterprise incurred for taxable years 2020
and 2021 can ba carried over as deduction from gross incomea for the next five (5) consecutive taxable
years immediately fallowing the year of such loss.

Year incurred  Expiration Applied Lnapplied Tax effect
2021 2026 P P31,367,140 PG, 273,428
2020 2025 1,016,738 53,190,924 10,638,185

P1,016,738  P84,558,064 P16,911,613

The Group incurred MCIT which can be claimed as deduction against future tax due as follows:

Year incurred Expiration Expired/Applied Unapplied
2018 2021 P1,154,269 P-
2019 2022 3,537,807 1,306,633
2020 2023 85,180 342,344
2021 2024 - 223,601

P4,777,256 P1,872,578

The Group apted for the itemized deduction scheme for its income tax reporting in 2021, 2020
and 2019,



28. Lease Agreements

Growup as 8 Lessor
The Group has an operating lease arrangement of its property to a third-party construction company.

The lease has a term of one year commencing from January 1, 2018 subject to an annual review and
renewable upon mutual agreement of the parties. The lease contract was renewed In 2020 and 2021
for anothar twalve {12) months from date of renewal. Refundable deposit partaining to this lease
amounted bo B121,511 (sea Note 16).

The lease agreement includes clause requiring the lessee to be liable when the property hasbeen
subjected to excess wear-and-tear during the lease term. This strategy minimizes therisk exposure
to residual value of the underdying asset.

Estimated future minimum lease receipts bo be collected to lessee not later than one (1) vear as at
December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to P1.1 million.

Rental income from the lease amounted to PL,155,.469 in 2021, B1,0359,923 in 2020, P1,160,45%
im 2019 (sesa Mote 24).

Group 3s 8 Lessee
The Group leases machinery, transportation equipment and store premises from thind partiesunder
finance lease agreements ranging from fowr (4) to seven (7) years.

Right-gf-use assets

The balance and movements of ROU assets relating to the lease of machinery, transportation
equipment and store premises is as follows (see Note 12):

- 2022
Discount on rental
Leases deposit Total
Right-of -use asset:
Cost
Balance at beginning of year 152,799,108 198,692 152997800
Additions during the year - -
Balance at end of year 152,799,108 198 692 152 997,800
Accumulaied amorfization
Balance at beginnng of year 3,113,059 198,692 73,311,731
Amartization durng the year 14913, 136 - 14,913,136
Balance ot &nd of year 28 026,195 198 692 BE 274 BR7
Met camying value Hi? ?2|'='|13 - ﬁ#l? ?IIEH
. 2021
Discount on rental
Ledses deposit Total
Right-of-usa assat:
Cost 152,799, 108 198,692 152,997 800
Accumulated amortization 73,113,059 198,692 73,311,751

Met carmying valkse 70 686,049 - 79,686 049
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Refundable Deposit

Relative to the leases, the Group's refundable deposit amounted P16.5 million as at December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively, which is equivalent to one month lease rental based on rental rate
applicable on the last year of the lease term. The refundable deposit is presented under "Prepayments
and other current assets” and "Other noncurreént assets” account in the consolidated statements of
financial position as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 (see Notes 9 and 15).

Lease Liabifities

The balance and movements of lease liabllities as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 relating to the
leases above follow:

2021 2020
Balance at the beginning of year P5,892,020 P11,865,788
Payments of lease Hability (5466, 702) (7,102,747)
Additions durimg the year = 2,282 8549
Gain on foregone leases - (1,870,017)
Amaortization of interest 184 314 716,137
Meat carrying valua 609,632 5,892,020
Less: current portion 291,160 5,282 3B8
Moncurmant portion £318.472 PE0S 632

At each reporting date, the Company had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancelable operating leases, which fall due as follows;

2021 2020
Mot kater than one (1) year P334,211 P334,211
Later than one [1] year but not later than five {5} 334,210 668,421

PEGE 421 P, 002,632

. Short-lerm Leases

The Group leases office spaces, warehouses, residential units, warshouse eguipment under lease
agreements usually for a period of one (1) year, renewable subject to the mutual consent of the
lessor and the lessee without any escalation clause.



V. Amounts recognized in profif or loss:

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the lessors provided rent concessions to the Group in the form
of rent-free periods and discounts. The Group accounted thess rent comcessions as not a lease
maodification. The rent concessions resulted to a decrease of lease Habilities amounting to PL,E70,01L7
as at December 31, 2020 and to the recogniticn of gain on forgone leases in 2020 of the same amount.

Income tax benefit amounting to P248,025 in 2021 and P284,600 in 2020 melates to the adoption
of PFRS 16 (see MNote 26),

29, Financial Risk Managemeant and Capital Management Objectives and Policies

Einancial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments consist of cash, trade and other receivables {excluding
advances to officers and employees), due to and from related partles and stockholders, loans and
lzase labilities. The main purpose of these financial instruments is tofinance the Group's normal
course of its operating activities., The Group has vanous other financial assets and financial labilities
such as refundable deposits under "Prepayments and other current assets” and deposits and other
non=current assets and trade and other payables {excluding government payables and customers’
deposits) which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The BOD reviews and agrees policlesfor managing
each of these risks and they are summarized below:

= Credit Rigk
Cradit risk refers to the potential loss arising from any failure by counterparties to fulfill their
obligations, as and when they fall due. It is inherent to the business as potential losses may arise
due to the faillure of its customers and counterparties to fulfill their obligations on maturity periods
or due to adverse market conditions.



Credit risk exposurs
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the Group's financialassets, without
taking into account any collateral and other credit enhancements as at September 30, 2022 and
December 31, 2021

2022 2021

Financial assets at amortized costs.
Cash in bank 67,623,531 48,316,792
Trade and other receivables - net 833,560,625 622,022,383
Due fram related parties - net 249,069,679 276,167,524
Due from a stockholder 97,768,115 251,082,378
Refundable deposits - net B,459,366 5.611.453

1,256,481,316 1,207,200,530

The table above excludes financial assets and financial liabllities of subsidiares accounted for using
the liquidation basls of accounting.

Credit quality per class of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets 15 managed by the Group using inbernal credit ratings and (5

classified into three:

(&) high grade which has no history of default;

(b} stamdard grade which pertains to accounis with history of one (1) or two (2)
defaults; and

(c}) substandard grade, which pertains to accounts with history of at least 3 payment defaults.

The table below summarizes the credit quality of the Groop's financial assets based on its hstorical
experience with the corresponding parties as at September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021:

2032
Mesither past due nor impaired
High grade  Standard grade Past due but not impaired  Impaired Total
Cash 67 E23,53 1.287 977 g - 68,511,508
Trads and ofer recerablas - 626,861 47T NGB0 ME S231T3T4 BRSETT.0A0
D from related pariies . 248,068 679 - 248,068,670
D from a siockhalder - oF 68,115 . - a7, T6E 115
Firsarcial asast &t FVOC] - 408,636,200 * - 3,636, 20
Rastuiralaie: deposiis . B, 450, 368 = 6,711,100 15,170,466
67,623,601  1.033.082 814 JEEIQ4E  E8028.474 1368 433567
X 2021
Maither past due nor impaired
High grade  Siandard grade Past dus but not impaired  Impaired Total
Cash 80,041,389 136,577 B0, 177,566
Trace and olher receables 528,008,065 153,024,547 51,571,806 733,504,418
Due fravm related parties - ret 276,167,524 6460,530 282628054
Due from siockholders 251,082,378 251,062,378
Firangial asse o FYOC) 4T 607,400 7 B0 AGD
Relurdable deposits 9,953,668 8,711,100 16,684,758

80,047,380 1, 114.048.613 163,024 547  GATAR436  1.411.850.984




The table above excludes financial assets and financial labllities of subskdiaries accounted for using
the liquidation basls of accounting (see Nate 29),

Cash in banks classified as high grade are deposited and invested with banks with good credit training
and can be withdrawn anytime. Standard grade cash in banks are those deposited under rural
banks.,

High grade receivables pertain to receivables from third party buyers of real estate of the Group
and program partners who consistently pay before the maturity dabe. Standard grade receivables
are receivables that are collected ontheir due dates aven without an effort from the Group to follow
thern up. Both high grade and standard grade receivables currently have no to minimal history of
default.

Drivie from related parties and stockholder are pssessnd 3% standard grade since the Group practices
offsetting of receivables and pavables,

High-grade refundable deposits are socounts considersd to be high value, The counterparties have
a very remote likelihood of default, Refundable security deposits assessed as standard grade are
refunded upon termination or fulfilmentof agreement.

Balow is the aging analysis of past due but not impaired trade and other receivables:

30 to &1 ta More than
Trade 60 days a0 days a0 days Tatal
2022 43,887,714 389,791,197 1123 240 206, 148
2021 32491172 25458 416 81,074.959 153,024 547

Risk concentrations of the maximum exposure to credit risk

Concentrations arise when & number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or
activities in the same geographic region or have similar economic features that would cause their
ability to meet contractual obligations to besimilardy affected by changes in economic, palitical or
other conditions, Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group's performance o
developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location, Such credit risk
concentrations, if not properly managed, may cause significant losses that couldthreaten the
Group's financial strength and undermine public confidence. The Groupis not exposed to lange
concentration of credit risks.

Impairment assessment

The Group applies general approach for determining the expected credit losses of cash in banks,
nontrade receivables, due from related parties, due from & stockholderand refundable deposit. &
credit loss is the difference bebween the cash flows that are expected to be received discounted at
the original effective interest rate and contractual cash flows in sccordance with the contract. The
loss allowance for financial assets is based on the assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates, The management provided allowance for impairment of due from related parties
amounting to PE.5 million as at September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively and
refundable deposits amounting to P6.7 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively
(=ee Motes 9 and 21).

The Group applies the PFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifatime expected loss allowance for trade receivables, To measure expected credit loss, receivables
wene grouped based on days past due and groupedthe customers according to their profile. The
expaecied loss rates are based on the historical credit losses within the period of time. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information affecting the ability of the
oustomers to setile the receivables.



The Group has identified GDP of Asia Pacific continent to which the principal entities of the Group's
customers are based as the most relevant factor, and accordingly adjust histarical loss rate based on
the changes on GDF growth rates. The Group has identified GDP of the Philippines as the most
relevant factor for its lecal and related party sales,

Total allowance for impairment losses on trade receivables from the simplified approach of
measuring ECL amaunted to P48.1 milllen and PB4.8 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

Total provision for impairment losses recognized under "Operating expenses” account in profit or loss
amounbed to nil in 2021, P5.5 million in 2020, P69 million in 2019 (see Note 7),

Liguigtity Hisk
Ligisiclity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall
due under normal and stress crcomstances, To imit the risk, the Group maintaing sulficient cash o

meet operating capital requirements. The Group also monitors the maturities of its financial assets
and financial kabilities and ensures that it has sufficient current assets to settle the current liabilities.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities and assets as at
September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 based on undiscounted payments:

o 2022

On damand Dwe within cas Dus bayond 1 year Total
Flancia)l assels
Cash 67,623,531 - . 67,623,531
Trade recenvables - net - 833,560,625 . B33,560,625
Due from related parties - it 249,069,679 - . 244 058 679
Due fram stockhokers 97,768,115 . . 97,768,115
Financial assets at FYOC] 49,636,200 : ; 49,636,200
Retundabie depasits - net 11,211,509 2,184 68 1,774.376 15,170,465

475,305,034 835,745,306 1,774,276 1,313 828,616
Fanancia) latiines
Trade and other payables® 5 600,908,825 : 600,508,825
Due to melated parties 117 495 738 x " ILI7 4%% 738
Loans payable - B32,027,734 20,372,043 BE1,399,777
Lease fnbity 3 201,160 318,473 £08,632

117,495,738 1,433,227,718 29 15 1580413972

" 2021

On demand Due 'mﬁ"““ Duse beyond 1 year Totsl
Firsrncin assels
Cash 80,177,966 : ; 80,177,966
Trade recefvables - rat = BI2.022 383 . B22.0F2 383
Due from relsted parties - et~ 276,167,524 é . 276,167,524
Due fram stockhokders 251,082,378 . ‘ 251,082,378
Financial assets at FYOC] 47,801,400 - . 47,801,400
Refundabis deposis - net 5 552 406 7,184 651 1,774,376 9,611,453
= & 7 £34.207 1,774,276 3104
Frnanci) habites
Trade and other payabies® * < 520,289 660 : 520,289,660
Due to related parties 153,580,134 - . 153,580,134
Loans pavatie - 337,995 081 29,373,043 B67,367,124
Lease fabiy - 291,160 318,472 609,632

153,580,134 158,575,901 29,600,515 LEA1,B46,550

The table above excludes financial assets and financial liabilities of subsidiaries accountedfor using the
liquidation basis of accounting {see Note 29),

Market Rigk

Market risk is the risk of loss to future earnings, to fair values or to future cash Mlows that may result
from changes in the price of a financial instrument, The value of a financial instrument may change
a5 a result of changes in foreign currency exchanges rates and interest rates.



Foreign currancy risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk to eamings or capital arising from changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange
rates on |ts consolidated financial statements and cash flows.

The Group has transactional currency exposures, Such exposure generally arises from cash in banks,
trade receivable and payables, deposits, loans payable and leasa liability in Renminbi {RMB), Hong
Kong Dollar (HE$), United States Dollar (US%) and Australian Dollar (AUS). The Group did not seek
to hedge the exposure on the change in foreign exchange rates between the RMB, US55, HKS, AU%
and the Philippine Pesos. The Group does not generally believe that active curmency hadging would
provide long-term benefitsto stockholders.

The Group's policy is to maintain foreign currency exposure within acceptable limits andwithin existing
regulatory guldelines, The Group believes that its profile of forelgn currency exposure an ts assets
and liabilities is within consenvative limits for an institution engaged in the type of business in which
the Group is involved,

The equivalent exchange rates of one foreign curmency in Philippine peso as at September 30, 2022 and
December 31, 2021 are as follows:

1012 w021

In USD tn Php In USD In Pog
Cash n ok $  STATE P 3,366,224 $ 1814 P A8

In RME Tn Php In RME In Prg
Cash n bark 45,952,779 P 49,245,553

In EU In Php In BU In Py
Cash i tark C 500.00 P I8,758

The sensitivity to a reasonably possible change In the exchange rate, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s income before iIncome tax i 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

20232 2021
uss P5E.91 P50.77
RME B.27 7.97
HEL 7.50 &.51
Foreign exchange buss s as folbows:
2022 2021
Realized foreign exchange
o (gain) P1,025,444 P428,836
Unrealized fareign
exchange 0ss 09,502

P1,025,444 P3,443,218

Interest Rate Risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its cash deposits in banks which are subject to
varable  interest rates  while its  loans payahle at fixed interast rates.
The risk is managed by the Group by maintaining appropriate fixed rate loans payable.

The interest rate risk arsing from deposits with banks is managed by means of effective investmant
planning and analysis and maximizing investment opporfunities in varous local banks and linancial
institutions.

Profit for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 would have been unaffected since the Group
has no laans payable at variable rabes and interest rate risk exposure for its cash in bank, which is
subject to variable rate, is very Immaterial,



Capital Managerment

The primary objective of the Group's capétal management is to ensure that the Group has sufficient funds
in order to support their business, pay existing obligations and maximize shareholder value. The Group
conshiers advances from related parties as capital.

The Group's podicy |5 by maintain sufficient capital to cover working capital requirements. The Group obtains
advances from related partles to cover Inadequacy i working capital.

As ol September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Group considers the following accounts as capital:

2022 2021
Capital stock P 832831688 P 532,831,688
Additional paid-in capital 3,602,050,960  3,602,050,960
Due to related parties 117,495,738 154,989,542

Total capital 4,552,378,386 4,589,672,190

The Group has no externally imposed capital requirement. No changes were made in the objectivies, palicies
or processes. for the years ended September 30, 2022 and December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Fair Value Measurement

Set put below s a comparison by category of carrying values and estimated falr values of Group's
financial instruments as at December 38, 20321 and 2020;

Going concern basis of accounting

T 2022

Significant
CamryingValee  Fair Vaki Observable inputs

Financial asset at amortized cosf

Cash 67,623,531 67,623,531 67,623,531
Trade ard other recenvables - net 833,560,625 833,560,625 833,560,625
D From related parties - net 249,069,679 249,069,679 249,069,679
De from stockhoider 97,768,115 97,768,115 97 768,115
Refundabls Deposi - Nat 15,170 466 15,170,466 15 170,466
1,263,192 418 1,263,192 416 1,263,192 416
Financial assets at FVOCI 49,636,200 49,636,200 49 636,200
1,312, 828,616 1,312.828,616 1 8,616
Financial kabidtes at amortized cost
Trade and other payables 600,908,825 600,908,825 &00,908 825
D o relsted parties 117,495 718 117,495,738 117 495,738
Loan payable A61,399,777 B61,399,777 861,399,777
Lease Aabikty 609,632 609,632 609,632
1,580,4139732 1,580,413,9732 1,580,412972




i 2021

Significant

— CarryingValwe  Fair Value Observable inputs
Financial asset af amortired cosl
Cash 48 316,792 48 316,793 48,316,792
Trche and other recehables - nat 622,022 383 G2 022,383 622,032 383
Dise: Frorm relsted part=s - net 276, 167 5324 276, 167,524 276,167 524
O From sbockha der 251,082,378 251,082,378 ISI.,ﬂEI,J?E
Refundable Deposk - Net 9611453 9611453 9611453

1,207 200,530 1,207 200,530 1,207,200,530
[Financial assets st FVOCI 47,801,400 47,801,400 47,801,400

1,255,001,930 1255001830 2 1,355001 830
Financial Eabilties at amortized cost
Traede and other payables L20,289 660 20, 289,660 520,285 660
Due to related parties 153,580,134 153,580,134 153,580,134
Loan payabla 967 367,124 967 367,124 $6T. 367,124
Lesse Rabilly 609,632 &09,632 09 632

1.64 550 1641 1 1 B4

M i Fair Wal
The Management assessed that the following financial instruments approximate thelr carrying amaounts
based on the methads and assumptions wused to estimate the fair values:

Cash in banks, trede and other recefvables, refundatve deposits, due to/from related partiesand
stockholders and trade and ather payables,

The carrying amounts of cash in banks, trade and other recelvables, due to/from related parties and
stockholders, current refundable deposits and trade and other payables approximate their fair values
due to the short-term nature of these financial Instruments.

The fair value of noncurrent refundable deposits from long-term lease contracts Is the presentvalue of
the discounted expected future cash flows using the incremental borrowing rate,

Loars and borrowings
The carrying value of loans and borrowings approximate their fair values as their interest rates are
based on market rates for debt with the same maturity profiles at the end of the reparting period,

Lease habilities
The fair values of lease payable are based on the present value of future cash flows discounted using
the current rates available for debt with the same maturity profile as at the end of thereporting

period.
There has been no reclassification among the levels of hierarchy during 2022 and 2021.

29.01 Fair Value Determinations of Assat

The following provides an analysis of assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to
which inputs to valuation techniques are obsérvable:

Lewel 1 fair value measurements are those derived from guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs ather than quoted prices included

within Level 1 that are chservable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(l.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation technigues that include inputs for
the asset or liability that are not based on cbservable market data (unobservable inputs).



Z9.01.01 Fair Value Hierarchy

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

2022 1021
Assets:
Blological assets 141,651,133 59,301,732
Property and equipment 569,110,675 316,229,570
Investrnent property 1,269,175,572 1,188,425,936

1,979,937,380 1,563,957,238

Assets:
-4

Property and eguipment: In valuing the land Market Approach was used which is the most
common technigue for valulng land, and is the most preferred method when comparable sales
are available, With this method, sales of similar property or parcels of land are analyzed,
compared, and adjusted to provide a value indication for the property being appraised. The
comparison process is based on an analysis of the similarity or dissimilarity of the comparable.
Cost Approach was used for the improvements while a combination of the Market and Cost
Approach was used for the machinery and equipment, The Cost Approach generally involves the
foliowing steps: (a) The value of the subject land Is normally estimated by the Market Data or
Sales Comparison Approach, In instances where available market data is sufficient, the Income
Approach [Residual Method) can be used, (b) The depreciated cost of the subject improvement
is estimated by calculating the direct cost of reproducing or replacing the improvement,
deducting accrued depreciation from all sources, and adding the indirect costs attribubed to the
improvement. Combining the estimates shown above results in the indicated value of the sulbject
property by the Cost Approach.

Biological assets: The fair value was derived using the market approach. Market approach is a
valuation technigue that uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions
inwvolving identical or comparable assets, Under market approach, the most significant input into this
valuation is the fair value less estimated costs to sell inan active market.,

Investment properties: The fair walue was derived wsing the market approach,
Market approach is a valuation technigque that uses prices and other relevant informabion generated
by market transactions invoheing identical oF comparable ascets,
Under market approach, the most significant input into this valuation is the price per squane foot,

Financial assets at FYOLCI: The fair value of financial asset at PYVTOCT could not be reliably
determined because it does not have quoted market price In an active market, thus, cost s a good
approximabe of its falr value,

The Parent Company has no financial instruments that are carmied at FVPL

29.02,03 Highest and Best Lise

The Company's investment properties are currently held for capital appreciation, However, in both
years, the Company assessed the highest and best use of the investment properties from the
perspective of market participants. The investment properties in combination with other assets and
liabitities could be leased out to others to eam rental income. Management believes that the current
use of the investment properties s the asset's highest and best use.




J1I.

Nencontraliing Inferest

Noncontrolling Interests represants the egulty in subskdiaries not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Group, The details of the account are as folkws:

32

2022
Balance at Comprehensive Balance at
beginning of year income {loss) end of year

Fucang 1,179,042 278 59,699,636 1,238,741,914

ANI HK 114,798,585 4 114,798,585

TBC =32,408,953 =122,214 -32,531,167

FFCI -19,108,729 -340,982 -19,449,711

Fl -2,944,544 ¥ -2,944,544

FGP 1,883,298 -245 1,883,053

Heppy -780,323 - -780,323
#1,240,481,612 59,236,195 1,299,717,807

2021
Balance at Comprehensive Balance at
beginning of year income (loss) end of year

Fucang B726 608,406 R452 433,872 P1,179,042 278

AMNIL HE 114,798,585 - 114, 798 585
TBC (31,886,805) (522,148) (32,408,953)
FFC1 (18,631,691) (477,038) (19,108,729)
FI (2,944,544) - (2,944 ,544)

FGP 1,918,629 (35,331) 1,883,298
Heppy {7BE 442 (13,881} (780,323)
F789,096,138 P451,385.474 P1,240,481,612

Business Combinatian
Acquisition of Lexian

As discussed in Mote 1, Fuceng acquired Guangrhou Lexian Fruit Industry Co., Lid, [Lexian), & foreign
entity incorporated In China engaged in wholesale industry in 2018, Fucang owns 70% equity Interest in
Lexlan which |s eguivalent to RMBM00,000 divided into 70,000 shares at RMB10.0 per share {equicalent to
7,160,000 divided info 70,000 shares). Lexian is an indirect subsidiary of Agrinurture, Inc. (the Parent
Company ) owning 51% eguity interest in Fucandg.

The cost of investment is equivalent to Fucang's share in net assets of Lexian at the date of incorporation,
As such, no goodwill or Invesbment inoome was recagnized from the business combination.

23,

Segment Information

The Group has identified Its operating segments based on Internal reports that are reviewed and used by
the Chief Executive Officer (the chief operating decision maker) In assessing performance and in
debermining the allocation of resounces. The operating segments identified by the management are as
folhows:

Exparts

The Export segment is in charge of looking for markets abroad as well as sourcing the best quality produce
possible o satisfy (ks growing number of dients abroad. [ts main export products are fresh banana, fresh
manga, and coco-water,

Distribution
The Destribution segment ks responsible for the local sales and distribution of various produce that the
Group offers to a number of supermarkets around Luzon.



Retail
The Retall segment is responsible for the management and operation of the Group's retail
businesses.

Foveign Trading
The Foreign Trading segment |5 charge of the international distribution operatiens of the Group in
Hong Kong and China,

The Group's opérating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of the
products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers
different products and serves different markets. In addition, the Group’s reportable segments also include
gengraphical areas for local and forekgn operations. Foreign operations are included under “Foreign Trading”
and local operations are included under the reaining reported segments.

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature

of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit
that offers different products and serves different markets. In addition, the Group's reportable
segments also include geographical areas for local and foreign operations. Foreign operations are
included under “Foreign Trading™ and local operations are included under the remaining reparted
segments.

REVEMNUE
[Philippine Peso) September 30, 2022 September 30, 2021
Philippine Operations
Export 1,053,559,296 1,186,019,719
Local Distribution and Others 208,965,571 490,793,912
Retail & Franchising 36,992,309 16,941,019
Sub- Total 1,299,517,175 1,693,754,650
Foreign Operations
Hongkong/China 1,519,580,051 1,929,752,905
Total 2,819,097,226 3,623,507,555




